
Notice of Meeting and Agenda and Minutes
March 31, 2014

SPECIAL, 3/31/2014 1:30:00 PM

BE IT REMEMBERED that on March 31, 2014, there was begun and
holden a SPECIAL session of the Commissioners Court of Jefferson
County, Texas, with the following members and officers present and
participating except those absent as indicated:

Honorable Jeff Branick, County Judge

Commissioner Eddie Arnold, Commissioner Pct. No. 1

Commissioner Brent Weaver, Commissioner Pct. No. 2

Commissioner Michael Sinegal, Commissioner Pct. No. 3

Commissioner Everette D. Alfred, Commissioner Pct. No. 4

Honorable G. Mitch Woods, Sheriff (ABSENT)

Rod Carroll

Honorable Carolyn L. Guidry , County Clerk

When the following proceedings were had and orders made, to-wit:
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Jeff R. Branick, County Judge
Eddie Arnold, Commissioner, Precinct One

Brent A. Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct Two
Michael S. Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct Three
Everette "Bo" Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct Four

NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA
OF COMMISSIONERS' COURT

OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
March 31, 2014

Notice is hereby given that the Commissioners' Court of Jefferson
County, Texas, willmeet at 1:30 PM, on the 31st day ofMarch 2014 at its
regular meeting place in the Commissioner's Courtroom, 4th Floor, Jefferson County Courthouse,
1149 Pearl Street, Beaumont, Texas.

Said meeting will be a Special for the purpose of transacting the routine
business of the County. Persons with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids for
services who wish to attend this meeting should contact the County Judge's
Office to arrange for assistance.

In addition to the routine business of the County, the subject of said
meeting will be the following:

INVOCATION: Michael S. Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct Three

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Everette "Bo" Alfred, Commissioner,
Precinct Four
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PURCHASING:

1. Receive and file bids for (IFB 14-006/JW), Term Contract for Marine
Motor Fuel for Jefferson County.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 9 - 60

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

2. Consider and approve specifications for (IFB 14-009/JW), Term Contract
for Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 61 - 93

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

3. Consider and approve award, execute, receive and file Acceptance of
Offer for (IFB 14-006/JW), Term Contract for Marine Motor Fuel for
Jefferson County with C&I Oil Company, Inc., as shown on Attachment
A.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 94 - 96

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

CONSTABLE PRECINCT 6:

4. Consider and possibly approve the hiring of Furtis Doffney as a Deputy
Constable with Constable, Pct.6 in accordance with Local Government
Code (LGC) 86.011.

Action: TABLED

COUNTY AUDITOR:

5. Consider and approve budget amendment - County Court at Law III -
replacement of video and audio equipment.

120-2053-412-6001 OFFICE MACHINES $7,473.00

3



Notice of Meeting and Agenda and Minutes
March 31, 2014

120-9999-415-9999 CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATION $7,473.00

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 97 - 100

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

6. Consider and approve budget transfer - Road & Bridge, Precinct 2 -
additional cost for training.

112-0207-431-5062 TRAVEL EXPENSE $2,500.00

112-0202-431-3079 CRUSHED STONE $2,500.00

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 101 - 101

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

7. Consider and approve budget transfer - Law Library - purchase of two
computers.

212-4080-455-6002 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT $3,000.00

212-4080-455-3010 BOOKS-PRINTED $3,000.00

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 102 - 102

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

8. Receive and file Jefferson County Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 103 - 326

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED
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9. Regular County Bills - check #391843 through check #392129.
SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 327 - 336

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

COUNTY CLERK:

10. Consider and possibly approve attached Early Voting locations and
hours for the May 10, 2014, Special Election to be held jointly with
Water District No. 10.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 337 - 337

Motion by: Commissioner Alfred
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

11. Consider, possibly approve, receive and file a Special Warranty Deed for
conveyance of property from the City of Port Arthur, Texas to Jefferson
County, Texas of the north 20 feet of right-of-way of Shreveport Avenue
in Port Arthur, Texas.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 338 - 355

Motion by: Commissioner Alfred
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

12. Receive and file Certificates of Completion for Commissioner’s Eddie
Arnold, Brent Weaver, Michael Sinegal, and Everette Alfred who have
successfully completed the continuing education provisions of Article
81.0025 of the Texas Local Government Code for 2013.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 356 - 362

Motion by: Commissioner Alfred
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED
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13.  Conduct a public hearing to consider the adoption of an Order
regulating and establishing aesthetic visual standards for automotive
wrecking and salvage yards, junkyards, recycling and demolition and
outdoor resale businesses pursuant to Texas Local Government Code
Sec. 234.002 et seq.

open public hearing at 01;34pm no response from the public--- hearing
closed

Action: NONE

14.  Consider, possibly approve, receive and file a Resolution adopting an
Order for regulations to establish visual aesthetic standards for
automotive wrecking and salvage yards, junkyards, recycling, demolition
and outdoor resale businesses in the unincorporated areas of Jefferson
County pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Sec. 234.002 et seq.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 363 - 365

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

15. Consider, possibly approve, authorize the County Judge to execute, and
receive and file an Inter-local Agreement between Jefferson County and
Nederland Independent School District for repairs of roadways and
parking lots pursuant to Chapter 791, Texas Government Code.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 366 - 366

Motion by: Commissioner Alfred
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

16.  Consider and possibly approve the appointment of Mrs. Dolores
Sennette to the Spindletop Center Board of Trustees to complete the
unexpired term of Ms. Frances Gallow thru August 31, 2014 and then to
serve a two- year term September 1, 2014 thru August 31, 2016. (This
appointment is by Commissioner Alfred.)

Motion by: Commissioner Alfred
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED
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17.  Receive and file executed Inter-Governmental Agreement between
Jefferson County and Jefferson County Drainage District # 6 for hauling
asphalt.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 367 - 370

Motion by: Commissioner Alfred
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

18.  Consider and possibly approve out of state travel for Terri Looney
,Coastal and Marine Resources Agent, to attend training in Seattle, WA
for the National Ocean Sciences Bowl Finals May 1thru May 4,
2014.Registration and travel are being paid by the National Ocean
Sciences Bowl Consortium.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 371 - 373

Motion by: Commissioner Alfred
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

RISK MANAGEMENT:

19. Consider and possibly approve Mosquito Control Liability Insurance
renewal with Old Republic Insurance Company, effective April 24,
2014, at a flat annual renewal premium of $15,750.00.

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal, Commissioner Alfred
Action: APPROVED

Other Business:

Receive reports from Elected Officials and staff on matters of community
interest without taking action.

***DISCUSSION ON ANY OTHER ITEM NOT ON AGENDA WITHOUT
TAKING ACTION.
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______________________________________________
Jeff R. Branick
County Judge
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JEFFERSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
Deborah L. Clark, Purchasing Agent

 
 

 
1149 Pearl Street, Beaumont, TX  77701  409-835-8593  Fax 409-835-8456 

 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Advertisement for Invitation for Bids 
 

March 31, 2014 
 
Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be accepted by the Jefferson County Purchasing 
Department for IFB 14-009/JW, Term Contract for Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County.  
Specifications for this project may be obtained from the Jefferson County website, 
http://www.co.jefferson. tx.us, or by calling 409-835-8593. 
 
Bids are to be sealed and addressed to the Purchasing Agent with the bid number and name 
marked on the outside of the envelope.  Bidders shall forward an original and two (2) copies of 
their bid to the address shown below.  Jefferson County does not accept bids submitted 
electronically.  Late bids will be rejected as non-responsive.  Bids will be publicly opened and 
read aloud in the Jefferson County Commissioners’ Courtroom at the time and date below.  
Bidders are invited to attend the sealed bid opening. 
 
 

BID NAME: Term Contract for Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County 
BID NO: IFB 14-009/JW 
DUE DATE/TIME: 11:00 AM, Tuesday, April 22, 2014 
MAIL OR DELIVER TO: Jefferson County Purchasing Department 
 1149 Pearl Street, 1st Floor 
 Beaumont, Texas  77701 
 

Any questions relating to these requirements should be directed to Jamey West,        
Contract Specialist at 409-835-8593. 
 
All interested firms are invited to submit a bid in accordance with the terms and conditions 
stated in this bid. 
 
RESPONDENTS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE INVITATION. 
 

Deborah L. Clark 
Purchasing Agent 
Jefferson County, Texas 
 
Publish: Beaumont Enterprise & Port Arthur News –  April 2nd & April 9th, 2014 
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IFB 14-009/JW 
Term Contract for Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County 

Bids due:  11:00 AM, Tuesday, April 22, 2014 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 Return 
 with 
 Bid Description Page(s) 

  Table of Contents................................................................................................  1 

  Instructions to Bidders.......................................................................................  2-5 

  General Conditions of Bidding and Terms of Contract...................................  6-10 

  Special Requirements/Instructions...................................................................  11-13 

  Minimum Specifications.....................................................................................  14 

 X Offer to Contract Form .......................................................................................  15 

 X Acceptance of Offer Form..................................................................................  16 

 X Bid Form ..............................................................................................................  17-20 

 X Vendor References .............................................................................................  21 

 X Signature Page....................................................................................................  22 

 X Conflict of Interest Questionnaire .....................................................................  23-24 

 X Good Faith Effort Determination Checklist ......................................................  25 

 X Notice of Intent....................................................................................................  26 

 X HUB Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form .....................................  27-30 

 X Residence Certification/Tax Form.....................................................................  31 

 X Bid Affidavit.........................................................................................................  32 

 
BIDDER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RETURNING ALL REQUIRED PAGES (MARKED WITH AN “X” ABOVE) 

WITH THE BID.  ADDITIONALLY, BIDDER MUST MONITOR THE PURCHASING WEB SITE 
(HTTP://WWW.CO.JEFFERSON.TX.US/PURCHASING/MAIN.HTM) TO SEE IF ADDENDA OR 
ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS HAVE BEEN POSTED.  FAILURE TO RETURN ALL REQUIRED 

FORMS COULD RESULT IN A BID BEING DECLARED AS NON-RESPONSIVE. 
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Instructions to Bidders 
 

1. Bid Submission 

Bids must be submitted in complete original form by mail or messenger to the following address: 

Jefferson County Purchasing Department 
1149 Pearl Street, First Floor 
Beaumont, TX  77701 

Bids will be accepted at the above address until the time and date specified herein, and immedi-
ately after will be publicly opened and read aloud. 

All bids shall be tightly sealed in an opaque envelope and plainly marked with the               
Bid Number,  Bid Name, Bid Due Date, and the Bidder’s Name and Address; and shall be 
addressed to the Purchasing Agent.   

Late bids will not be accepted and will be returned unopened to the bidder. 

All bids submitted in response to this invitation shall become the property of Jefferson County and 
will be a matter of public record available for review. 

2. Courthouse Security 

Bidders are advised that all visitors to the Courthouse must pass through Security.  Bidders 
planning to hand deliver bids must allow time to get through Security, as a delay in entering 
the Courthouse will not be accepted as an excuse for late submittal.  Mondays and Tuesdays 
are particularly heavy days.  Bidders are strongly urged to plan accordingly. 

3. Preparation of Bids 

The bid shall be legibly printed in ink or typed. 

If a unit price or extension already entered is to be altered, it shall be crossed out and initialed in ink 
by the bidder. 

The bid shall be legally signed and shall include the complete address of the bidder. 

Jefferson County is exempt from Federal and State Sales Taxes, and such taxes shall not be 
included in bid prices. 

4. Signatures 

All bids, notifications, claims, and statements must be signed by an individual authorized to bind the 
bidder.  The individual signing certifies, under penalty of perjury, that he or she has the legal 
authorization to bind the bidder. 

5. County Holidays – 2014: 

   January 1 Wednesday     New Year’s Day 

   January 20 Monday     Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

   February 17 Monday     President’s Day 

   April 18 Friday     Good Friday 

   May 26 Monday     Memorial Day 

   July 4 Friday                                 Independence Day 

   September 1 Monday      Labor Day 

   November 11 Tuesday      Veterans Day 

   November 27-28 Thursday-Friday      Thanksgiving 

   December 25-26 Thursday-Friday      Christmas 
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6. Rejection or Withdrawal 

Submission of additional terms, conditions or agreements with the bid document are grounds for 
deeming a bid non-responsive and may result in bid rejection.  Jefferson County reserves the right 
to reject any and all bids and to waive any informalities and minor irregularities or defects in bids.  
Bids may be withdrawn in person by a bidder or authorized representative, provided their identity is 
made known and a receipt is signed for the bid, but only if the withdrawal is made prior to the time 
set for receipt of bids.  Bids are an irrevocable offer and may not be withdrawn within 90 days after 
opening date. 

7. Award 

The bid will be awarded to the responsible, responsive bidder(s) whose bid, conforming to the 
solicitation, will be most advantageous to Jefferson County – price and other factors considered.  
Unless otherwise specified in this IFB, Jefferson County reserves the right to accept a bid in whole 
or in part, and to award by item or by group, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest of 
Jefferson County.  Any bidder who is in default to Jefferson County at the time of submittal of the 
bid shall have that bid rejected.  Jefferson County reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms 
with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial nonconformity in the offer, as 
determined by Jefferson County, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected. 

In evaluating bids, Jefferson County shall consider the qualifications of the bidders, and, where 
applicable, operating costs, delivery time, maintenance requirements, performance data, and 
guarantees of materials and equipment.  In addition, Jefferson County may conduct such investi-
gation as it deems necessary to assist in the evaluation of a bid and to establish the responsibility, 
qualifications, and financial ability of the bidders to fulfill the contract. 

Jefferson County reserves the right to award this contract on the basis of lowest and best bid in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, to waive any formality or irregularity, to make 
awards to more than one offeror, and/or to reject any or all bids.  In the event the lowest dollar 
offeror meeting specifications is not a awarded a contract, Offeror may appear before the Com-
missioners’ Court and present evidence concerning Offeror responsibility after officially notifying the 
Office of the Purchasing Agent of Offeror’s intent to appear. 

8. Contract 

A response to an IFB is an offer to contract with Jefferson County based upon the terms, condi-
tions, and specifications contained in the IFB.  Bids do not become contracts unless and until they 
are executed by Jefferson County, eliminating a formal signing of a separate contract.  For that 
reason, all of the terms and conditions of the contract are contained in the IFB, unless any of the 
terms and conditions is modified by an IFB Amendment, a Contract Amendment, or by mutually 
agreed terms and conditions in the contract documents. 

9. Waiver of Subrogation 

Bidder and bidder’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever with regard to subroga-
tion against Jefferson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or property 
damages resulting from bidder’s performance under this agreement. 

10. Fiscal Funding 

A multi-year contract (if requested by the specifications) continuing as a result of an extension 
option must include fiscal funding out.  If, for any reason, funds are not appropriated to continue the 
contract, said contract shall become null and void. 

11. Bid Results 

Bid results are not provided in response to telephone inquiries.  A preliminary tabulation of bids 
received will be posted on the Purchasing web page (http://co.jefferson.tx.us/ purchasing/main.htm) 
as soon as possible following bid opening.  A final tabulation will be posted following bid award, and 
will also be available for review in the Purchasing Department. 

12. Changes and Addenda to Bid Documents 

Each change or addendum issued in relation to this IFB document will be on file in the Office of the 
Purchasing Agent, and will be posted on the Purchasing web site as soon as possible.  It shall be 
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the bidder’s responsibility to make inquiry as to change or addenda issued, and to monitor the web 
site.  All such changes or addenda shall become part of the contract and all bidders shall be bound 
by such addenda.  Information on all changes or addenda issued will be available at the Office of 
the County Purchasing Agent. 

13. Specifications 

Unless otherwise stated by the bidder, the bid will be considered as being in accordance with 
Jefferson County’s applicable standard specifications, and any special specifications outlined in the 
bid document.  References to a particular trade name, manufacturer’s catalogue, or model number 
are made for descriptive purposes to guide the bidder in interpreting the requirements of Jefferson 
County, and should not be construed as excluding bids on other types of materials, equipment, and 
supplies.  However, the bidder, if awarded a contract, will be required to furnish the particular item 
referred to in the specifications or description unless departure or substitution is clearly noted and 
described in the bid.  Jefferson County reserves the right to determine if equipment/ product being 
bid is an acceptable alternate.  All goods shall be new unless otherwise so stated in the bid.  Any 
unsolicited alternate bid, or any changes, insertions, or omissions to the terms and conditions, 
specifications, or any other requirements of the bid, may be considered non-responsive. 

14. Delivery 

Bids shall include all charges for delivery, packing, crating, containers, etc.  Unless other-
wise stated by the bidder (in writing on the included Bid Form), prices bid will be considered 
as being based on F.O.B. destination/delivered freight included. 

15. Interpretation of Bid and/or Contract Documents 

All inquiries shall be made within a reasonable time prior to the date and time fixed for the bid 
opening, in order that a written response in the form of an addendum, if required, can be processed 
before the bids are opened.  Inquiries received that are not made in a timely fashion may or may 
not be considered. 

16. Currency 

Prices calculated by the bidder shall be stated in U.S. dollars. 

17. Pricing 

Prices shall be stated in units of quantity specified in the bid documents.  In case of discrepancy in 
computing the amount of the bid, the unit price shall govern. 

18. Notice to Proceed/Purchase Order 

The successful bidder may not commence work under this contract until authorized to do so by the 
Purchasing Agent. 

19. Certification 

By signing the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, bidder certifies: 

 The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 

 The bidder has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, 
or service to any public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

 The bidder hereby certifies that the individual signing the bid is an authorized agent for 
the bidder and has the authority to bind the bidder to the contract. 

20. Definitions 

“County” – Jefferson County, Texas. 

“Contractor” – The bidder whose proposal is accepted by Jefferson County. 
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21. Minority-Women Business Enterprise Participation 

It is the desire of Jefferson County to increase the participation of Minority (MBE) and women-
owned (WBE) businesses in its contracting and procurement programs.  While the County does not 
have any preference or set aside programs in place, it is committed to a policy of equitable 
participation for these firms. 
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General Terms and Conditions Of Bidding 
and Terms Of Contract 

 
By execution of this document, the vendor accepts all general and special conditions of the contract as 
outlined below and in the specifications and plans. 

1. Bidding 

1.1 Bids.  All bids must be submitted on the bid form furnished in this package. 

1.2 Authorized Signatures.  The bid must be executed personally by the vendor, duly author-
ized partner of the partnership, or duly authorized officer of the corporation.  If executed by an 
agent, a power of attorney or other evidence of authority to act on behalf of the vendor shall 
accompany the bid to become a valid bid. 

1.3 Late Bids.  Bids must be in the office of the Jefferson County Purchasing Agent before or at 
the specified time and date bids are due.  Bids received after the submission deadline shall be 
rejected as non-responsive and returned unopened. 

1.4 Withdrawal of Bids Prior to Bid Opening.  A bid may be withdrawn before the opening date 
by submitting a written request to the Purchasing Agent.  If time allows, the bidder may submit a 
new bid.  Bidder assumes full responsibility for submitting a new bid before or at the specified time 
and date bids are due.  Jefferson County reserves the right to withdraw a request for bids before 
the opening date.  

1.5 Withdrawal of Bids after Bid Opening.  Bidder agrees that its offer may not be withdrawn 
or cancelled by the vendor for a period of ninety (90) days following the date and time designated 
for the receipt of bids unless otherwise stated in the bid and/or specifications. 

1.6 Bid Amounts.  Bids shall show net prices, extensions where applicable and net total.  In 
case of conflict between unit price and extension, the unit price will govern.  Any ambiguity in the 
bid as a result of omission, error, unintelligible or illegible wording shall be interpreted in the favor of 
Jefferson County. 

1.7 Exceptions and/or Substitutions.  All bids meeting the intent of the specifications and plans 
will be considered for award.  Vendors taking exception to the specifications and plans, or offering 
substitutions, shall state these exceptions in the section provided.  If bid is made on an article other 
than the one specified, which a bidder considers comparable, the name and grade of said article 
must be specified in the bid and sufficient specifications and descriptive data must accompany 
same to permit thorough evaluation.  The absence of stated exceptions and/or substitutions shall 
indicate that the vendor has not taken any exceptions to the specifications and shall be responsible 
to perform in strict accordance with the specifications.  As a matter of practice, Jefferson County 
rejects exception(s) and /or substitutions as non-responsive but reserves the right to accept any 
and/or all of the exception(s) and/or substitution(s) deemed to be in the best interest of Jefferson 
County. 

1.8 Alternates.  The Invitation for Bid and/or specifications may expressly allow bidder to submit 
an alternate bid.  Presence of such an offer shall not be considered an indication of non-respon-
siveness. 

1.9 Descriptions.  Unless otherwise specified, any reference to make, manufacturer and/or 
model used in the bid specifications is merely descriptive and not restrictive, and is used only to 
indicate type, style, or quality of material desired.  

1.10 Bid Alterations.  Bids cannot be altered or amended after submission deadline.  Any 
interlineations, alterations, or erasures made before opening time must be initialed by the signer of 
the bid, guaranteeing authenticity. 

1.11 Tax Exempt Status.  Jefferson County is exempt from federal excise tax and state sales 
tax.  Unless the bid form or specifications specifically indicate otherwise, the bid price must be net, 
exclusive of above-mentioned taxes and will be so construed.  Therefore, the bid price shall not 
include taxes. 
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1.12 Quantities.  Quantities indicated are estimated quantities only and are not a commitment 
to buy.  Approximate usage does not constitute an order, but only implies the probable quantity that 
will be used.  Commodities will be ordered on an as-needed basis.  Bidder is responsible for accu-
rate final counts. 

1.13 Bid Award.  Award of contract shall be made to the most responsible, responsive bidder, 
whose offer is determined to be the best value, taking into consideration the relative importance of 
price.  Jefferson County reserves the right to be the sole judge as to whether items bid will serve 
the purpose intended.  Jefferson County reserves the right to accept or reject in part or in whole 
any bid submitted, and to waive any technicalities or informalities for the best interest of the County.  
Jefferson County reserves the right to award based upon individual line items, sections or total bid. 

1.14 Silence of Specifications for Complete Units.  All materials, equipment and/or parts that 
will become a portion of the completed work, including items not specifically stated herein but, nec-
essary to render the service(s) complete and operational per the specifications, are to be included 
in the bid price.  Vendor may be required to furnish evidence that the service, as bid, will meet or 
exceed these requirements. 

1.15 Addenda.  Any interpretations, corrections or changes to the specifications and plans will 
be made by addenda no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the bid opening.  Addenda will be 
posted on the Purchasing web site.  Vendors are responsible for monitoring the web site in order to 
remain informed on addenda.  Vendors shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda with submission 
of bid. 

1.16 General Bid Bond/Surety Requirements.  Failure to furnish bid bond/surety, if requested, 
will result in bid being declared non-responsive.  Non-responsive bids will not be considered for 
award. 

1.17 General Insurance Requirements.  Failure to furnish Affidavit of Insurance, if required in 
these specifications, will result in bid being declared non-responsive.  Non-responsive bids will not 
be considered for award. 

1.18 Responsiveness.  A responsive bid shall substantially conform to the requirements of this 
Invitation to Bid and/or specifications contained herein.  Bidders who substitute any other terms, 
conditions, specifications and/or requirements or who qualify their bids in such a manner as to nul-
lify or limit their liability to the contracting entity shall have their bids deemed non-responsive.  Also, 
bids containing any clause that would limit contracting authority shall be considered non-respon-
sive.  Examples of non-responsive bids include but shall not be limited to:  a) bids that fail to con-
form to required delivery schedules as set forth in the bid request; b) bids with prices qualified in 
such a manner that the bid price cannot be determined, such as with vague wording that may 
include “price in effect at the time of delivery,” and c) bids made contingent upon award of other 
bids currently under consideration. 

1.19 Responsible Standing of Bidder.  To be considered for award, bidder must at least:  have 
the ability to obtain adequate financial resources, be able to comply with required or proposed 
delivery/completion schedule, have a satisfactory record of performance; have a satisfactory record 
of integrity and ethics, and be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive award.  

1.20 Proprietary Data.  Bidder may, by written request, indicate as confidential any portion(s) of 
a bid that contain proprietary information, including manufacturing and/or design processes exclu-
sive to the vendor.  Jefferson County will protect from public disclosure such portions of a bid, 
unless directed otherwise by legal authority, including existing Open Records Acts. 

1.21 Public Bid Opening.  Bidders are invited to be present at the opening of bids.  After the 
official opening of bids, a period of not less than one week is necessary to evaluate bids.  The 
amount of time necessary for bid evaluation may vary and is determined solely by the County.  
Following the bid evaluation, all bids submitted are available for public review. 

2. Performance 

2.1 Design, Strength, and Quality.  Design, strength, and quality of materials and workmanship 
must conform to the highest standards of manufacturing and engineering practices.  The apparent 
silence of specifications and/or plans as to any detailed description concerning any point shall be 

IFB 14-009/JW, Term Contract for Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County                                                                            Page 7 of 32 
 

68



regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices are to prevail.  All interpretations of 
these specifications and/or plans shall be made on the basis of this statement. 

2.2 Age and Manufacture.  All tangible goods being bid must be new and unused, unless other-
wise specified, in first-class condition, of current manufacture, and furnished ready to use.  All items 
not specifically mentioned that are required for a complete unit shall be furnished. 

2.3 Delivery Location.  All deliveries will be made to the address(es) specified on the purchase 
order during normal working hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, unless other-
wise authorized by the Purchasing Agent or designee. 

2.4 Delivery Schedule.  Delivery time may be an important consideration in the evaluation of 
best value.  The maximum number of days necessary for delivery ARO shall be stated in the space, 
if provided, on the bid form. 

2.5 Delivery Charges.  All delivery and freight charges, F.O.B. destination shown on Jefferson 
County purchase order, as necessary to perform contract are to be included in the bid price. 

2.6 Installation Charges.  All charges for assembly, installation and set-up shall be included in 
the bid price.  Unless otherwise stated, assembly, installation and set-up will be required. 

2.7 Operating Instructions and Training.  Clear and concise operating instructions and 
descriptive literature will be provided in English, if requested.  On-site detailed training in the safe 
and efficient use and general maintenance of item(s) purchased shall be provided as needed at the 
request of Jefferson County.  Instructions and training shall be at no additional cost to the County. 

2.8 Storage.  Bidder agrees to provide storage of custom ordered materials, if requested, for up 
to thirty (30) calendar days. 

2.9 Compliance with Federal, State, County, and Local Laws.  Bids must comply with all fed-
eral, state, county and local laws, including, but not limited to, all applicable standard safety, emis-
sion, and noise control requirements.  Any vehicles or equipment shall contain all standard safety, 
emission, and noise control requirements required for the types and sizes of equipment at the time 
of their manufacture.  The contractor agrees, during the performance of work or service, to comply 
with all applicable codes and ordinances of Jefferson County or the State of Texas as they may 
apply, as these laws may now read, or as they may hereafter be changed or amended. 

2.10 OSHA.  The bidder will certify all equipment complies with all regulations and conditions 
stipulated under the Williams-Steiger Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1971, as amended.  
The successful bidder will further certify that all items furnished under this project will conform and 
comply with federal and State of Texas OSHA standards.  The successful bidder will agree to 
indemnify and hold harmless Jefferson County for any and all damages that may be assessed 
against the County. 

2.11 Patents and Copyrights.  The successful vendor agrees to protect the County from claims 
involving infringements of patents and/or copyrights. 

2.12 Samples, Demonstrations and Testing.  At Jefferson County’s request and direction, bid-
der shall provide product samples and/or testing of items bid to ensure compliance with specifica-
tions.  Samples, demonstrations and/or testing may be requested at any point prior to or following 
bid award.  Samples, demonstrations and/or testing may be requested upon delivery and/or any 
point during the term of resulting contract.  All samples (including return thereof), demonstrations, 
and/or testing shall be at the expense of the bidder/vendor. 

2.13 Acceptability.  All articles enumerated in the bid shall be subject to inspection by an officer 
designated for that purpose by Jefferson County.  If found inferior to the quality called for, or not 
equal in value to the specifications, deficient in workmanship or otherwise, this fact shall be certified 
to the Purchasing Agent, who shall have the right to reject the whole or any part of the same.  Items 
and/or work determined to be contrary to specifications must be replaced at the vendor’s expense.  
Inferior items not retrieved by the vendor within thirty (30) calendar days, or an otherwise agreed 
upon time, shall become the property of the County.  If disposal of such items warrants an expense, 
an amount equal to the disposal expense will be deducted from amounts payable to the vendor. 

2.14 Maintenance.  Maintenance required for equipment bid should be available in Jefferson 
County by a manufacturer authorized maintenance facility.  Cost for this service shall be shown on 
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the bid sheet as requested or on a separate sheet, as required.  If Jefferson County opts to include 
maintenance, it shall be so stated in the purchase order and said cost will be included.  Service will 
commence only upon expiration of applicable warranties and should be priced accordingly. 

2.15 Material Safety Data Sheets.  Under the “Hazardous Communications Act,” common 
known as the “Texas Right to Know Act,” a bidder must provide the user department, with each 
delivery, material safety data sheets which are applicable to hazardous substances defined in the 
Act.  Failure of the bidder to furnish this documentation, will be cause to reject any bid applying 
thereto. 

2.16 Evaluation.  Evaluation shall be used as a determinant as to which services are the most 
efficient and/or most economical for the County.  It shall be based on all factors having a bearing on 
price and performance of the items in the user environment.  All bids are subject to tabulation by 
the Jefferson County Purchasing Department and recommendation to Jefferson County Commis-
sioners’ Court.  Compliance with all bid requirements and needs of the using department are con-
sidered in evaluating bids.  Pricing is not the only criteria for making a recommendation.  The Jef-
ferson County Purchasing Department reserves to right to contact any bidder, at any time, to clarify, 
verify or requirement information with regard to this bid. 

3. Purchase Orders and Payment 

3.1 Purchase Orders.  A purchase order(s) shall be generated by the Jefferson County Purchas-
ing Agent to the successful vendor.  The purchase order number must appear on all itemized 
invoices and packing slips.  The County will not be held responsible for any work orders placed 
and/or performed without a valid current purchase order number.  Payment will be made for all ser-
vices rendered and accepted by the contract administrator for which a valid invoice has been 
received. 

3.2 Invoices.  All invoices shall reference the Purchase Order number.  Invoices shall reference 
the bid item number or a detailed description for each item invoiced.  If an item purchased and 
itemized on the invoice does not correspond to an item in any of the categories awarded to the 
vendor, invoice shall reference the item as “N/C” to indicate that it is a non-contract item.  This 
requirement is to assist the County in verifying contract pricing on all invoices. Payment will be 
made under terms of net thirty (30) days unless otherwise agreed upon by seller and the purchas-
ing department. 

3.3 Prompt Payment.  In accordance with the State of Texas Prompt Payment Act, Article 601f 
V.T.C.S., payment will be made after receive and acceptance by the County of the merchandise 
ordered and of a valid invoice.  Successful bidder(s) is required to pay subcontractors within ten 
(10) days after the successful bidder receives payment from the County. 

3.4 Funding.  Jefferson County is operated and funded on an October 1 to September 30 basis; 
accordingly, the County reserves the right to terminate, without liability to the County, any contract 
for which funding is not available. 

4. Contract 

4.1 Contract Definition.  The General Conditions of Bidding and Terms of Contract, Specifica-
tions, Plans, Bidding Forms, Addenda, and any other documents made a part of this bid shall con-
stitute the complete bid.  This bid, when duly accepted by Jefferson County, shall constitute a con-
tract equally binding between the successful bidder and Jefferson County. 

4.2 Contract Agreement.  Once a contract is awarded, the unit prices offered by the successful 
bidder shall remain firm for the term of the contract.  Contract shall commence on date of award 
and, upon agreement between vendor(s) and Jefferson County, may be renewed annually for up to 
four (4) additional years. 

4.3 Change Order.  No different or additional terms will become part of this contract with the 
exception of a change order.  No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or 
affect the terms, conditions or specifications stated in the resulting contract.  All change orders to 
the contract will be made in writing and at the discretion and approval of Jefferson County.  No 
change order will be binding unless signed by an authorized representative of the County and the 
vendor. 
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4.4 Price Re-determination.  A price re-determination may be requested at the time of annual 
renewal.  All requests for price re-determination shall be in written form.  Cause for such request, 
i.e., manufacturer’s direct cost, postage rates, Railroad Commission rates, Federal/State minimum 
wage law, Federal/State unemployment taxes, F.I.C.A, Insurance Coverage Rates, etc., shall be 
substantiated in writing by the source of the cost increase.  The bidder’s past experience of honor-
ing contracts at the bid price will be an important consideration in the evaluation of the lowest and 
best bid.  Jefferson County reserves the right to accept or reject any/all requests for price re-deter-
mination as it deems to be in the best interest of the County. 

4.5 Termination.  Jefferson County reserves the right to terminate the contract for default if the 
bidder breached any of the terms therein, including warranties of bidder or if the bidder becomes 
insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of 
any other remedies which Jefferson County may have in law or equity.  Default may be construed 
as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or service within the proper amount of 
time, and/or to properly perform any and all services required to Jefferson County’s satisfaction 
and/or to meet all other obligations and requirements.  Contracts may be terminated without cause 
upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to either party unless otherwise specified.  Jefferson County 
reserves the right to award canceled contract to the next lowest bidder.  Bidder, in submitting this 
bid, agrees that Jefferson County shall not be liable to prosecution for damages in the event that 
the County declares the bidder in default. 

4.6 Conflict of Interest.  Employees of the County are not permitted to maintain financial interest 
in, or receive payment, directly or indirectly, borrow from, lend to, invest in, or engage in any sub-
stantial financial transaction with any individual, organization, supplier, or subcontractor who does 
business with the County without disclosure.  When conflict of interest is discovered, it shall be 
grounds for termination of contract. 

4.7 Injuries or Damages Resulting from Negligence.  Successful vendor shall defend, indem-
nify and save harmless Jefferson County and all its officers, agents and employees from all suits, 
actions, or other claims of any character, name and description brought for or on account of any 
injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property on account of any 
negligent act or fault of the successful vendor, or of any agent, employee, subcontractor or supplier 
in the execution of, or performance under, any contract which may result from bid award.  Suc-
cessful vendor shall pay any judgment with cost which may be obtained against Jefferson County 
growing out of such injury or damages. 

4.8 Interest by Public Officials.  No public official shall have interest in this contract, in accor-
dance with Texas Local Government Code. 

4.9 Warranty.  The successful vendor shall warrant that all materials utilized in the performance 
of this contract shall conform to the proposed specifications and/or all warranties as stated in the 
Uniform Commercial Code and be free from all defects in material, workmanship and title. 

4.10 Uniform Commercial Code.  The successful vendor and Jefferson County agree that both 
parties have all rights, duties, and remedies available as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code.  

4.11 Venue.  This agreement will be governed and construed according to the laws of the State 
of Texas.  This agreement is performable in the County of Jefferson, Texas. 

4.12 Sale, Assignment, or Transfer of Contract.  The successful vendor shall not sell, assign, 
transfer or convey this contract, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Jefferson 
County. 

4.13 Silence of Specifications.  The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detailed 
description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial 
practices are to prevail.  All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this 
statement. 
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Special Requirements/Instructions 

 
The following requirements and instructions supersede General Requirements where applicable.   

1. Bid Requirement 

Each bidder shall insure that all parts of the bid are completed and returned.  The Table of Contents 
indicates specifically which pages need to be returned; these pages shall constitute the vendor’s bid.  
Vendor shall use an opaque envelope, clearly indicating on the outside the Bid Number, Bid 
Description, and marked “SEALED BID”.  Jefferson County shall not be responsible for any effort or 
cost expended in the preparation of a response to this IFB.  All protests should be coordinated through 
the Purchasing Office prior to award recommendation to Commissioners’ Court.  Bidders shall 
submit one (1) original and two (2) copies of the bid. 

2. Multiple Vendor Award 

Jefferson County reserves the right to award this contract to more than one vendor at the County’s 
discretion. 

3. Delivery  

If delivery is required, all items must be packaged so as to be protected from damage during shipping 
and handling.  Any item(s) damaged in shipping must be replaced in kind, or repaired, by the 
contractor, at the discretion of, and at no additional charge to, Jefferson County. 

4. Payment 

Jefferson County will pay original invoices that clearly itemize the goods and/or services provided as to 
quantity, part number, description, price, applicable discount (if any), labor charges showing time 
differential, if applicable and if previously agreed to, and delivery, installation, and set-up costs, if 
applicable and if previously agreed to.  Only charges as stated on the Bid Form(s) submitted as a part 
of the bid will be considered. 

Invoices must indicate Jefferson County as applicable, the address to which the product(s) and/or 
service(s) were delivered, and the applicable purchase order number.  Invoices will be matched to 
delivery tickets prior to payment; therefore, all delivery tickets should have an accurate description of 
the product(s) and/or service(s). 

5. Usage Reports 

Jefferson County reserves the right to request, and receive at no additional cost, up to two (2) times 
during the contract period, a usage report detailing the products and/or services furnished to date 
under a contract resulting from this IFB.  The reports must be furnished no later than five (5) working 
days after written request and itemize all purchases to date by Jefferson County department, 
description of each item purchased, including manufacturer, quantity of each item purchased, per unit 
and extended price of each item purchased, and total amount and price of all items purchased. 

6. Insurance 

The contractor (including any and all subcontractors as defined in Section 7.1.3 below) shall, at all 
times during the term of this contract, maintain insurance coverages with not less than the type and 
requirements shown below.  Such insurance is to be provided at the sole cost of the contractor.  These 
requirements do not establish limits of the contractor’s liability. 

All policies of insurance shall waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, employees 
and agents. 

Contractor shall furnish Jefferson County with Certificate of Insurance naming Jefferson County as 
additional insured. 
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All insurance must be written by an insurer licensed to conduct business in the State of Texas. 

Minimum Insurance Requirements 

Public Liability $1,000,000.00 
Excess Liability $1,000,000.00 
Property Insurance Improvements & Betterments   
Workers’ Compensation Statutory Coverage (see attached) 

 

7. Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

7.1 Definitions: 

7.1.1 Certificate of coverage (“Certificate”) – A copy of a certificate of insurance, a cer-
tificate of authority to self-insure issued by the commission, or a coverage agree-
ment, DWC-81, DWC-82, DWC-83, or DWC-84 showing statutory workers’ 
compensation insurance coverage for the person’s or entity’s employees providing 
services on a project, for the duration of the project. 

7.1.2 Duration of the project – Includes the time from the beginning of the work on the 
project until the contractor’s/person’s work on the project has been completed and 
accepted by the governmental entity. 

7.1.3 Persons providing services on the project (“subcontractor”) in article 406.096 – 
Includes all persons or entities performing all or part of the services under the con-
tractor has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of whether that person 
contracted directly with the contractor and regardless of whether that person has 
employees.  This includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractor, 
leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or 
employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project.  
“Services” includes, without limitation, providing, hauling or delivering equipment or 
materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service related to a project.  
“Services” does not include activities unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage 
vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets. 

7.2 The Contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification code and 
payroll amounts and filing any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of 
Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011(44) for all employees of the contractor providing services on 
the project, for the duration of the project. 

7.3 The Contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental entity prior to being 
awarded the contract – refer to Section 6 above. 

7.4 If the coverage period shown on the Contractor’s current certificate of coverage ends during the 
duration of the project, the Contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new 
certificate of coverage with the governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended. 

7.5 The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the 
governmental entity: 

7.5.1 A certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the 
governmental entity will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage for all 
persons providing services on the project; and 

7.5.2 No later than seven (7) days after receipt by the Contractor, a new certificate of cov-
erage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current 
certificate ends during the duration of the project. 

7.6 The Contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and 
for one (1) year thereafter. 

7.7 The Contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal 
delivery, within ten (10) days after the contractor knew or should have known, of any change that 
materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project. 
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7.8 The Contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed 
by the Texas Department of Workers’ Compensation, informing all persons providing services on 
the project that they are required to be covered, and stating how a person may verify coverage 
and report lack of coverage. 

7.9 The Contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services 
on a project to: 

7.9.1 Provide coverage, based on reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts 
and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of 
Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011(44) for all its employees providing services on 
the project, for the duration of the project. 

7.9.2 Provide to the Contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project a certifi-
cate of coverage showing that coverage is being provided for all employees of the 
person providing services on the project, for the duration of the project. 

7.9.3 Provide the Contractor, prior to the end of coverage period, a new certificate of cover-
age showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current cer-
tificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project. 

7.9.4 Obtain from each person with whom it contracts, and provide to the Contractor: 

7.9.4.1 A certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the 
project; and 

7.9.4.2 the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current 
certificate of a new certificate of coverage showing extension of 
coverage, prior to the end of coverage ends during the duration of the 
project. 

7.9.5 Retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and 
for one (1) year thereafter. 

7.9.6 Notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 
ten (10) days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that mate-
rially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the pro-
ject; and 

7.9.7 Contractually require each person with whom it contracts to perform as required by 
paragraphs 7.1. – 7.7., with the certificates of coverage to be provided to the person 
for whom they are providing services. 

7.10 By signing this contract or providing or causing to be provided a certificate of coverage, the 
Contractor is representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the contractor who 
will provide services of the project will be covered by workers’ compensation coverage for the 
duration of the project, that the coverage will be based on proper reporting of classification codes 
and payroll amounts, and that all coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate 
insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-insured, with the commission’s Division of Self-
Insurance Regulation.  Providing false or misleading information may subject the contractor to 
administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other civil actions. 

7.11 The Contractor’s failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the 
Contractor which entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the Contractor 
does not remedy the breach within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of breach from the 
governmental entity. 
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Minimum Specifications 

 
The following requirements and specifications supersede General Requirements where applica-
ble.  Contact Jamey West, Contract Specialist (e-mail:  jwest@co.jefferson.tx.us );             
(phone:  409-835-8593), regarding any questions or comments.  Please reference bid             
IFB 14-009/JW, Term Contract for Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County. 

Scope 
Vendor shall provide Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County Clerk’s Office subject to the terms 
and conditions stated for an initial period of one year beginning on or about the date of 
award. 
Purchase Orders for Microfilm Supplies will be released to successful bidder(s) as required.  
Occasional small deliveries will be required, and the successful bidder(s) shall be 
responsible for prompt delivery of any purchase.  MINIMUM ORDER BIDS ARE NOT 
ACCEPTABLE. 

Pricing 
Quote unit prices as requested.  Prices quoted shall remain firm for one (1) year from date of 
award except in the case of an increase from the bidder’s supplier, in which case the successful 
bidder will be allowed to adjust price provided written notice is given to the Purchasing Agent 
with copies of supplier’s invoices to substantiate the request for adjustment.  The adjustment 
must not be more than the next low bidder’s price.  In the event the adjustment exceeds the 
next low bid, Jefferson County reserves the right to re-award to that bidder.  Jefferson County 
also reserves the right to re-solicit if price proves to be unreasonable.  Requests for increase 
must be in writing to be considered.  No increase will be allowed for the first 90 days of the 
contract.  No more than three (3) increases per year will be honored. 

Samples 
When requested, samples shall be furnished free of expense to Jefferson County for approval 
by user department. 

Delivery 
The County desires to purchase its microfilm supplies from established merchants who have 
supplies in stock and are prepared beforehand to make delivery within five (5) working days.  All 
delivery and freight charges (F.O.B. Jefferson County) are to be included in this bid price.  
Bidder bears freight charges. 

Approximate Annual Usage 
Items listed on the Bid Form indicate our approximate annual usage.  No promise is made or 
implied that these quantities will be purchased.  Orders will be placed on an as needed basis 
for the duration of the contract.  Purchase Orders will be released to the successful bidder(s) as 
required.   

Contract 
This bid, when properly accepted by Jefferson County Commissioners’ Court, shall constitute a 
contract equally binding between the successful bidder and Jefferson County.  No different or 
additional terms will become a part of this contract. 
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OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE FORM 
 

OFFER TO CONTRACT 
 

To Jefferson County: 

We hereby offer and agree to furnish the materials or service in compliance with all terms, con-
ditions, specifications, and amendments in the Invitation for Bid and any written exceptions in 
the offer.  We understand that the items in this Invitation for Bid, including, but not limited to, all 
required certificates are fully incorporated herein as a material and necessary part of the con-
tract. 

The undersigned hereby states, under penalty of perjury, that all information provided is true, 
accurate, and complete, and states that he/she has the authority to submit this bid, which will 
result in a binding contract if accepted by Jefferson County. 

We acknowledge receipt of the following amendment(s):  ______, ______, ______, ______. 

I certify, under penalty of perjury, that I have the legal authorization to bind the firm here-
under: 
 
  For clarification of this offer, contact: 
Company Name   
   
   
Address  Name 
   
   
City                             State                Zip  Phone                                      Fax 
   
   
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign  E-mail 
   
   
Printed Name   
   
   
Title   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Acceptance of Offer 

 
The Offer is hereby accepted for the following items: Term Contract for Microfilm Supplies for 
Jefferson County.  Contract Term: One (1) year from date of award with an option to renew for 
four (4) additional years. 

 
The Contractor is now bound to sell the materials or services listed by the attached contract and 
based upon the Invitation for Bid, including all terms, conditions, specifications, amendments, 
etc., and the Contractor’s Offer as accepted by Jefferson County. 

This contract shall henceforth be referred to as Contract No. IFB 14-009/JW, Term Contract for 
Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County.  The Contractor has not been authorized to commence 
any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor 
receives a purchase order and/or a notice to proceed from the Jefferson County Purchasing 
Agent. 

 

Countersigned:   
   
   
   
Jeff R. Branick 
County Judge 

 Date 

   
   
   
Carolyn L. Guidry 
County Clerk 

  

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Bid Form 
 
Bid Form Instructions:  Complete the Item Number, Vendor, and Price Columns. 
 
If bidding an alternative product: 
 

-The product MUST be an equivalent item. 
 

-Include product catalog number, description, unit of measure, brand name,  
and item number in the extra space provided within each line item row. 
 

Item 
Catalog    
Number Description 

Est.    
Qty. 

Unit of      
Measure

Brand         
Name 

Item    
Number 

 
Price 

1 102-2490 Imagelink  
Archive Processor 
Developer  
 
 
 
 
 

45 Case Imagelink  $ 

2 102-2656 Imagelink  
Archive Processor 
Fixer  
 
 
 
 
 

30 Case Imagelink  $ 

3 199-0977 Kodak Prostar 
Tape & Dispenser 
 
 
 
 
 

20 Each Kodak  $ 

4 146-5194 Imagelink  
Archive Processor  
16mm dual strand 
 
 
 
 
 

20 Box Imagelink  $ 

5 78-6969-
7542-0 

3M Brand 
Cartridges for 
Microfilm  
50/per case 
 
 
 
 
 

12 Case 3M   $ 
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Bid Form (Continued) 
 
 

Item 
Catalog    
Number Description 

Est.    
Qty. 

Unit of      
Measure

Brand         
Name 

Item    
Number 

 
Price 

6 78-8000-
2580-7 

3M Brand         
Cartridge Leader 
transparent –  
100/per case 
 
 
 
 
 

10 Case 3M  $ 

7 E030217 Imagelink  
Direct Duplication 
Microfilm 
E-Star Base -             
20 rolls/per case 
 
 
 
 
 

15 Case Imagelink  $ 

8 33NXDM     Imagelink  
Archive Storage 
Media                  
100 rolls/ per case 
 
 
 
 
 

14 Case Imagelink  $ 

9 314NXQC Imagelink 
HQSP615 
16mm X 215 ft.  
100 rolls/per case 
 
 
 
 
   

5 Case Kodak  $ 

10 833-0896 Kodak Film 
16mm x 30.5 m. 
 
 
 
 
 

7 Roll Kodak  $ 
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Bid Form (Continued) 
 

Item 
Catalog    
Number Description 

Est.   
Qty. 

Unit of      
Measure

Brand         
Name 

Item    
Number 

 
Price 

11 149-0481     Kodak         
Microfilm Press 
16mm – 
not perforated  
500 splices 
 
 
 
 
 

8 Box Kodak  $ 

12 150-0719     Kodak  
System Cleaner -       
for Developer     
10 gallons/per case   
 
 
 
 
 

4 Case Kodak  $ 

13 139-5110 Kodak System 
Cleaner - for Fixer  
4 gallons/per case 
 
 
 
 
 

4 Case Kodak  $ 

14 863-2150 Toner Cartridge for 
Kodak ImageLink 
Retrieval 
Workstation 1000 
 
 
 
 
 

25 Each Kodak  $ 

15 144-2433     Kodak 
Solid Flange 
Return Reels  
35mm, 100 ft. 
Thread-Easy 
 
 
 
 
 

10 Case Kodak   $ 
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Bid Form (Continued) 
 
 

Item 
Catalog    
Number Description 

Est.    
Qty. 

Unit of      
Measure

Brand        
Name 

Item    
Number 

 
Price 

16 FR  
#32-049 

Pro-Star Plus 
Developer -             
4 gallons/per case 
 
 
 
 
 

4  Case FR 
Chemical 

  $ 

17 FR-32-254 Pro-Star  
Microfilm Fixer –        
4 gallons/per case 
 
 
 
 
 

4 Case FR 
Chemical 

  $ 

18 FR-
4900FC       

Fixer Systems 
Cleaner-                  
6 Quarts/per case 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Case FR 
Chemical 

  $ 

19 873-0715 Kodak 16mm solid 
flange return 
microfilm reels- 
500/per case 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Case Kodak   $ 

 
 

Acknowledgment of Addenda (if any): 
 
Addendum 1   Date Received   
 
Addendum 2   Date Received   
 
Addendum 3   Date Received   
 
 
 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Vendor References 

 
Please list at least three (3) companies or governmental agencies (preferably a municipality) 
where the same or similar products and/or services as contained in this specification package 
were recently provided. 
 

THIS FORM MUST BE RETURNED WITH YOUR BID. 
 

REFERENCE ONE 

Government/Company Name:  

Address:  

Contact Person and Title:  

Phone:  Fax:  

Contract Period:  Scope of Work:  
 

REFERENCE TWO 

Government/Company Name:  

Address:  

Contact Person and Title:  

Phone:  Fax:  

Contract Period:  Scope of Work:  
 

REFERENCE THREE 

Government/Company Name:  

Address:  

Contact Person and Title:  

Phone:  Fax:  

Contract Period:  Scope of Work:  
 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Signature Page 

 
As permitted under Article 4413 (32c) V.A.C.S., other governmental entities may wish to partici-
pate under the same terms and conditions contained in this contract (i.e., piggyback). In the 
event any other entity participates, all purchase orders will be issued directly from and shipped 
directly to the entity requiring supplies/services. Jefferson County shall not be held responsible 
for any orders placed, deliveries made or payment for supplies/services ordered by another 
entity. Each entity reserves the right to determine their participation in this contract.  
 
Would bidder be willing to allow other governmental entities to piggyback off this contract, if 
awarded, under the same terms and conditions? ........................................Yes      No  
 
This bid shall remain in effect for ninety (90) days from bid opening and shall be exclusive of 
federal excise and state and local sales tax (exempt). 
 
The undersigned agrees, if this bid is accepted, to furnish any and all items upon which prices 
are offered, at the price and upon the terms and conditions contained in the Invitation for Bid, 
Conditions of Bidding, Terms of Contract, and Specifications and all other items made a part of 
the accepted contract. 
 
The undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute the contract, that this com-
pany, corporation, firm, partnership or individual has not prepared this bid in collusion with any 
other bidder, and that the contents of this bid as to prices, terms or conditions of said bid have 
not been communicated by the undersigned nor by any employee or agent to any other bidder 
or to any other person(s) engaged in this type of business prior to the official opening of this bid.  
And further, that neither the bidder nor their employees nor agents have been for the past six (6) 
months directly nor indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination to control the 
price of goods or services on, nor to influence any person to bid or not to bid thereon. 
 
   

Bidder (Entity Name)  Signature 
 
 

  

Street & Mailing Address  Print Name 
 
 

  

City, State & Zip  Date Signed 
 
 

  

Telephone Number  Fax Number 
 
 

  

E-mail Address   
 
 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 

 
For vendor or other person doing business with local government entity 

OFFICE USE ONLY This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity. 

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.  See 
Section 176.006 Local Government Code. 

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, Local 
Government Code.  An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor. 

1.  Name of person doing business with local governmental entity. 

 

2.   Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

 (The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not 
later than September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government 
Code, is pending and not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire 
becomes incomplete or inaccurate.) 

3.  Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money. 

 

 

 

4.  Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 
questionnaire. 

 

 

 

 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                               FORM CIQ
                                                                                                                                                          Page 2 
For vendor or other person doing business with local government entity 

5. Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship.  (Complete this section 
only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.) 

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the 
filer has affiliation or business relationship.  Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary. 

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the 
filer of the questionnaire? 

 Yes              No 

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction 
of the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local 
government entity? 

 Yes              No 

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more? 

 Yes              No 

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship: 

 

 

 

 

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest. 

 

 

 

7.  

 

 

               ____________________________________________               ____________________ 

                      Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity                                               Date 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 

IFB 14-009/JW, Term Contract for Microfilm Supplies for Jefferson County                                                                            Page 24 of 32 
 

85



Good Faith Effort (GFE) Determination Checklist 
 

This information must be submitted with your bid. 
 
Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if 
awarded).                                                                                                                         Yes    No 
 
Instructions:  In order to determine if a “Good Faith Effort” was made in soliciting HUBs for 
subcontracting opportunities, the following checklist and supporting documentation shall be 
completed by the Prime Contractor/Consultant, and returned with the Prime Contractor/ 
Consultant’s bid.  This list contains the minimum efforts that should be put forth by the Prime 
Contractor/Consultant when attempting to achieve or exceed the goals of HUB Subcontractor 
participation.  The Prime Contractor/Consultant may extend his/her efforts in soliciting HUB 
Subcontractor participation beyond what is listed below. 
 
  Did the Prime Contractor/Consultant . . . 
 

 Yes  No 1. To the extent practical, and consistent with standard and prudent indus-
try standards, divide the contract work into the smallest feasible por-
tions, to allow for maximum HUB Subcontractor participation? 

 

 Yes  No 2. Notify in writing a reasonable number of HUBs, allowing sufficient time 
for effective participation of the planned work to be subcontracted? 

 

 Yes  No 3. Provide HUBs that were genuinely interested in bidding on a subcon-
tractor, adequate information regarding the project (i.e., plans, specifica-
tions, scope of work, bonding and insurance requirements, and a point of 
contract within the Prime Contractor/Consultant’s organization)? 

 

 Yes  No 4. Negotiate in good faith with interested HUBs, and not reject bids from 
HUBs that qualify as lowest and responsive bidders? 

 

 Yes  No 5. Document reasons HUBs were rejected?  Was a written rejection notice, 
including the reason for rejection, provided to the rejected HUBs? 

 

 Yes  No 6. If Prime Contractor/Consultant has zero (0) HUB participation, please 
explain the reasons why. 

 
If “No” was selected, please explain and include any pertinent documentation with your bid. 

If necessary, please use a separate sheet to answer the above questions. 
 
   

Printed Name of Authorized Representative  Signature 
 
 
 

  

Title  Date 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Notice of Intent (NOI) to Subcontract with 
Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) 

 

This information must be submitted with your bid. 
 
Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if 
awarded).                                                                                                                         Yes    No 
 

Instructions for Prime Contractor/Consultant:  Bidder shall submit this form with the bid; 
however, the information below may be submitted after contract award, but prior to beginning 
performance on the contract.  Please submit one form for each HUB Subcontractor/ Subconsultant 
with proper signatures, per the terms and conditions of your contract. 

 

 

Contractor Name:  HUB:  p Yes   p No 
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Project Title & No.:  
 
Prime Contract Amount: $ 

 

 
HUB Subcontractor Name:  
 
HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):  
 
Certifying Agency:  Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm.      Jefferson County      Tx Unified Certification Prog. 
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: % 
 
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:  
 
 

 

 
     
Printed Name of Contractor Representative  Signature of Representative  Date 
 
     

Printed Name of HUB  Signature of Representative  Date 
 
NOTE:  NOTHING ON THIS NOTICE OF INTENT FORM IS INTENDED TO CONFER ANY RIGHTS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, TO ANY THIRD PARTIES. 
 

Pre-Approval for Subcontractor Substitutions must be obtained from the Jefferson County Purchasing 
Agent’s Representative.  The “HUB Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form” must be completed and 
faxed to 409-835-8456. 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) 
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form 

PAGE 1 OF 4 
 

This information must be submitted with your bid. 
 
Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if 
awarded).                                                                                                                         Yes    No 
 
Prime Contractor:  HUB:   Yes    No 
 
HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):  
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Project Title & No.:  IFB/RFP No.:  
 
Total Contract: $ Total HUB Subcontract(s): $ 
 
Construction HUB Goals:  12.8% MBE:: % 12.6% WBE: % 
 

Sub-goals:  1.7 African-American, 9.7% Hispanic, 0.7% Native American, 0.8% Asian American. 
Use these goals as a guide to diversify. 

 
 
FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: 
 
Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verified HUB Sub information Date:  Initials:  

 
 
PART I.  HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE 
 
HUB Subcontractor Name:  
 
HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):  
 
Certifying Agency:  Texas Bldg & Procurement Comm.      Texas Unified Certification Prog. 
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Contact person:  Title:  
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: % 
 
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:  
 
 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) 
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form 

PAGE 2 OF 4 
 

HUB SUBCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE 
 

PART I:  Continuation Sheet                                                                                  (Duplicate as Needed) 
 
 
 
HUB Subcontractor Name:  
 
HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):  
 
Certifying Agency:  Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm.      Jefferson County      Tx Unified Certification Prog. 
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Contact person:  Title:  
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: % 
 
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:  
 
 

 
 
HUB Subcontractor Name:  
 
HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity):  
 
Certifying Agency:  Tx. Bldg & Procurement Comm.      Jefferson County      Tx Unified Certification Prog. 
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Contact person:  Title:  
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: % 
 
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:  
 
 

 
 

All HUB Subcontractor Participation may be verified with the 
HUB Subcontractor(s) listed on Part I. 

 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) 
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form 

PAGE 3 OF 4 
 

PART II:  STATEMENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE FOR NOT MEETING HUB SUBCONTRACTING GOALS 
 

Please complete Good Faith Effort (GFE) Checklist and attach any supporting documentation. 
 

Our firm was unable to meet the HUB goals for this project for the following reasons: 
 

 All subcontractors to be utilized are “Non-HUBs.”  (Complete Part III) 
 HUBs were solicited but did not respond. 
 HUBs solicited were not competitive. 
 HUBs were unavailable for the following trade(s):  
 Other:  

 

Was the Jefferson County HUB Office contacted for assistance in locating HUBs?  Yes  No
 

 

PART III:  DISCLOSURE OF OTHER “NON-HUB” SUBCONTRACTS 
 

The bidder shall use this area to provide a listing of all “Non-HUB” Subcontractors, including suppliers, 
that will perform under this project.  A list of those “Non-HUB” Subcontractors the bidder selects, after bid 
submission, shall be provided to the Purchasing Office not later than five (5) calendar days after being 
notified that bidder is the apparent low bidder.  A list of those “Non-HUB” Subcontractors that are selected 
after contract award must be provided immediately after their selection. 
 
Subcontractor Name:  
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Contact person:  Title:  
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: % 
 
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:  
 

 

 
Subcontractor Name:  
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Contact person:  Title:  
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: % 
 
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:  
 
 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) 
Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form 

PAGE 4 OF 4 
 

Subcontractor Name:  
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Contact person:  Title:  
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: % 
 
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:  
 
 

 

 
Subcontractor Name:  
 
Address:  
                  Street                                                       City                               State                     Zip 
 
Contact person:  Title:  
 
Phone (with area code):  Fax (with area code):  
 
Proposed Subcontract Amount: $ Percentage of Prime Contract: % 
 
Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:  
 
 

 

 
I hereby certify that I have read the HUB Program Instructions and Information, truthfully completed all applicable 
parts of this form, and attached any necessary support documentation as required.  I fully understand that 
intentionally falsifying information on this document may result in my not receiving a contract award or termination of 
any resulting contract. 
 

Name (print or type):  

Title:  

Signature:  

Date:  

E-mail address:  
 

Contact person that will be in charge of invoicing for this project: 
 

Name (print or type):  

Title:  

Date:  

E-mail address:  
 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Residence Certification/Tax Form 

 
Pursuant to Texas Government Code §2252.001 et seq., as amended, Jefferson County 
requests Resident Certification.  §2252.001 et seq. of the Government Code provides some 
restrictions on the awarding of governmental contracts; pertinent provisions of §2252.001 are 
stated below: 
 

(3) “Nonresident bidder” refers to a person who is not a resident. 
 

(4) “Resident bidder” refers to a person whose principal place of business is in this state, 
including a contractor whose ultimate parent company or majority owner has its 
principal place of business in this state. 

 
 I certify that ________________________ [company name] is a Resident Bidder of Texas 

as defined in Government Code §2252.001. 
 

 I certify that ________________________ [company name] is a Nonresident Bidder as 
defined in Government Code §2252.001 and our principal place of business is _________ 
____________________ (city and state). 

 
 
Taxpayer Identification Number (T.I.N.):  

Company Name submitting bid/proposal:  

Mailing address:  

If you are an individual, list the names and addresses of any partnership of which you are a general 
partner: 

 

 
 
Property:  List all taxable property owned by you or above partnerships in Jefferson County. 
 

Jefferson County Tax Acct. No.* Property address or location** 

  

  

  

* This is the property amount identification number assigned by the Jefferson County Appraisal District. 
** For real property, specify the property address or legal description.  For business property, specify the address 

where the property is located.  For example, office equipment will normally be at your office, but inventory may 
be stored as a warehouse or other location. 

 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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Bid Affidavit 
 
The undersigned certifies that the bid prices contained in this bid have been carefully reviewed 
and are submitted as correct and final.  Bidder further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or 
all commodities upon which prices are extended at the price offered, and upon the conditions 
contained in the specifications and the Notice to Bidders. 
 
STATE OF______________________                    COUNTY OF_________________________ 
 
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of ____________, 
 
on this day personally appeared ______________________________________________, who 
                                                                                   (name) 
after being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: 
 
“I, ___________________________________________ am a duly authorized officer of/agent  
                      (name) 
for _____________________________________ and have been duly authorized to execute the  
                              (name of firm) 
foregoing on behalf of the said___________________________________________________. 
                                                               (name of firm) 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing bid has not been prepared in collusion with any other bidder or 
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this 
bid.  Further, I certify that the bidder is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, 
directly or indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of 
services/commodities bid on, or to influence any person or persons to bid or not to bid thereon.” 
 
Name and address of bidder:_____________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Fax: __________________________________        Telephone#_________________________ 

by: _____________________________________       Title:_____________________________ 
          (print name) 
 
Signature:_______________________________________________________________ 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 
_____________________________________________________________________ on 
 
this the ________ day of_____________________________________, 2014. 
 
                                                                       _____________________________ 
                                                                                    Notary Public in and for 
                                                                                    the State of ____________ 

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer. 
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ATTACHMENT A 
 
IFB 14-006/JW, Term Contract for Marine Motor Fuel for Jefferson County 
Final Tabulation 
 

 C & I Oil Company, Inc.                   
6050 College Street                           
Beaumont, TX  77707                        
Contact: Eddie Bates                         
(409) 833-6331 phone                       
(409) 833-5063 fax 
eddie@cioil.com 

Sun Coast Resources, Inc.             
6405 Cavalcade, Bldg. 1                    
Houston, TX  77026                           
Contact: Lisa Moore                           
713-429-6702 phone                          
713-969-3383 fax 
national@suncoastresources.com     

Item Description Brand +/- Factor Brand +/- Factor 
1 Ethanol-Free, 91 or Higher Octane Fuel               

To Be Delivered via Tank Wagon. 
unbranded               + .2600 various unbranded + .5490 

 Number of Octane Bid  
for Item 1: 91 or Higher 

Number of Octane Bid  
for Item 1:  93   

2 Ethanol-Free, 89 Octane Fuel                                
To Be Delivered via Tank Wagon. 

unbranded               + .2600 various unbranded + .5490 

3 Ethanol-Free, 87 Octane Fuel                                
To Be Delivered via Tank Wagon 

unbranded               + .2600 various unbranded + .5490 
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PATRICK SWAJN 
COUNTY AUDITOR 

(409) 835-8500 

March 31,2014 

Citizens of Jefferson County, Texas: 

Honorable District Judges: 
Gary Sanderson, Presiding Judge, 60th District Court 
John Stevens, Jr., Judge, Criminal District Court 
Bob Wortham, Judge, 58th District Court 
Milton Shuffield, Judge, 136th District Court 
Donald Floyd, Judge, 172nd District Court 
Lindsey Scott, Judge, 252nd District Court 
Randy Shelton, Judge, 279th District Court 
Larry Thome, Judge, 317th District Court 

Honorable Commissioners' Court: 
Jeff Branick, County Judge 
Eddie Arnold, Commissioner, Precinct No. I 
Brent Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct No.2 
Michael "Shane" Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct NO.3 
Everette "Bo" Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct No.4 

1149 PEARL ST. - 7TH FLOOR . 
BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701 

The County Auditor's Office ("the Auditor's Office") is pleased to present the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") of Jefferson County, Texas (the "County") for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2013. This report is submitted in accordance with Section 114.025 of the 
Texas Local Goverrunent Code and has been prepared by the County Auditor's staff. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it has 
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated 
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatements. 

Pattillo, Brown, & Hill, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified ("clean") 
opinion on the County's financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2013. The 
independent auditor's report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor s 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic tlnanci al statements. 
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

Jefferson County was created in 1836 and organized in 1837 as one of the original counties of the 
Republic of Texas. It is a 954 square mile county that is located on the upper Texas Coast and is a 
component of the Beaumont-Pol1 Arthur-Orange Metropolitan Statistical Area. According to the 
U.S. Department of Commerce-Bureau of the Census, the 201 I population of the County was 
252 .802. The County is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located 
within its boundaries. 

Jefferson County is a political subdivision of the State of Texas and the Commissioners' Court is the 
governing body of the County. It is composed of the County Judge elected from the Coun ty at large, 
and four Commissioners, each elected from a separate precinct, all elected for four-year terms. The 
COWlty Judge is the presiding oftlcer of the Commissioners' Court. 

The County (primary government) so lely or in cooperation with other local governmental entities 
provides a fuU range of services authorized by the Texas Constitution and Statutes that includes 
construction and maintenance of roads and bridges, health and housing services, assistance to 
indigents, juvenile and ad ult justice programs, economic development, recreation and cultural 
enrichment. an airport. an entertainment complex, and general ad ministration. 

The combined financial statements of the County as a financial reporting entity report all activities, 
organizations, and functions of the County, both as the primary government and its lega lly separate 
components units for which ( 1) the elected officials of the County are financially accountable and/or 
(2) exclusion of component units activities would cause the County ' s financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. The County' s component units have been reported as blended with the 
County as the primary government or as discrete (separate) component unit. as appropriate. Critelia 
used by the County for including activities in preparing these financial statements are in confomlity 
with GASB 14, The Financial Reponing Enriry and GASB 39, Determining Wherher Cerrain 
Organizations are Componenl Units. Based on the requirements of these accounting standards, the 
County reports the Sout.heast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool as a blended component 
unit. 

The County is required to adopt a final budget no later than close of the fisca l year. This annual 
budget serves as tile foundation for the County ' s financial planning and control. The level of 
budgetary control is the department within the individual fund s. The County maintains an 
encumbrance accounting system as a method to accomplish budgetary control. Department heads 
may transfer resources within a department as needed. Transfers between departments, however, 
require approval by Commissioners ' Court. 

u 
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FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITIONS 

Local economy 

The infonnation presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the County 
operates 

The area is served by deep-water ports iocated at Beaumont, Port Arthur, Orange, and Sabine Pass. 
The Sabine Neches Waterway provides deep-water access to ocean-going vessels, which are served 
by public ports within the County. 

The County is traversed by Interstate Highway 10, US Highways 90 and 69-96-287, State Highways 
73, 87, and 105 and three farm-to-market roads. Rail and motor freight caniers also provide freight 
service to the County. The Jack Brooks Regional Airport located between Beaumont and Port 
Arthur provides passenger and freight service and is cunently serviced by one commuter passenger 
au carner. 

The economy of the County is based primarily on petroleum refining; the production and processing 
of petrochemicals, bio-fuels and other chemicals; the fabrication of steel and steel products; shipping 
activity; the manufacture of wood, pulp, food and feed products; agriculture; and health care 
services. The County continues to diversifY' its economic base as evidenced by the increase of jobs in 
the services and government sectors. 

The County continues to grow with several industrial expansion projects underway. Motiva has 
increased its cunent refming capacity to become the largest refmery in the United States. Total and 
Valero recently completed expansions to their respective facilities which has minimized the effects 
ofthe economic slowdown felt by other areas of the Country. Numerous other industrial expansions 
are underway or in the engineering phase and are expected to stimulate the local economy for many 
years into the future. Golden Pass LNG has recently announced plans to build a $12 billion gas 
liquefaction facility in the area. 

The resurgence in U. S. oil and gas exploration and production has made the County the place of 
choice for those industrial sectors seeking to exploit opportunities to profit ti·om historically low 
priced energy commodities. Our excellent water bound, rail, highway, and pipeline infrastructure, 
the readily availability of water resources, and our business-friendly governmental environment, 
coupled with a lower than average tax environment, has caught the attention of energy and 
manufacturing companies worldwide. As a result, the County fully expects a significant increase in 
industrial and commercial ad valorem values over the next ten years. 

Long-term financial planning & Relevant financial policies 

Commissioners' COUli continues to follow their policy guideline for budgetary and planning 
purposes of building and maintaining an unassigned fund balance in the general fund of at least 15% 
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of total general fund expenditures and transfers. The County ended the fiscal year with an 
unassigned fund balance of36. 5% of total general fund expenditures and transfers. This falls with in 
the po licy guidelines. 

The County is currently working on establishing a strategic plan for budgetary and planning 
purposes. 

Major Initiatives 

The Commissioners' Court set the property tax rate at $ .365 per $100 of assessed property valuation 
to provide funds for services and debt service fo r fi scal year 201 3. Budget initiatives for fiscal year 
20 13 included: 

• Maintained the same property tax rate which was 1.4% below the effective tax rate. 

• Provided a 3% salary increase for all employees. 

• Commissioners' Court would utilize previously transferred funds to complete outstanding 
capital projects. 

• Maintain capital expenditures for durable goods to replace needed equipment to necessary 
levels. 

AWARDS 

The Govenunent Finance Officers Association ofthe United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Jefferson County, Texas for its 
comprehensive annual financia l report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. This 
was the fifteenth consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily 
readable and effi c iently organized comprehensive ann ual financial report. This report must sati sfy 
both generall y accepted accounting principles and applicab le legal requirements. 

A Cel1ificate of Achievement is valid fo r a period of one year only. We believe our current report 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to 
GFOA to detennine its eligibility for another certificate. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The preparation of this repOJ1 could not have been accomplished without the dedicated services of 
the staff of the County Auditor's Office. I express my sincere appreciation to all the members of thi s 
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office who contributed to its preparation. Also, I express my appreciation to the members of the 
Commissioners' Court , their staff, and all other County offi cials and employees who have given their 
support in planning and conducting the financial operations of Jefferson County, Texas in a 
responsible manner. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the County's finances for individuals 
who are interested in thi s information. Questions concerning any of the data provided in this 
rep0l1 or requests for additional information should be addressed to the County Auditor's Office, 
1149 Pearl Street 7'h Floor, Beaumont, Texas 7770 1. 
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Patrick Swain, C.P.A. 
County Auditor 
Jefferson County, Texas 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable County Judge and 
Commissioners' Court 

Jefferson County, Texas 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying finan cial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type acti vities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson 
County, Texas (the "County"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013 , and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basi c financial statements as li sted in 
the tabl e of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
III accordance with accounting principles genera lly accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design , implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevan t to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free fro m matelial miss tatement, whether due to fraud or 
eJTor. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financ ial statements based on our audit We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Un ited States of 
America and the standards app licable to finan cia l audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptro ll er General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perfonn the audit to obtain reasonab le assurance about whether th e financial statements are free from 
materi al mi ss tatement. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit ev idence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements , whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity 's preparation and fai r presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity 's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting est imates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit op inions. 

Opinions 

[n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activ ities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of September 30, 20 13, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof fo r the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in th e United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management 's discussion and analysis , the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balance-Budget and Actual- General Fund, the Texas County and District Retirement System -
Schedule of Funding Progress, and the Other Post Employment Benefit - Schedule of Funding Progress 
be presented to supp lement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements , is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who consider~ 
it to be an essentia l part of financial reporting for placing the basic financ ial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supp lementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements . We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opin ion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively compri se the County's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and 
individua l nonmajo r fund financial statements and schedules, capital assets schedules, and stat istical 
section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial 
statements. 
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The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and capital 
assets schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statemen ts. Such infonnation 
has been subjected to the aUditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual 
norunajor fund financial statements and schedules and capital assets schedules are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our rep ort dated March 
24, 2014, on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on cornpliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering County's internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

Waco, Texas 
March 24, 2014 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of Jefferson County, we offer readers of the Jefferson County's financial 
statement this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the county for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with the 
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 
found in the introductory section of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of Jefferson County exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 
2013 by $143,933,184 (net position), a decrease of $4,367,784 in net position 
from the previous year. As a result, the county's overall fmancial position has 
deteriorated from the previous year. 

• Of the net position, $124,380,635 is net investment in capital assets, $25,433, I 98 
is restricted for specific uses, and $(5,880,649) is umestricted. 

• As of the close of fiscal year 2013, Jefferson County's governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $75,408,388, an increase of 
$6,146,090 in comparison with the prior year. About 54% of the total amount, 
$40,482,418 is available for spendil1g at the county's discretion (unassigned fund 
balance). 

• At the end of fiscal year 2013, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$41,269,536, or 36.5 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers. In 
addition, the General Fund had a nonspendable fund balance of $1,043,407 and 
assigned fund balance of $4,3 I 2,676. 

• The Capital Projects Fund is classified as a major fund. It had a restricted fund 
balance of$8,455,095 and a committed fund balance of$I,484,113. 

• The County's total bonds payable decreased by $4,221,538 during the current 
fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic 
financial statements, which are comprised of the following three components: I) 
Government-wide financial statements; 2) Fund financial statements and 3) Notes to the 
basic fmancial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information 
which is included in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of County finances, in a maImer similar to a private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all County assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

representing net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as 
a useful indicator of whether the fmancial position of the County is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information that indicates how net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that 
will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County 
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portion of their 
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental 
activities of the County include general government, judicial and law enforcement, 
education and recreation, health and welfare, and maintenance of equipment and 
structures. The business-type activities of the County include an airport and an 
entertainment complex. 

Component units are included in our basic financial statements and consist of legally 
separate entities for which the County is financially accountable and they have 
substantially the same board as the County or provide services entirely to the County. 
The County's component unit, Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool, 
has been reported as blended with the County as the primary government. For more 
detailed information on this component unit refer to Note IA and Note 13 of the basic 
financial statements. 

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be 
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds. 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike 
the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources , as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating the County ' s near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
fund s with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government­
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds 
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balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund ba lance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
goverrunental funds and goverrunental activities. 

The County maintains 86 individual governmental funds. Infonnation is presented 
separate ly in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds 
statement of revenues, expenditures , and changes in fund balances for the major 
goverrunental funds. Data from other goverrunental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major goveI11Ti1ental 
funds is provided in the fonn of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

Proprietary funds are maintained two ways. An enterprise fund is used to report the same 
functions presented as business-type activities in the govenunent-wide financia l 
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of an airport 
and entertainment complex. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to 
accumu late and allocate costs internally among the County's various functions. The 
County uses internal service fund s to account for its li ability acti vities, workers 
compensation, and the public entity ri sk pool that provides health insurance benefits. 
Because these services predominantly benefit govenunental rather than business-type 
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government­
wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation as the govenunent-wide financia l 
statements, on ly in more detail. Both of the enterprise funds are considered to be major 
funds of the County. The County' s internal service funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation in the proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund 
data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources he ld for the benefit of parties outs ide 
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statements because the resources of those funds are not avai lable to support the County's 
own programs. The County 's only fiduciary funds are II agency funds. Agency funds 
are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of 
results of operations. 

Notes to tlt e Basic Financia.l Statements provide addi tional information that is essential 
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. The notes can be fo und starting on page 30 of this report. 

Required Supplementary Information is presented concerning the County' s General 
Fund budgetary schedule. The County adopts an anIlual budget for this fund. A 
budgetary comparison schedule, which includes the original and final amended budget 
and actua l figures, has been provided to demonstrate compliance wi th thi s budget. 
Required supplementary infonnation can be found starting on page 63 of th is report. 
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The combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier provide 
information for non-major govemmental funds and internal service funds and are 
presented immediately following the required supplementary information. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of agovemment' s 
financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $143,933,184 
for fiscal year 2013 and $148,317,402 for fIscal year 2012. 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
September 30,2013 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Reclassifications Total 

Current and other assets $101,387,162 $ 1,699,640 $ $103,086,802 
Capita I Assets 86,860,285 87,043,444 173,903,729 

Tota 1 Assets $188,247,447 $ 88,743,084 $ $276,990,531 

Current and other 
liabilities $ 12,389,685 $ 855,635 $ $ 13,245,320 
Long-term liabilities 119,560,322 251,705 119,812,027 

Total Liabilities $131,950,007 $ 1,107,340 $ $133,057,347 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in capital 
assets $ 84,123,857 $ 87,043,444 $ (46,786,666) $124,380,635 
Restricted net position 25,433,198 25,433,198 
Unrestricted net position (53,259,615) 592,300 46,786,666 (5,880,649) 

Total Net Position $ 56,297,440 $ 87,635,744 $ $143,933,184 
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Condensed Statement of Net Position 

September 30, 2012 
Primary Government 

Governmental Bus iness-type 
Activities Activities Reclassifications 

Current and other assets $ 91,646,339 $ 1,9 16,938 $ 
Capita l Assets 86 ,069,708 90,441,044 

Total Assets $177,71 6,047 $ 92,357,982 $ 

CUlTent and other 
liabilities $ 9,490,554 $ 1,052,859 $ 

Long-tenn liabilities 110,969,770 243,444 

Total Liabilities $ 120,460,324 $ 1,296,303 $ 

Net Position: 

Net investment in capital 
assets $ 82,640,727 $ 90,441 ,044 $ (50,438 ,282) 
Restricted net position 18,017,919 
Unresrricted net position (43,402,923) 620,635 50,438,282 

Total Net Position $ 57,255,723 $ 91,061,679 $ 

Total 

$93,563,277 
176,510,752 

$270,074,029 

$ 10,543,413 
111,2 13 ,2 14 

$12 1,756,627 

$ 122,643,489 
18,0 17 ,9 19 
7,655,994 

$ 148,317,402 

The largest portion of the County ' s current fiscal year net position (86.4 percent) reflects 
its investments in capital assets (e.g. land, improvements, buildings, equipment, and 
infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. 
The main use of these capital assets is to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the County's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that resources needed to 
repay thi s debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Another portion of the County's current fiscal year net position (17.7 percent) represents 
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 

The County's current fiscal year net position is reduced by (4.1 percent) for the negative 
unrestricted net position. Unrestric ted net position may be negative when entities incur 
long-term liabilities which are not offset by corresponding assets or when it covers post­
retirement benefits on a pay-as-yo u-go basis rather than advance-funding such costs in a 
trust account. 

At the end of the current fi scal year 2013, the County report positive net position in two 
of the three categories and reported positive net position in all tlu'ee categories in fiscal 
year 2012 as a whole . The County repOlied positive balances in two of the three 
categories of net position for its governmental activities for fi scal year 2013 and fiscal 
year 2012. Business-type activities had positive balances in two of the categories of net 
position for fiscal year 2013 and fiscal year 2012. 

The County had a reclassification of $46,786,666 in fi scal year 2013 and $50,438,282 in 
in the prior fiscal year to move the debt associated with the construction of Ford Park 
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from Unrestricted net position to Net investment in capital assets, The capital assets are 
reported in the business-type acti vities and the debt is reported in the governrnental 
activities, 

The County's net position decreased by $4,367,784 during the current fi scal year. The 
fo llowing table indicates changes in net assets for governmental and business-type 
activities: 

Statemenr of Activi ties 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges fo r services 
Operating grants and 

contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

Genera l revenues: 
Taxes ~ levied for general 

purposes 
Taxes - levied for debt service 
Sa les Taxes 
Investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

TOlal revenues 

Expenses: 
General government 

Judicial and law enforcement 
Education and recreation 

Health and welfa re 
Maintenance - equ ipment and 

structures 
Interest and charges on Jang­

te rm debt 
Airport 
Entertainment Complex 

Total expenses 

Excess (de fi ciency) before special 
items and transfers 

Transfers 
Change in net position 

Net position - beginning 
Prior period adj ustment 
Net posit ion - beginning - restated 
Net position - end in g 

Goverrunental 
Activities 

$ 22,829, 11 8 

19, 150,824 
5,222,624 

76,928,26 1 
6, 108,388 

26, 186,007 
28 1,672 

35,9 18 
156,742,812 

37,253,9 18 
85,995,590 

1,369,159 
10 ,9 17,065 

17,162,873 

1,762,428 

154,46 1,033 

2 ,28 1,779 
(3,223,628) 

(941 ,849) 

57,255,723 
(16,434) 

57,239,289 

$ 56,297,440 
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Business-type 
Activities 

$ 9 ,5 15, 128 

943,357 

269 
49,628 

10 ,508,38 2 

7,386,238 
9,77 1,707 

17,157,945 

(6,649,563) 
3,223,628 

(3,425 ,935) 

9 1,061 ,6 79 

9 1,061,679 

$ 87,635,744 

$ 

$ 

Total 

32,344,246 

19,150,824 
6,165,981 

76 ,928,261 
6,108,388 

26,186,007 
281,941 

85,546 
167,25 1,194 

37,253,9 18 
85,995,590 

1,369, 159 
10,917,065 

17,162,873 

1,762,428 
7,386 ,238 
9,771,707 

171,618,978 

(4,367,784) 

(4,367,784) 

148,3 17,402 
( 16,434) 

148,300,968 

143,933, 184 
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Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended September 30, 201 2 

Govemmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Reve nues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 24,741,194 $ 9,987,228 $ 34 ,728,422 
Operating grants and 

contributions 18,243,076 18 ,243,076 
Capital grants and contributions I 1,938,532 1,960,880 13,899,4 12 

General revenues: 
Taxes - levied for general 

purposes 72,842,074 72,842,074 
Taxes - levied for debt service 6,573,939 6,573,939 
Sales Taxes 25.413 ,828 25,41 3,828 
Investment earnings 541,703 935 542,638 
Miscellaneous 25,206 71,950 97,156 

Total revenues 160,3 J 9,552 12,020,993 172,340,545 

Expenses: 
General government 32,862,570 32,862,570 
Judicial and law enforcement 81,522,130 81,522,130 
Education and recreation 1,3 15,819 1,315,819 
Health and welfare 17,758,075 17,758,075 
Maintenance - equipment and 

structures 15,552,976 15,552,976 
Interest and charges on long-

term debt 1,936,3 02 1,936,302 
Airpon 6,6 18,247 6,618,247 
Entertainment Complex 10,248,457 10,248,457 

Total expenses 150,947,872 16,866,704 167,8 I 4, 576 

Excess (deficiency) before special 
items and transfers 9,371,680 (4,845,7 11) 4,525,969 

Transfers (4,183,564) 4, 183,564 

Change in net position 5,188,116 (662,147) 4,525,969 

Net position - beginning 5 I ,563,398 90,842,414 142,405,812 
Prior period adjustment 504,209 881,412 1,385,62 1 
Net position - beginning - restated 52,067,607 91,723,826 143,791,433 

Net position - ending $ 57,255,723 $ 91,061,679 $ 148,317,402 
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Governmental activities 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 
Year Ended September 30 , 2013 

Investment earnulgs 
0.2% 

Operating grants , Miscellaneous 
and contributIons 0 .0% 

Taxes - leVIed for 
debt seIV!e e 

3.9% 

se/Vlces 
14 .6% Capital grents and 

contributions 
3 .3% 

Taxes - levied fOf 
general purposes 

49,1% 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental 
Activities 

Year Ended September 30,2013 

General Judicial and Education 
Government Law and 

Enforcement Recreat ion 

12 

Health and 
Welfare 

DExpenses 

CProgram Revenues 

Maint. -
Equipment 

and 
Structures 

Interest and 
Charges on 
Long-tern) 

Debt 
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Governmental activities decreased the County's net position by $941,849. 

• Property tax revenue increased by about $3 .6 million or (4.6 percent) during the 
year. Most of thi s increase is due to a 4.6 percent increase in property valuations. 

• Sales Tax revenue increased by about $.8 million (3.0 percent) during the year. 

• Bonds Payable decreased by about $4.2 million which provided increases to Net 
Position. 

• These increases just discussed were offset mostly due to the increase in the OPEB 
(Other Post Employment Benefits) Obligation of about $13 million. 
Commissioners' Court has decided to continue funding OPEB on the pay-as-you­
go basis. More discussion on OPEB can be found in Note 9 starling on page 53 . 

For the most part, other changes (increases/decreases) in expenses typically had 
corresponding changes in revenues as programs or projects ramp up or wind down. 

Business-type activities 

Business-type activities decreased the County's net position by $3,425,935 . The largest 
area of decline is a reduction in the amount of transfers from the General Fund to 
subsidize operations. 

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities 
Year Ended September 30, 2013 

Capital grants and 
conlriblitlOns 

9.0% _\ 

Miscellaneous 
0.5% 

Investment 
__ eamings 

0.00/0 

13 

Charges for 
services 
90.5% 
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 
Year Ended September 30, 2013 

OExpcnses 

mProgralll Revenues 

12,000,000 

10,000,000 

8,000,000 

6,000,000 

4,000,000 

2,000.000 

Airport Entertainment Complex 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

Governmental Fu.nds. The focus of the County ' s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. In particular, 
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources 
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Jefferson County's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $75,408,3 88, an increase of $6,146,090 in comparison 
with the prior year. About 54% ofthis total amount ($40,482,418) constitutes unassigned 
fund balance, which is available for spending at the County 's di scretion. The remainder 
of fund balance is nonspendable, committed, restricted, or assigned to indicate that it is 
not available for new spending. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current 
fi scal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $41 ,269,536, while total 
fund balance reached $46,625,619. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may 
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be useful to compare both unass igned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund 
expenditures and transfers. Unassigned fund balance represents 36.5 percent of total 
General Fund expenditures and transfers, whi Ie total fund balances represents 41 .2 
percent of that same amount. 

The fund ba lance of the County's General Fund increased by $4,397,28 6 during the 
current fisca l year. Thi s increase is in most part due to increase in property tax and sales 
tax collections. 

The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $ 10,028,208, of which $8,544,095 
is restri cted for maintenance of structures and equipment and $1,484,11 3 is committed 
for construction contracts. The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the 
Capital Projects Fund was $2,861,930. This increase was in large part as a result of 
additional transfers from the General Fund for ongoing projects. 

Proprietary Funds. The County's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of 
infonnation fou nd in the business type activities of the government-wide financia l 
statements, but in more detail. 

The lack Brooks Regional Airport Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operation 
of the County airport. As of September 30, 2013, unrestricted net assets are $51,467, a 
decrease of $429,504 from the prior year. Th is decrease is in large part due to reduction 
in profit margin on a significant portion of aviation fuel sa les due to contract negotiations 
to attract new commercial air service. 

The Ford Park Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operation of Ford Park. As of 
Septem ber 30, 2013 , unrestri cted net assets are $540,833, an increase of $40 1,169 from 
the prior year. This increase is mostly due to increase in transfers from the General Fund . 

General Fund Budgetary Higblights 

The total original budget adopted on September 19, 2013 did not have to be amended 
during the year. Budget transfers were done during the yea r to adjust departments as 
needed. 

During the year actual revenues and transfers were more than budgetary estimates by 
$6,055,838. Actual expenditures and transfers we re less than budgetary estimates by 
$636,795 . The budget had a projected reduction of $2.295,347 to the fu nd balance. The 
net effect of over-realization of revenues and under-utilization of approp riations resulted 
in a positi ve variance of $6,692,633 thus causing the add ition to the existing fund balance 
of $4,397,2 86 on a budgetary basis. 

The largest positive variance of $5,645,356 is due to an increase in Sales Tax revenue. 
The area continues to have growth due to severa l large industrial expansions. 
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Revenue from Property Taxes had the largest negative variance of $1,060,447 due to a 
settlement for a contested property tax valuation for one of the large industrial taxpayers. 
This settlement resulted in a reduction of about $1.6 million in property tax revenue. 

An additional transfer in the amount of$5,209,000 was made to capital project funds that 
were not part of the original budget to provide additional funding for construction 
projects. 

Many departments achieved savings over the fiscal year mostly due to unfilled staff 
positions and moving employees through their salary ranges whereby leaving unspent 
funds. The total amount of savings for salary and fringe benefits was about $3.9 million. 
Departments also did well in controlling their spending in other budgetary areas. 

Budget variances are not expected to impact future services or liquidity. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets. The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and 
business-type activities as of September 30, 2013, amounted to $173,903,729 
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
improvements, structures, park improvements and facilities, infrastructure, equipment, 
vehicles, machinery, other tangible and intangible assets, and construction in progress. 

Major capital asset events during the cun-ent fiscal year included the following: 

• The County had a variety of building improvements, purchases of equipment, 
roads and bridges construction, and construction of airport facilities. 

• At September 30, 2013, the ending fund balance for all capital projects funds was 
$11.98 million. 

For further infonnation regarding capital assets, see Note 5. 
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Balance Balance - Restated 
Governmental Activities: Se~tember 30,2013 Se~tember 30, 2012 

Land $ 3,840,787 $ 3,840,787 
Construction in progress 19,216,458 16,507,662 

Infrastructure 57,918,331 57,157,161 

Buildings & Improvements 90,832,122 89,342,778 
Equipment 37,234,070 36,338,146 

209,041,768 203,186,534 
Less: Accumulated 
depreciation (122,181,483) (117,116,826) 

Total governmental 
activities $ 86,860,285 $ 86,069,708 

Business-tvQe Activities: 
Land $ 5,154,600 $ 5,154,600 

Construction in progress 672,936 98,476 
Buildings & Improvements 128,480,339 128,504,483 

Equipment 12,104,639 11,766,932 

146,412,514 145,524,491 
Less: Accumulated 
depreciation (59,369,070) (55,083,447) 

Total business-type 
activities $ 87,043,444 $ 90,441,044 

Long-Term Debt. At September 30, 2013, the County had a total long-term debt 
outstanding of $119,560,322. Refer to Note '1 for further information on the County's 
long-term debt. County officials, citizens, and investors will find the ratio of net bonded 
debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita as useful indicators 
of the County's debt position. This information is presented in the statistical section of 
this report. 

Governmental Activities: 

Bonds Payable 
Capital leases 
Arbitrage liability 
Notes Payable 
Claims & Judgments 
Compensated Absences 
OPES Obligations 

Total governmental 
activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Compensated Absences 

Total business-type 
activities 

Outstanding at 
September 30, 2013 

$ 52,482,467 

218,094 
2,298,078 

12,065,696 
52,495,987 

$ 119,560,322 

$ 251,705 

$ 251,705 

17 

Outstanding at 
Septem ber 30, 2012 

$ 56,704,005 

597,263 
2, I 08,870 

12,063,811 

39,495,821 

$ 110,969,770 

$ 243,444 

$ 243,444 
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The bond rating services of Moody's Investors Services, Inc. and Standard & Poor's 
Ratings services have assigned the County's long tenn bond ratings of Aa2 and AA­
respectively. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The Commissioner's Court adopted the County's 2013-2014 Budget on September 23, 
2013 for the general fund and debt service funds. The Budget was adopted based on 
estimated balances that would be available at the end of fiscal year 2013 and estimated 
revenues to be received in fiscal year 2014. The total resources for all funds for fiscal 
year 2014 are estimated to be $167.8 million. The budget was adopted with estimated 
expenditures in the amount of $124.7 million. The 2013-2014 Budget forecast utilizing 
$4,312,676 of fund balance. 

For 2013-2014, the property tax rate will remain at $.365 per $100 of taxable assessed 
value and taxable assessed property values are anticipated to grow by 2.6% for the 2013-
2014 Budget year. 

The average unemployment rate for Jefferson County for September 2013 was 10.1 %; 
this is a decrease from the prior year rate of 10.2%. The state's average unemployment 
rate for September 2012 was 6.3%. 

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances 
for all those with an interest in the County finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should 
be addressed to the County Auditor's Office, 1149 Pearl St. - 7th Floor, Beawnont, Texas 
77701. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

PFUMARY COVt:RNM f NT 

GOVtRN/'It:tNTAL BUSINESS·TYI'E 

ACTIV1Ttl!.S ACTIVITI ES RrClASSlrrCA TlONS 

ASSETS: 
CASH AND CASH EQU IVALENTS $ 58,866,267 1,095,622 
INVESTMENTS 22,241,652 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 27,945 , 
ACCOUNTS RECEI VAB LE, Net 238,888 193,323 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 9.803.8 19 66,458 
INVENTORIES, Al Cost 627.882 242.073 
PREPAID ITE MS 456.512 2,)62 
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEI VA BLE, Net 4,040, 182 
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 1,999,306 
OTHER RECE IVA BLES, Net 2,4 34.72 5 

DEFERRED CHARGES 574,4 24 

DEPOSITS 75,500 
CAPITAL ASSETS: 

LAND 3,840.787 5. 154.600 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19,2 16,458 672,936 
OTHER CAPITAL ASSETS, Nel of depreciation 63,803,040 B 1,2 15,90& 

TOTA L ASSETS $ 188,247,447 88,743,084 

U ABILlTlES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 11,064,640 559-'72 
INTEREST PA YABLE 305,056 
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 282,798 
UNEARNED REVENUE 737,19 1 238,157 
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 58,306 
LONG· TERM LiABILITIES 

DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 7,417.0 19 47,5&9 
DUE IN MORE THAN ONE YEAR 112,143,303 204 , 11 6 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 131 ,950,007 1, 107,340 

NET POSITION 
NET [NVESTl'v1ENT IN CA PITA L ASSETS $ 84 ,1 23 ,857 87,043,444 (46.786,666) 
RESTRICTED FOR· 

DEBT SERVICE 90 1,217 
CONSTRucn ON 46,395 
PUBLIC I NTEREST 1,395,549 
JUDICAL & LAW ENFORCEMENT 4.737,363 
EDUATION & RECREATION 1, 178 ,666 
HEALTH & WELFARE 8,277.1 97 
MA INTENANCE OF STRUCTURES & EQUIPME NT 8.896,8 11 

UNRESTRICTED (53,')59,6 15) 592 . .300 46,786,666 

TOTAL NET POSIT ION $ 56, ?97 ,440 87,635,744 

The /"eclassifieQ/101l /jfor /he debl associO/ed with the Calls/rue /ion of Ford Park The assef is occollnledfor in Ihe Busll1ess. rype 
oem'lIIes eoluInn and /he debt is accollllted/or In the GOI'ul1lntlllai Acriw{;es column 

Th.: nOle~ 10 the Cinancial statements are all mtegral pan of \hi~ Stalellieill. 
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TOTAL 

59.96 1.889 
22 ,24 1.651 

27,947 
532,2 1 ! 

9,870,277 
1169.955 
458,734 

4 ,040, 182 
1,999,J06 

2.4J4,725 
574,424 

75,500 

8,995,387 
\9,889,394 

145:018,948 

276,990.53 1 

11 .62),81 2 
305.056 
282,798 
975,348 

58,306 

7.464 ,608 
112,347 ,4 19 

133,057,347 

I 24 ,J80,635 

90U 17 
46 . .395 

1)95,5-l9 
4,737,363 
1,178,666 
8.277,197 
8,896,R 1 I 

(5880.649) 

143,933,184 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

FUN CTIONS/PROGRAMS 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVlTlES 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 
MAINTENANCE· EQUIPMENT 

AND STR UCTURES 
INTEREST AND CHARGES 

ON LONG· TERM DEBT 
TOTAL GOVERNMENTA L ACTI VlTlES 

BUSINESS·TYPE ACTIVlTlES 
AIRPORT 
ENTERTAINMENT COMPLEX 

TOTAL BUSINESS·TYPE ACTIVITI ES 
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

CHARGES FOR 
EXPENSES 

$ 37,253,9 18 S 
85,995,590 

1,369, 159 
10,917,065 

17,162,873 

1,762,428 
$ 154.461,033 $ 

7,386,238 
9, 771 ,707 

$ 17,157,945 $ 
$ 17 1,618,978 $ 

GENERAL REVENUES 
TAXES; 

SERVICES 

7,279,674 
9,234,538 

84,613 
392,612 

5,837,681 

22 ,829, 11 8 

3,978,820 
5,536,308 
9,515,128 

32,344,246 

PROGRAM REVE NU ES 
OPERATING 

GRANTS AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

$ 4 14 
18 ,233 ,6 12 

588,685 

328,1 13 

$ 19,150,824 

$ 
$ 19, 150,824 

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR GENERAL PURPOSES 
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR DEBT SERVICE 
SALES TAXES 

UNRESnuCTED INVESTMENT EARNINGS 
MISCELLAI\'EOUS 

TRANSFERS 
TOTAL GENERAL iLEVENUE AND TILANSFERS 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION· BEGINNING 
PRJ OR PERJOD ADJUSTMENT 
NET POSITION - BEGINNING, Restated 

NET POSITION· ENDI NG 

The notes 10 the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CAPITAL 
GRANTS AND 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

$ 

5,222,624 

$ 5,222,624 

896,690 
46,667 

$ 943,357 
$ 6,165,98 1 
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NET (EXPENSES) REVENU ES AND CHANGES IN NET 
POSITION 

PRIM ARY GOVERNMENT 
GOVERN MENTAL BUS INESS-TV PE 

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL 

$ (29,973,830) $ $ (29,973,830) 
(58,527,440) (58,527,44 0) 

(1,284,546) (1,284 ,546) 
(9,935,768) (9,935,768) 

(5 ,774,455) (5,774,455) 

( 1,762,428) (1,762,428) 
$ (107,258,467) $ $ ( 107,258,467) 

(2,5 10,728) (2,5 10,728) 
(4, 188,732) (4,18 8,732) 

$ $ (6,699,460) $ (6,699,4601 
$ i 107,258,467) $ (6,699,460) $ (113 ,957,927) 

5 76.928,26 1 $ $ 76.928,26 1 
6, 108,388 6, 108.388 

26. 186,007 26, I 86,007 
281,672 269 28 I ,94 I 
35,918 49,628 85,546 

(3,223,628) 3,223,628 
S 106,3 I 6,61 8 $ 3,273,525 $ 109,590, 14 3 

$ (94 I ,849) $ (3,425 ,935) $ (4,367,784) 

57,255,723 91,06 1,679 148,317,402 
(16,434) (16,434) 

57,239,289 91 ,061 ,679 148,300,968 

56,297,440 $ 87,635,744 $ 143,933,184 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

CAPITAL 

PRO.n:CfS 

GENERAL fUND 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22,333,127 12,119,358 

INVESTMENTS 22,24 I ,652 

ACCOUNTS RECETVABLE, Nel 129,114 

INTEREST RECEIVABLE 7,001 894 
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 1.177,503 

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 5,527,543 1,380,410 
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 3,940,046 

PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 1,949.753 

INVENTORIES, At Cosl 587,971 

PREPAID ITEM 455A36 

TOTAL ASSETS 58,349,146 13,500,662 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LlABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PA YABLE 6,056,129 2,428,304 
COMPENSATED ABSENCES PA YABLE 24,055 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENT AL ENTITIES 360 
DEFERRED REVENUE 5/642,983 1,044,150 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,723,527 3,471,454 

FUND BALANCES: 
NONSPENDABLE FOR 

INVENTORY 587,971 

PREPAID ITEMS 455,436 
RESTRICTED FOR 

DEBT SERVICE 
CONSTRUCTION 
PUBLIC INTEREST 
JUDICIAL & LA W EN FORCEMENT 
EDUCATION & RECREATION 
HEALTH & WELFARE 
MATNTENA NCE OF STRUCTURES 

& EQUIPMENT 8,544,095 
COMMITTED FOR 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 1,484,113 
ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 

ASSIGNED FOR ADOPTED BUDGET 
UTILIZA nON OF FUND BALANCE 4,312,676 

UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 41,269,536 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 46,625,619 10,028,208 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 58,349,146 13,500,662 

Thc notes to the nnanclnl statements are an inlegral part or this statement 
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NONMAJOR TOTAL 

GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL 

fUNDS fUNDS 

20,717 ,819 55,170,304 

21,24 1,652 
82,996 212,110 

2,422 10,317 
1,177,503 

2,641,775 9,549,728 
100,136 4,040,182 

49553 1,999,J06 

39Sl1 627 ,882 

Ll36 456,572 

23 ,635,748 95/485,556 

2,564,756 11,049,189 
24,055 

1,177,503 1,177,503 
282,438 282,798 
856,490 7543,623 

4,881,187 20,077,168 

39 ,911 627.882 
1,136 456,572 

1,071,014 1.071,014 
46,395 46,395 

1,395,549 1,395,549 

4,696,316 4,696.316 
1,178,666 1,173.666 
8,277,197 8,277 ,197 

352,716 8,896,811 

418,562 1,002,675 
2,064.217 2,06:.1.217 

4,312,676 

(787,118} 40,482,418 

18,754,561 75,408,388 

23,635,748 95,485,556 
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J EFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIA nON OF THE GOV ERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANC E SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POS ITION 
SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Total fu nd balances for governmental fund$ 

TOlal net pos ition reponed fo r governmental activi lies in [he statement ornel pOS ition 
is di fferent because 

Capilal assets used in governmental activities are not fman eial resources and 
Ihe rc fore are no t reported in the funds. Those asse ts consi st o r: 

Land 
Constructi on in progress 
lnfraslrucrure, net o f $36,62 1,613 accumulated depreci ation 
Buil dings, net of $60,289,306 accumulated depreeiation 
Equipment, net of $2.5.2 70,564 aceumulated depree iatio n 

Total eapi tal assets 

Long-tenn assets are nOI recognized in the current period and aecordin gly 
are not reponed as fu nd asse ts . Balances as o f Seplember 30, 20 13 were: 

Accrued inlerest receivab le 
Deferred Charges 

Long-term liabilities ap pl icable [Q Jefferson County 's activities are no 
due and payable in the curren! period and accordin gly are not re po rted as fu nd 
liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not acclUed in gove nunental fu nds, but 
rathe r is recogni zed as an expenditure "" hen due. All liabi lities - both current 
and long-term are reported in the Statement of Nel Position . 
Balance as of September 30,20 )3 were: 

Accrtled interest on bond s and loans 
Bonds payabl e 
Notes payable 
OPES Obligations 
Compensated ab sences 
Ga inILoss on Refunding Bonds 
Pre miumfD iscounts on Bonds 

Intern al serv ice nmd s are used by the County . TIle assets and liabi liti es 
o flhe interua l service fu nds are included in the governmental ac tivities in the 
Statement orNel Pos ition. Internal se rv ice fu nd net posilion are : 

Some of lhe COUnlY's receivables are class i tied as long- term an d therefo re 
are not reponed in the fu nds. Receivab le reponed net 0 ($2 .028,228 all o wance 
for uncollect ible accounts. 

Some of the County's revenues ~" i ll be coll ected aft er rear-end bu t are no t 
avai lable soon enough to pay for th e curren t period' s expend itures and 
th erefore are de ferred in the fu nds 

Total net posit ion of goveillmental activitie s 

The notes 10 the fi nancia l S t~leme nL S a r~ an inlegral part o r lil is slatement 
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$ 3,840,787 

$ 

19,2 16,458 
2 1,296,7 18 
30,542,8 16 
I I ,963,506 

17, 136 
574 ,424 

$ (3 05,056) 
(49,305,000) 

(2 18,094) 
(52,4 95,987) 
( 12,041,641) 

1,433,368 
(4,610,835 ) 

$ 75,408,388 

86,860,285 

591,560 

( 11 7,543 ,245) 

1,739,295 

2,434,72S 

6,806,432 

$ 56,297,440 
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JEFFERSON COUNTV, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20Il 

CAPITAL NON MAJOR 

PROJECTS GOYERNMEr\'TAL 

GENERAL FUNO FUNDS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES 76,480,625 6,112,782 

SALES TAXES 25,170,356 1,015,651 

FEES 9,067,410 4,034,461 

LICENSES 590,148 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL Ij 10,298 1)85,589 20,911,716 

SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 2,658.453 600 709,963 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,884,566 190,090 

INTEREST 162,714 19,757 71,736 

MISCELLANEOUS 35,918 

CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 4,700 

TOTAL REVENUES 5 117,560,488 1,405,946 33,051,099 

EXPENDITURES: 
CURRENT 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 20,597,779 639,924 

JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 60,970,812 23,590,216 

EDUCATION AND RECREA nON 342,171 1,018,877 

HEALTH AND WELFARE 9,709 ,919 912,979 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

AND EQUIPMENT 11,765,040 27,332 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,939,033 2,838,085 

DEBT SERVICE 
PRfNCIPAL 379,169 3,965,000 

INTEREST AND COMMISSION 15,893 1,960,536 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 103,780,783 3,939,033 34,952,949 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 13,779,705 (2,533,087) (1,90 I ,850) 

OTHER FINANCfNG SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN 5,395,017 1,195,679 

TRANSFERS OUT (9,382,422) (406,9,15) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 5 (9,382,419) 5,395,017 788,724 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 4,397,286 2,861,930 (1,113,126) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 42,228,333 7,166,278 19,884,121 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (16,434) 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (RestRted) 42,228,333 7,166,278 19,867,687 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 46,625,619 10,028,208 18,754,561 

The notes 10 the financial statemenLS arc· an integral part of this statement. 
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TOTAL 

GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

82,593,407 
26,186,007 
13,101,871 

590,148 

23,807,603 
3,369,016 
2,074,656 

254,207 
35,918 

4,700 

152,017,533 

21,237,703 
84,561,028 

1,361,048 
10,622,898 

11,792,372 
6,777,118 

4,344,169 
1,976,429 

142,672,765 

9,344,768 

6,590,699 
(9,789,377) 

(3,198,678) 

6,146,090 

69,278,732 
(16,434) 

69,262,298 

75,408,388 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIA nON OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE ST ATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Net change in fund balances · lOla I govenllnenlal fullds 

Govemmenlal funds repon. capital aUllays as expenditures However, in the slalemenl of activ i1ies 
the cost or these assets is all ocaled over lheir estimated useful li ves and reported as deprecialion 
expense 

Capilal Expenditures 
Cap ital asset donat ions to Business type aetivities 
Nel adjustment for s<!le o r disposal of c<,pital asset~ 
Deprecialion Expense 

Net adjustment 

Debt proceeds are repon ed as financing sources in governmenta l funds and thus contrib ute (0 rbe 
change in fund balance. In th e sta tement or nel position, however. issuing debt increases long-term 
liabi lities and does nol arree! the Sialemenl of Activities. Similarl y. repayment of principal is an 

expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the lia biliry in the Slalement of Net Position. 

Repaymenls ' 
To paying agent for bond prineipal 
Princ ipal on Notes Payable 

Nel adjuS(menl 

Under the modifi ed aecrua l basis of accounting used in the governmenta l funds, expendirures are 
nOI recognized for {ransaClions that are not normally paid w ith expendable available financial resourceS . 
In the sta lement o f aelivilies , hO"l.vever, wh ich is presellled on the accrual basis, expenses and 
liabilities a re reported regardless ofwhen financial (esources are available. In addition , interest on 

long-tenn debt is nOI recogni zed und er the mod ified accrual basis of accounTing unlil due, rather as 
it aecrues . The adjustment combines the ne l ehanges of seven balances, 

Compe nsated absenec s 
OPEB Obligations 
Amortization of bond premium 
Amortization 0 f bond discount 
Amo rtization of refunding differenee 
Aeerued interest on debt 

Amo rti zatIOn of deferred e harges 
Combined adjustmcnl 

[nternal serv ice funds are used by the County. The net change in position of Ihe inlenml se n ' ice fund s 
are reported with governmental aeti .... ities . 

Some of Ihe Coumy's rece ivables :I re classifIed as long-term and therefore Ihe net of revenue and 
bad debt expense associated wilh theses receivab les are nOI reported in the funds . 

Because some revenues will nol be eo ll ec ted for severa l monlhs afte r the Coun ry's flseal year end, 
they are not considered "available" revenue and are deferred in the go .... ernmeJllal funds. Deferred 
revenues increased by th is amount in the eurrent period 

Total ehange in net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the fi nanc l ~1 s t.alem e nl,.~ arc an imegral p:ll1 or UWi statemel1 l. 
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$ 

6,262,204 

(24,950) 
(26,887) 

(5,4 19,790) 

3,965,000 
379,169 

I (16.307 ) 
(13,000 ,166) 

416 ,869 

(1,576) 
( 158,755) 

20,829 
(63.366) 

$ 6, 146,090 

790,577 

4,344 ,169 

( 12,802,472) 

(511,422) 

86,822 

1,004,387 

I (941,849) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STA TEMENT OF NET POSITION -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

ENTtRJ'RISE FIJ/'iDS 

JACK 

BROOKS INTEMAL 

REG IONAL SERVICE 

AIRPO RT FORD PAJU( TOTAL FU/'iDS 

ASSETS, 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

CAS H AND CASH EQ UIVALENTS $ 244 ,443 851 , 179 1,095,622 3,695,963 

ACCOUNTS REC EIVA BLE, Nel 184,238 109,08 5 293.323 26,778 
INTEREST RECEIVA BLE 2 2 492 

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITI ES 66,458 66,458 254,091 

PREPAID ITEMS 77 2,085 2, 162 
INVENTORY, AI C OSl 196 ,3 73 45.700 242,073 

DEPOSITS 75,500 
TOTA L CURRENT A SSETS $ 691 ,59 1 1,008,049 1,699,640 4,052,824 

NONCURRENT ASS ETS 

CA PITA L ASSETS 

LAN D 3,024,815 2,129,785 5, 154,600 

CONSTRUCT ION IN PROGRESS 672.936 672,936 

OTHER CA PITAL ASSETS, NET OF 

DEPRECIATION 26,735,778 54,480, 130 8 1.215,908 

TOTAL NONCU RR ENT ASSETS $ 30,433, 529 56 ,609 ,9 15 87,043,444 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 3 1, 125, 120 57,6 17,964 88,743,084 4,052,824 

LIABILITIES: 

CURRENT U AB1UTIES 

ACCOUN TS PAYABLE $ 385,535 173,637 559, 172 15,45 1 
CLAIMS LIABILITY 2,298,078 
CURRENT PORTION - COMP ENSA TED ABSENCES 13 ,805 33 ,784 47,589 
DEFERRED REV ENUE 9 ,956 228,20 1 238, 157 
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 26 ,712 3 1,594 58,306 

TOTAL CURRENT LiAB ILITI ES $ 436 ,008 467,2 16 903 ,224 2,3 13,529 
NONCU RRENT LIABILITIES ' 

NONCURRENT PORTION· CO MPENSATED 
ABSENCES 204 , 116 204, 11 6 

TOTAL NONCUR RENT LI ABILITIES $ 204 , 11 6 204, 11 6 

TOTAL LIABILITI ES $ 640, 124 467,216 I, I 07 ,340 2,313,529 

NET POSITION: 

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITA L ASSETS $ 30,433,529 56,609,9 15 87,043,444 
UNRESTRTCTED 5 1,467 540.833 592,300 1,739.295 

TOTAL NET POS ITI ON $ 30,484,996 57, 15 0,748 87,635,744 1,739,295 

The nOles lo Ii n3ncial SlalemenlS are an integ ral pan orlhis S\Illemenl. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

ENTERPRISE Fl)r\'OS 

.!ACK 

BROOKS INTERNAL 

REGIONAL SERYTCE 

AUU'ORT FORD PARK TOTAL FUNDS 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES $ 3,978,820 5,536,308 9,515,128 14,627,612 
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 2,019,862 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 3,978,820 5,536,308 9,515,128 16,647,474 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

SALARIES & BENEFITS $ 1,591,814 1,440,93 I 3,032,745 
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 77,371 60,196 137,567 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAlRS 366,909 268,792 635,70 I 
UTILITIES 187,790 779,112 966,902 
COST OF GOODS SOLD 2,546,872 4,059,074 6,605,946 
MISCELLANEOUS 679,432 98,533 777,965 
ADMINISTRATIVE 659,051 659,051 1,555,735 
INCURRED & ESTIMA TED CLAIMS 16,183,493 
DEPRECIATION 1,896,748 7.406,018 4,302,766 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 7,346,936 9,771,707 17,118,643 17,739,228 

OPERATING TNC01'vIE (LOSS) $ (3,368,116) (4,235,399) (7,603,515) (1,091,754 ) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES; 

INTEREST REVENUE $ 251 18 269 9,866 
GAIN/CLOSS) ON SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS (39,302) (39,302) 
REFUNDS AND RECOVERIES 49,628 49,628 570,466 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES $ 10,577 18 10,595 580,332 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS $ (3,357,539) (4,235,381) (7,592,920) (511,422) 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 921,640 46,667 968,307 
TRANSFER IN 1,000,000 2,198,678 3,198,678 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ (1,435,899) (1,990,036) (3,425,935) (511,422) 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 31,920,895 59,140,784 91,061,679 2,250,717 

NET POSITION, EJ\'DING $ 30,484,996 57,150,748 87,635,744 1,739,295 

The notes to [he financial statements are an integral part or this statement 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS­

PROPRIETARY FlJNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2013 

Er<T£RPRIH FtlNDS 

JACK 

BROOKS 

RECIONAL 

AIRPORT 

CASH fLOWS FROM OPERA'nNG ACTlVrnES: 
RECEIPTS FROM CUSTOMERS AND USERS 3,892,372 5,575,124 
RECEIPTS FROM EMPLOYEES 

PAYMENTS TO SUPPUERS (3,863,226) (6.097,352) 
PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES (1 ,589,918) (1,434,491) 

INTERNAL ACTIVnY-RECE1PTS(PA YMENTS) FROM 

rTO) OTHER FUNDS 

CLAIMS PAID 

OTHER RECEIPTS 49,628 

NIT CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1 ,511,144) (1,956, 7192 

CASH FLOWS FROM NQNCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES, 

TRANSFERS [TO) FROM 011-1ER FUNDS 1,000,000 2,198,678 

NIT CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL 

FINANCING ACTlvmES 1,000,000 2,198,678 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 

ACTIVITIES, 

CAPITAL GRANTS FROM FEDERAL ENTITIES 1,001,939 

ACQUlsmON Ar'-.'D COl-.'S1ll.ucnON OF CAPITAL ASSETS (860,300) (14,813) 

PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS 699 

NIT CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 142,338 (14.813) 

CASH FLOWS fROM INVESTMENT ,'CTIVITIES, 

RECEIPTS OF INTEREST 446 83 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIYITIES 446 8] 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (368.360) 227,229 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING 612,803 623,950 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS· ENDING 244,443 851,179 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LOSS)TO NET 

CASH PROVIDED(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) , (3,368, I 16) (4,235,399) 

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING fNCOME 

(LOSS) TO NET CASH 

PROVIDED BY OPERATING AC'llVIl1ES' 

DEPRECIATION 1,896,748 2,406,018 

OTHER NON·OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 49,628 

CHANGES 11\' ASSETS AND LlABIL!l1ES' 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (79,794) 12,556 

DUE FROM OntER GOVERJ\'MENTAL ENTITIES 

INSURANCE DEPOSITS 

PREPAID ITEMS 75 6,692 

INVENTORY 26,360 4,769 

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 17,344 

ACCOUNTS PAY ABLE (31,212) (177,363) 

CLAIMS LIABILITY 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

OTHER LlAB1LlTlES (4,833) 8,664 

NET CASH PROVIDED (UStD) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,5l!,144) (1,956,719) 

NON·CASH OPERATING, CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FINANCING. AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 24,950 ~6.667 

n", nol", \0 \1>< financial s \.;;\"m"nl, an' "" In\"~ral part or \h" SlalCm"nl 
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Ii'iTERr\AL 

fUNDS 

9,467,496 2,0)1,493 

2,016,489 
(9,960,578) (1,555,085) 
(3,024,409) 

12,342,795 
(\5,996,785) 

49,628 887,726 

p,467,863) (293,367) 

3,198,678 

3,198,678 

1,001,939 

(875,113) 

699 

127,525 

529 10,562 

529 10,562 

(141,131) (282,805) 

1.236,753 3,978,768 

1,095,622 3,695,963 

(7,603,515) (1,091,754) 

4,302,766 

49.628 570,466 

(67,238) .3 13,887 

654 
0 .500) 

6,767 

31,129 

17,344 

(208,575) (273,328) 

189,208 

3,831 

(3,467,8631 (293,367l 

71,617 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

AGENCY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

TOTALS 

ASSETS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVA LENTS $ 15,278,785 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 6,715 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 325,067 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 15 ,610,567 

LIABILITIES 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 12,871,36 1 
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 752,995 
OTHER PAY AS LES 1,986,211 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 15,610,567 

The notes to the financial staternems are an integra l part of this statement. 

29 

157



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of Jefferson County, Texas ("County") have been prepared in confonnity 
with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental and financial reporting principles. The most significant accounting and 
reporting policies of the County are described in the following notes to the financial statements. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The County is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas. The County is 
governed by Commissioners' Court, composed of four County Commissioners and the County 
Judge, all of whom are elected officials. 

The County provides a vast anay of services, which include public safety, administration of justice, 
health and human services, recreation services, public improvements, and general administration. 

As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the County 
(the primary government) and its component units in confonnity with GASB Statement No. 14, The 
Financial Reporting Entity ("GASB 14"), GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations are Component Units ("GASB 39"), and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment ofGASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, ("GASB 61 "). 

In accordance with these standards, a financial reporting entity consists of the primary government 
and its components units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected 
officials of the County are financially accountable, or the relationship to the County is such that 
exclusion would cause the County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Blended 
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the County's operations, 
and so data from these units are combined with data of the County. 

The criteria used to detennine whether an organization is a component unit of the County and 
whether it is a discretely or a blended component unit includes: financial accountability of Jefferson 
County for the component unit, appointment of a voting majority, ability to impose the County's will 
on the component unit, fiscal dependency criterion, whether there is a financial benefit to or burden 
to the County or if operational responsibility for the component unit rests with management of the 
County, and whether services are provided entirely or almost entirely to the primary government. 

Blended Component Units: 

For financial reporting purposes, the Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool (The 
Pool) is included in the operations and activities of the County as a blended component unit. The 
Pool is a public entity risk pool (see Note 13), which the County is the sponsor government. The 
Pool is accounted for as an internal service fund. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST A TEtvlENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Excluded from the reporting entity: 

The fo llowing agencies were considered in the detenn ination of component units of the County's 
financial reporting entity. It was detennined that these entities should not be included as component 
units of the primary government: Jefferson County Nav igation District, Drainage District #3, 
Drainage District #6, Drainage District #7, Foreign Trade Zone, Pleasure Island Park Board, 
Jefferson County Health Facilities Development Corporation, Jefferson County Housing Finance 
Corporation, Local Emergency Planning Committee CLEPC), and Jefferson County Industrial 
Development Corporation . 

B. Implementation of New Standards 

In the current year the County implemented the follo wi ng new standards: 

GASB Statement 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements 
CGASB 60"), im proves fi nancial repOlting by addressing issues related to service concession 
arrangements (SCA s), which are a type of public-private or public-public partnership. 
Implementation of GASB 60 did not have an impact on the County's reporting disclosures. 

GASB Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity. Omnibus-an amendment ofGASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 34 CGASB 61 "), which modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component 
units in the financial reporting enti ty, amends tbe criteria fo r reporting component units as if they 
were part of tbe primary government (that is, blending) in certain ci rcumstances and clarifies the 
reporting of equity interests in legally separate organizations. Implementation of GASB 61 is 
reflected in the County 's financial statements. 

GASB Statement 62, Codification of accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in 
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements ("GASB 62"), which incorporates into 
the GASB 's authoritative literature certain acco unting and financial reporting guidance that is 
included in the following pronouncements: 1) Financ ial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Statements and Interpretations; 2) Accoun ting Principles Board Opinions; 3) Accounting Research 
Bulletins of the American Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants' CAl CPA) Committee on 
Account Procedure. Implementation ofGASB 62 is refl ected in the County's financial statements. 

GASB Statement 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position CGASB 63 ,,), an1ends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement 
No. 34 and otber pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of the resources and deferred 
inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the res id ual measure and by 
renaming that measure as net posit ion rather than net assets. Implementation of GASB 63 is 
reflected in the County's financial statements. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST ATEl\1ENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Financial Statement Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide Statements 
Government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities. These statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary 
govenunent and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. However, interfund services provided and used are not eliminated 
in the process of consolidation. Govenunental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is financially 
accountable. 

The government-wide financial statements are prepared usin g the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regard less of the timing of 
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied . Fines 
and forfeitures are recognized when they have been assessed and adjudicated and earned. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the County's 
programs are offset by those programs' revenues. Program revenues include; I) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by the program and; 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational and/or capital requirements of a particular program. Program revenues include those 
generated from General Government, Judicial and Law Enforcement, Education and Recreation, 
Health and Welfare, Contract Services, and Maintenance of Equipment and Structures. Taxes and 
other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Misce llaneous genera l revenues consist of non-program specific contributions. 

Agency funds are excluded in the government-wide presentation of the financial statements. 

Fund-level Statements 
All governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become 
both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be 
detelwined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County considers property taxes and other 
revenues as availab le if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded 
when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on goverrrmentaliong-term debt are 
recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

fund for payments to be made early in the following year. Grant and entitlement revenues are also 
susceptible to accrual. Encumbrances are used during the year and any remaining encumbrances are 
liquidated at fiscal year end. These funds are accounted for on a spending "financial flow" 
measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included 
on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of 
"available spendable resources." Governmental fund operating statements present increases 
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net 
current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available 
spendable resources" during a period. 

All proprietary funds, including the enterprise funds and internal service funds, and fiduciary funds, 
including agency funds, are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when earned, and expenses when they are incUlTed. Claims incurred but not reported are 
included in payables and expenses. These funds are accounted for using a cost of service or "capital 
maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets and liabilities (whether current or non­
cUITent) associated with their activity are included in the funds' balance sheets. The Agency funds 
are custodial in nature and involve no measurement of' results of operations. 

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds 
based on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are 
controlled. 

Funds are classified into three categories: Governmental, Proprietary, and Fiduciary. The County 
repolis the following major funds: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS: Used to account for all or most of a government's general activity. 

General Fund - used to account for the general operations of the County. 

Capital Projects Fund - used to account for all other capi tal projects of the County for which a 
separate fund has not been established . 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: Used to account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to 
those in the private sector, where the determination of net income is appropriate for sound financial 
administration. 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport - used to account for the day-to-day operation of the County airport. 
These facilities are financed primarily through user charges. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Ford Park- used to account for the day-to-day operation ofFord Park. These facilities are financed 
primarily through user charges. 

Additionally, the County reports the fo llowing fund types: 

Internal Service Funds - used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one 
department or agency of the County to other County departments or agencies on a cost 
reimbursement basis. The County reports three internal serv ice fund: 1) Liability Insurance - to 
account for the County's contribution and payment for liabili ty claims, 2) Workers' Compensation ­
to acco unt for County's contribution and payment for wo rkers ' compensation claims, and 3) 
Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool - to account for the County's Public Enti ty 
Risk Pool, which provides group health insurance programs for member governments including 
comprehensive maj or med ical and dental care. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS: Used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and 
therefore cannot be used to support the government' s own programs. 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent on behalf of a third 
party. The County reports eleven agency funds held for various third parties outs ide the primary 
government. 

Proprietary funds distingui sh operating revenues and expenses fro m non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing goods in cOlmection 
w ith the proprietary fund's principal operations. The principal operating revenues of the Jack Brooks 
Regional Airport and Ford Park are user fees. Operating revenues in the Internal Service Funds 
consist primarily of charges to the various County departments. Operating expenses in the enterprise 
and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, incurred 
and estimated claims, salaries & benefits, materials and supplies, maintenance and repairs, utilities, 
miscell aneous, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these 
definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are availab le fo r use, it is the County ' s po licy to use 
restricted reso urces first, then unrestricted resources to the extent they are needed. 

D. Budgets 

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements. 

o Department annual budget requests a re submitted by the Department or Agency Head to 
the County Auditor's office during the third quarter of the fiscal year fo r the upcoming 
fiscal year to begin October 1. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

o The County Auditor' s office prepares an estimate of avai lable resources for the upcoming 
fi scal year. 

o The County Auditor's office prepares the proposed alillual operating budget to be 
presented to the Commissioners' Court for their consideration. The budget represents the 
financial plan for the new fiscal year. 

o Public hearings are held on the proposed budget. 

o The Commissioners' Court must adopt an annual operating budget by a majo rity vote of 
the Commissioners' Co ul1 before October I. The adopted budget must be balanced; that 
is, avai lable resources must be sufficient to support annual appropriations. 

o The depal1ment is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners' Court approval 
is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may not increase 
the total budget. 

o The Commissioners' Court may approve expenditures as an amendment to the budget in 
an emergency situation that could not have been foreseen at the time the original budget 
was approved. 

o Annual budgets are legally ado pted for the General Fund and Debt Service Funds. 
Budgets for Grant Funds are estab lished pursuant to grant awards and budgets for Capital 
Projects are established on a project basis. 

o Appropriations lapse at year-end for all budgeted funds. 

o Budgets are prepared on a bas is consistent with GAAP. 

E. Deposits and Investments 

The County's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
certificates of deposits, and short-term investm ents with original maturities of three months or less 
from the date of acquis ition. 

State statute authorizes the County to invest in ob ligations of the U.S. Treasury and Federal 
Agencies, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, Bankers ' acceptances, money market mutual 
fund s, and direct obligations of the State of Texas. 

Investments for the County are stated at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices with the 
difference between the purchase price and market price being recorded as earnings on inves tments. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F. Encumbrances 

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services. 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure offunds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed. All encumbrances are liquidated at fiscal year end. 

G. Receivables and Payables 

Property taxes are levied based on taxable value at January I prior to September 30 and become due 
October 1,2012 and past due after January 31, 2013. Accordingly, receivables and revenues for 
property taxes are reflected on the government-wide statement based on the full accrual method of 
accounting. Property tax receivables for prior year's levy are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible. 

Receivables from other governments include amount due from grantors for approved grants for 
specific programs and reimbursements for services performed by the County. Program grants are 
recorded as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility requirements established by the 
provider have been met. 

Reimbursements for services performed are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are 
earned in the government-wide statements. Included are fines and costs assessed by court action and 
billable services for certain contracts. Revenues received in advance of the costs being incurred are 
recorded as defeITed revenue in the fund statements. Receivables are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible. 

Lending or bOITowing between funds is reflected as "due to" or "due from" (cuITent portion) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (non-culTent). Advances between funds, as reported in the fund 
financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds 
to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial 
resources. Interfund activity reflected in "due to" or "due from" is eliminated on the government­
wide statements. 

H. Interfund Transactions 

During the course of normal operations, the County has many transactions between funds. The 
accompanying fund level financial statements reflect as transfers the resources provided and the 
expenditures used to provide services, construct assets, and meet debt service requirements. The 
effect of inter fund activity has been eliminated in the Government-Wide financial statements, except 
for transactions between governmental and business-type activities. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

I. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the "first-inlfirst-out" method. The 
cost of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than 
when they are purchased (consumption method). RepOlted inventories in the govemrnental funds are 
offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates they are unavailable for appropriations even though 
they are a component of net current assets. Inventory policy on govemrnent-wide statements is 
consistent with fund statements. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and in the fund financial 
statements are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates they are unavailable for 
appropriations even though they are a component of net current assets. 

J. Capital Assets and Infrastructure 

Capital assets include: land, larld improvements, buildings and building improvements, park 
improvements and facilities, equipment, machinery, vehicles, other tangible and intangible assets, 
and infrastnlcture that are used in the County's operations and benefits more than a single fiscal year. 
Infrastructure assets are long-lived assets that are generally stationary in nature and can typically be 
preserved for a significantly greater number of years than other capital assets. Infrastructure assets of 
the County include roads and bridges. 

Capital assets of the County are defined as assets with individual costs of $10,000 or more and 
estimated useful lives in excess of one year. All capital assets are stated at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. Donated capital assets are stated at their 
estimated fair value on the date donated. 

It is the County's policy not to capitalize interest on construction for capital assets reported in the 
goverrunental activities of the govemrnent-wide financial statements. 

Capital assets are depreciated in the government-wide financial statements using the straight-line 
method over the following useful lives: 
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Asset Years 

Runways 20-35 
Buildings 40 
Building Improvements 15-25 
Equipment 3-7 
Machinery IS 

Vehicles 4-15 
Other tangible assets 7-10 
Computer software 3-5 
Infrastructure: 

Bridges 25 
Roads 40 

K. Compensated Absences 

Accumulated compensatory leave, vacation and sick leave that have matured (reimbursable leave 
still outstanding following an employee's resignation or retirement) are reported as expenditures in 
the respective governmental funds. Accumulated compensated absences that have not matured are 
reported as long-term liabilities in the govenunental activities column of the govenunent-wide 
Statement of Net Position. The majority of these have typically been liquidated from the General 
Fund in previous years. Accumulated compensated absences of Proprietary Funds are recorded as an 
expense and liability in the respective fund and the business-type activities column of the 
government-wide Statement of Activities as the benefit accmes for the employee. 

Employees are allowed to accme 13 days of sick leave per year. Sick leave benefits are recognized 
as expenditures as they are used by the employees. Employees may accumulate up to 1,440 hours of 
sick leave. For employees with 8 years of service and hired prior to October 1,2002, unused sick 
leave benefits are paid at 50% at termination. For employees with 8 years of service and hired after 
October I, 2002, unused sick leave benefits are paid at 10% at termination. 

Employees with more than one year of service accme from two to five weeks vacation per year, 
depending on years of service. Unused vacation benefits lapse on March 15 for the previous 
calendar year. Upon termination from County employment, an employee shall be entitled to payment 
for total accmed but unused hours of vacation. 

Non-exempt employees earn compensatory time at one and one-halftimes their full rate of pay times 
the excess of 40 hours per week worked. The compensatolY time balance for non-exempt employees 
may not exceed 80 hours except for Law enforcement employees, which may accumulate up to 480 
hours. Hours in excess of the maximum must be paid to the non-exempt employee at the rate of one 
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and a half times the regular rate. Upon tennination, non-exempt employees will be paid for 
compensatory time at their wage rate at time oftennination. Compensatory time is carried forward 
indefll1itely. 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-tenn debt and other long-tenn obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
goverrunental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. 
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred charges which consist of bond issuance cost, are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or di scount. The difference between the reacquired 
price and net carrying amount of old debt incurred due to a bond refunding transaction is deferred 
and amortized in a manner that is systematic and rational over the remaining life of the old or new 
debt , whichever is short er. 

M. Net Position and Fund Balances 

Net Position Classifications 

Net pos ition in the proprietary fund financial statements and the government-wide financial 
statements are classified in three categories: I) Net investment in capital assets, 2) Restricted net 
position, and 3) Unrestricted net position. 

In the proprietary fund financial statements and in the government-wide financial statements, 
restricted net position is reported for amounts that are externally restricted by I) creditors (eg. bond 
covenants) , grantors, contributions, or laws and regulations of other governments, or 2) law through 
constitutional provision or enabling legi slation. 

Fund Balance Classification 

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor 
constraints on the spec ific purposes for which amounts in the respect ive governmental funds can be 
spent. The classifications used in the governmental fun financial statements are as follows: 

• Nonspendable: This class ification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. Nonspendable items are not expected to be converted to cash or not expected to be 
converted to cash within the next year. 
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• Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on 
the use ofthe resources either Ca) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions, or 
laws or regulations of other govemments, or Cb) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by court resolution of the Commissioners' Court, the 
County's highest level of decision making authority. These amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the Commissioners' Court removes or changes the specified use by 
taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially committed. 
This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources 
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

• Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the County's intent to 
be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. When it is 
appropriate for fund balance to be assigned, the Commissioners' Court retains the 
responsibility to assign funds. Assignments may occur subsequent to fiscal year end. 

• Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balances for the General Fund. 
The unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other 
governmental fund that calIDot be eliminated by offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts. 

When expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available, the County considers restricted fund to have been spent first. When expenditure is 
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the County 
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally 
unassigned. 

N. Statement of Cash Flows 

F or purposes of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted) 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

O. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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The County had the fo llowing investments as of September 30, 2013: 

U.S. Agency Securities 
Money Market Account 
Certificates of Deposits 
Total 

Fair Value 
$21 ,986,000 

7,652 
248.000 

$22 .24 1. 652. 

Weighted Average 
Maturity CD ays) 

1,096 
30 

730 
1,092 

Interest Rate Risk - Fair va lue fl uctuates with interest rates and increasing rates may cause fair 
value to decline below cost. In compliance with the County's Investment Policy, the County 
minimized interest rate risk by limit ing the weighted average maturity of the portfo lio to 1,095 
days with a stated tinal maturity date not to exceed 3 years from the date of purchase. In 
add ition, the portfo li o is structured so that securities mature to mee t cash fl ow requirements, 
thereby avo iding the need to se ll securities prior to maturi ty and below the original cost. 

Credit Risk - In compliance with the County's investment po licy, as of September 30, 2013 , all 
of the County's purchased investments in U.S. Agency Securities were rated AA+ and Aaa by 
Standard & Poor' s and Moody' s respectively. 

Concentration Risk - The County 's investment policy is to diversi fY its portfolio to eliminate the 
ri sk of loss resul ting fro m over concentration of assets in a specific maturi ty, a specific issuer, or 
a specific c lass of investment. As of September 30, 2013, the County had three investments that 
were with Federa l Home Loan Bank (FHLB), s ix investments that were with Federal National 
Mo rtgage Associa ti on (FNMA), and three investments that were with Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporati on (FHLMC). 

Custodial credit ri sk - depos its - In the case of deposits, thi s is the ri sk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the County's deposits may not be returned to it. The County's investment policy is to have 
all checking acco unts placed at the County Depository Bank under a depositDlY contract The 
$75,525 ,397 bank balance and the Money Market account were covered by federal depository 
insurance or co ll aterali zed with securities held by the Bank of New York Mell on Trust Company. 
A ll of the certificates of depos its are covered by federal depository insurance. 

No te 3 - Property Taxes and Other Receivables 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on October 
1 and payable by January 31 of the following year. The County bills and collects its own property 
taxes and it also bills and co llects taxes fo r Jefferson County Navigation District, Jefferson County 
Drainage District #3, #6, and #7, P011 of Beaumont, Port of Port Arthur, Water Distri ct #10, 
Nederland Independent School District, Northwest Forest Municipal Utili ty District, Emergency 
Services Distri ct #2, Trinity Bay Conservation District, Port of Sabine Pass, Sabine Pass lndependent 
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School District, Port Arthur Independent School District, City of Port Arthur , Hamshire Fannett 
Independent School District, Port Neches-Groves Independent School District, Beaumont 
Independent School District, City of Beaumont, City of Groves, City of Nederland, City of Port 
Neches, City of Bevil Oaks, and the Emergency Service District # 1. Collections of these taxes and 
remittance of them to the various districts are accounted for in the Tax Assessor - Collector Agency 
Fund. The County is permitted by the State Constitution to levy taxes up to $.80 per $100 of 
assessed valuation for general government services and the payment of principal and interest on 
Long-Term Debt. In addition to its taxes subject to the $.80 tax limitation, the County's voters have 
authorized the levy of a special tax of$ .15 per $100 assessed va luation so lely for road maintenance 
expenses. The County is also authorized by the voters to levy the Farm to Market and Lateral Road 
Tax of $.30 per $100 of assessed value for the purpose of maintaining roads and bridges. 

For the year ended September 30, 2013, the combined tax rate to finance general government 
services and the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt was $.365. 

On February I of the fo ll owing calendar year the tax bill becomes delinquent and penalty and interest 
is assessed by the County. The County Commissioners issue a tax levy for the County's General and 
Debt Service Funds. The levy and collections are restricted to the funds they are all ocated for. The 
delinquent tax receivables, and penalty and interest receivables represent the past thirty years of 
uncollected tax levies. The allowance for uncollectible was set at thirty percent of the gross tax 
receivable and sixty percent on penalty and interest as of September 30, 2013. The allowance has 
been recorded for property taxes and Penalty and Interest, which are estimated to be unco llectible as 
required by generally accepted accounting. 

Property tax receivables of$4,040, 182 as of September 30 , 20 13 are reported net of an allowance for 
uncollectible taxes of $1 ,73 1 ,506. 

Penalty and Interest receivables of $1,999,306 as of September 30,2013 are reported net of an 
allowance for uncollectible accounts of $2,998,958. 

Receivables as of September 30, 2013 consist of the following: 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 3 - Property Taxes and Other Receivables (continued) 

Jack 
Capital Brooks Internal 

Projects Non Major Regional Service 
General Fund Funds Airport Ford Park Funds 

Receivables: 

Accounts $ 84,835 $ $ 75,285 $ 188,458 $ 115,782 $ 26,778 

Employee 44,279 7,711 528 

Taxes 5,628,637 143,051 

Peualty & 
lnleresl 4,874,382 123,882 

inler-
governmental 5 .~27.54 3 U 80.410 2,641.775 66,458 254,091 

Gross 
Receivables $ 16,159,676 $ 1,380,410 $ 2,991,704 S 255 ,444 $ 115,782 $ 280,869 

Less: Allowance 
foc 
Uncol1eClibles 4,61 ),220 117,244 4,748 6,697 

Ne[ total 
receivables $ 11,546,456 $ 1,380.41 0 $ 2.874.460 $ 250,696 $ 109,085 $ 280,869 

Agency 
Funds Total 

$ 6,715 $ 497,853 

52,518 

5,771,688 

4,998,264 

325.067 10. 195 .344 

$331,782 $ 21,515.667 

4/741,909 

$ 331 ,782 $ 16,773,758 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period, Governmental funds also 
defer revenue recognition in cOlmection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned, 

As of September, 30, 2013, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue 
reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 

Unavailable Unearned 

Delinquent Propelty Taxes Receivable (General Fund) $ 5,63 I ,417 $ 
Delinquent Property Taxes Receivable (Non-major Debt Service 
Funds) 130,865 
Grant Funding (Capital Projects Fund) 1,044,150 
Advanced Funding (General Fund) 11,566 
Advanced Funding (Non-major Special Revenue Funds) 725,625 

Total Deferred/Uneall1ed Revenue for Govelllmental Funds $ 6,806,432 $ 737 ,1 91 

Note 4 - Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers 

In the fund financial statements, interfund balances are the result of normal transactions between 
funds and will be liquidated in the subsequent fiscal year. Balances between individual 
governmental funds and between governmental funds and internal services funds are eliminated in 
the government-wide financial statements, 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 4 - Interfund Receivables, Payables. and Transfers (continued) 

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2013, is as follows: 

Due to/ from other funds: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount 

Genera I Fund Nonmajor governmental funds $ 1,177,503 

Total $ 1,177,503 

All of the due to/from transactions are routine in nature. 

The following is a summary of the County' s transfers for the year ended September 30, 20 13 : 

General Fund 

Transfers In: 

General $ 

Capital Projects Fund 5.395,017 

Non major Funds 788,727 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport 1,000,000 

Ford Park 2,198.678 

$ 9,382,422 

Transfers On I: 

Nonmajor 
Govemmenlal 

$ 3 

406.952 

$ 406,955 

Total 

$ 3 

5,395,0 17 

1.195,679 

1.000,000 

2. 198,678 

$ 9,789.377 

Transfers in the amount of$I ,OOO,OOO from the General Fund to the Jack Brooks Regional Airport 
were to subsidize operations at the airport. Transfers in the amount of$2, 198,678 to Ford Park were 
to subsidize operations of the complex. Transfers in the amount of $5,395,017 from the General 
Fund to the Capital Projects Fund were for the next phase of the Courthouse renovation projects as 
well as other ongoing projects. All other transfers are routine in nature such as grant matches, 
ongoing capital projects, and residual fund balance transfers for close out of funds, 

Transfers in the amount of $24,950 for Jack Brooks Regional Airport we re made between 
governmental activities and business-type activities for capital assets purchases which were donated 
to business-type activities in the government wide statements. 

Note 5 - Capital Assets 

Capital asset acti vity for the year ended September 30, 2013 was as fo llows: 

44 

172
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Note 5 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Balance" Restated Balance 
October 1, 2012 Additions Deletions Transfer Seelember 30, 2013 

Governmental Activifies' 

Land $ J,840,787 $ $ 3,840,787 

Construction work in progress 16,507,662 4,636.180 (1,97.7,484) 19,116,4 \8 

Tolal capital assets no! depreciated $ 20,348,449 $ 4,636,280 $ (1,927,484) 23,057.245 

InfrastruclUre 57,157,161 761,170 57,918,331 

Buildings & Improvements 89,342,778 323,030 1,166,314 90,832,122 

Equipmenl 36,338,146 1,277,944 (382,020) 37,234,070 

TO!al capital assets depreciated $ 182,838,085 $ 1,600,974 (382,020) $ 1,927,484 $ 185,984,523 

Less accumulated depreciation for 

Infrastructure (35,l61,494) (1,260,119) (36,621,613) 

Buildings & Improvements (58,802,935) (1,486.371) (60,289,306) 

EqUipment (22,952,397) (2,673,300) 355,133 (25,270,564) 

TOlal aceumulated depreciation $ (117,116,826) $ (5,419,790) $ 355,133 $ (122,181,483) 

TOlal capl!al asselS depreciated, nel $ 65,721,259 $ (3,818,816) $ (26,887) $ 1,927,484 $ 63,803,040 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 86,069,708 $ 817,464 $ (26,887) $ 86.860,285 

Balance Balance 
October I, 2012 Additions Deletions Transfer SeQtember 30, 2013 

Business-type Activities: 

Land $ 5,154,600 $ $ $ $ 5,154,600 

Construction work in progress 98,476 859,571 (285,111) 672,936 

Total capital assets not depreciated $ 5,253,076 $ 859,571 (285, III) $ 5,827,536 

Buildings & Improvements 128,504,483 33,000 (57,144) 128,480,339 

Equ Ipillent 11,766,932 52,596 285.111 12,104,639 

To(al capital assets depreciated $ 140,271,415 $ 85,596 $ (57,144) $ 285, III 140,584,978 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Build ings & Improvements (48,427,670) (3,571 ,875) 17,143 (51,982,402) 

Equipment (6,655,777) (730,891) (7,386,668) 

Total accumulated depreciation $ (55,083,447) (4,302,766) 17,143 $ (59,369,070) 

Total eapital assets depreciated, net $ 85,187,968 (4,217,170) $ (40,001 ) $ 285, III $ 81,215,908 

Bus iness-type activities capilal assets, nel $ 90,441,044 $ (3,357,599) $ (40,001 ) $ 87,043,444 
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Note 5 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to the programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General Government 
Judicial & Law Enforcement 
Health & Welfare 
Maintenance - Equipment & Structures 

Total depreciation expense - governmental 
activities 

Business-type activities: 

Southeast Texas Regional Airport 
Ford Park 

Total depreCiation expense - business-type 
activities 

Note 6 - Operating Leases 

County as Lessor 

$ 213,922 
2,368,463 

277,277 
2,560,128 

$5,419,790 

$1,896,748 
2,406,018 

$4,302,766 

The County has entered into various operating leases of County-owned property to others as 
described below: 

The County's airport conducts a major part of its operations from leased facilities, which 
include office and parking lot spaces for car rental agencies, terminal space for a travel 
agency and advertising agency, and hanger space, All leases are classified as operating 
leases, The rental payments under the leases for the car rental agencies are based on a 
minimum rental plus a percentage of sales. The rental payments under the leases for the 
hanger spaces and travel agent are based on a fixed amount per square foot of space leased. 
All of the operating leases are month to month and will expire over the next two years and 
include 30-day cancellation clauses. In most cases, the County expects that in the normal 
course of business, leases wi II be renewed or rep laced by other leases. 

The County's airport has four leases for land located either in the Private Hangar Park or 
surrounding the Airport, These leases are classified as operating leases. The rental payments 
under the leases for the land are a fixed amount for a twenty-five or thirty year period . These 
leases are noncancellable. 
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Note 6 - Operating Leases (continued) 

The following schedule provides an analysis of the County's investment in property on operating 
leases and property held for lease by major classes as of September 30, 2013: 

Airport Tenninal & Build ings $ 12,222,487 

Airport Private Hangar Park and Land 3,249,396 

$ 15,471 ,883 

Less: accumulated depreciation (3 ,387,089) 

$ 12 ,084,794 

The following is a schedule by years of min imum future rentals on noncancellable operating leases 
as of September 30, 2013: 

Fiscal Year Ending September 30 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

20 18 

20 19-2023 

2024-2028 

2029-20)0 

TOlal 

$ 1)9,1)8 

129 .854 

129,854 

129.854 

126,654 

402 ,370 

104 .89) 

16,378 

$ I , \78 ,995 

Minimum future rental s do not include contingent rentals, which may be received as stipulated in the 
lease contracts. These contingent rental payments occur only if the use exceeds a certain level of 
activity each year. 

There weee no contingent rentals on Airport cancellable operating leases for the year ended 
Septembe, 30, 2013. 

Note 7 - Long-Ter-m Debt 

General Obligation Bonds 

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisiti on and construction of 
major capital facilities_ All of the 2012 Refunding Bonds and 72% ($3,171,666) of the 201 1 
Refunding Bonds funded and benefited business-type activities, though resources of the 
govenunental activities are being used to liquidate the debt. All other General obligation bonds have 
been issued for govemmental -type activities. The original amount of general obligation bonds issued 
in prior years was $54,360,000. 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (continued) 

General obligation bonds are direct obligation and pledge the full faith and credit on the government. 
General ob ligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 

$1,505,0002003 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments from $20,000 to 
$280,000 through August 1,2018; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 4.35%. 

$47,305,000201 2 Refunding Bonds du e in annual insta llments from $780,000 to 
$4,465 ,000 through August 1,2025 ; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%. 

$5,550 ,0002 011 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $55,000 to 
$1,150,000 through August 1,2017; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 3.0%. 

Total General Obligation Bonds 

$ 1,285,000 

43,615,000 

4,405,000 

$49,305,000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30 Principal Interest Total 

2014 $4,250,000 $ 1,875,511 $6,125,511 
2015 4,400,000 1,721 ,061 6,121,061 
2016 4,580 ,000 1,555 ,9 \ I 6,135,911 
2017 4,690,000 1,425,142 6,115,142 
2018 3,645,000 1,27 1,130 4,9 16,130 
20 J 9-2023 18,950,000 4,178,350 23, 128,350 
2024-2025 8,790,000 397,650 9,187,650 

Total $ 49,305,000 $ 12,424,755 $ 61 ,729,755 

There is currently $ 1,179,390 available in the Debt Service Funds to service the general obligation 
bonds. The County has no authorized but unissued bonds at September 30, 2013. 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the VaJ;ous bond debentures regarding 
authorized uses of bond proceeds. The County is in compliance with all significant limitations and 
restrictions. 

Notes Pavable: 

The county has entered into a Note payable agreement with the State of Texas to finance energy 
conservation measures for County buildings. The total amount issued was $3,32 8,357. The note is 
due in quarterly installments from $73,249 to $97,30 I through May 2014 with an interest rate of3%. 
Annual notes payable requirements to maturity are as follows: 
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (continued) 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 Principal Interest Total 

2014 $ 218,094 $ 4,390 $ 222,484 

Total $ 218,094 $ 4,390 $ 222,484 

Conduit Debt Obligations 

The County has issued Housing Finance Corporation Bonds and Industrial Development Corporation 
Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of 
facilities deemed to be in the pu blic interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are 
payable solely from payments received on the underlying loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, 
ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity serviced by the bond 
issuance. Neither the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any 
manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the 
accompanying financial statements. As of September 30,2013, there were four series of Jefferson 
County Housing Finance Corporation Bonds with an aggregate principal amount payable of 
$13,816,162, and two series of Jefferson Industrial Development Bonds with an aggregate principal 
amount payable of $344,805,000. 

Arbitrage Rebate Liability 

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 established regulations for the rebate to the federal government of 
arbitrage earnings on cel1ain local government bonds issued after December 31, 1985, and all local 
governmental bonds issued after August 31, 1986. Issuing govemments must calculate any rebate 
due and remit the amount due at least every five years. As of September 30, 2013, there are no 
estimated liabilities for arbitrage rebate on governmental debt. The Debt Service Fund and the 
residual balance in the Capital Project Fund have typically been used to liquidate the arbitrage 
liability in previous years. 

Changes in long-term liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30,2013 was as follows: 
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (continued) 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions Endins Balance 

Governmental Activities: 

Bonds Payable 

General obligation bonds $ 53,270,000 $ $ (3,965,000) $ 49,305,000 

Less deferred amounts' 

Premiums 5.034,930 (416,869) 4,618,061 

Discounts (8,802) 1,576 (7,226) 

Gain or Loss on refunding (1,592,123) 158,755 (1,433,368) 

Tolal bonds payable $ 56,704,005 $ $ (4,221,538) $ 52,482,467 

Noles Payable 597,263 (379,169) 218,094 

Claims and JudgmenLs 2,108,870 17,573,965 (17,384,757) 2,298,078 

Compensated Absences 12,063,811 1,055,007 (1,053,122) 12,065,696 

OPEB Obligations 39,495,821 16,497,527 (3,497,361) 52,495,987 

Governmental Activities 

Long-term liabilities $ 110,969,770 $ 35,126,499 $(26,535,947) $ 119,560,322 

Business-type Activities: 

Compensated Absences $ 243,444 $ 66,468 (58,207) $ 251,705 

Business-type Activities 

Long-term liabilities $ 243,444 $ 66,468 (58,207) $ 25!,705 

Due within 
One Year 

$ 4,250,000 

$ 4,250,000 

218,094 

2,298,078 

650,847 

$ 7,417,019 

47,589 

$ 47,589 

Compensated absences liabilities are nonnally liquidated by the general fund for governmental 
activities and by the corresponding enterprise fund for business type activities, Claims and 
judgments of governmental funds are normally paid from the corresponding internal service fund, 
Claims and judgments of the public entity risk pool are normally paid from the corresponding 
internal service fund. OPEB Obligations are normally liquidated by the general fund. 

Note 8 - Texas County and District Retirement System Pension Plan 

Plan Description -
The County provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for all of its full-time employees 
through a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the statewide Texas County and District 
Retirement System (TCDRS). The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is responsible for the 
administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system 
consisting of 641 nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a 
comprehensive mmual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. The CAFR is available 
upon written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-
2034, 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body ofthe employer, within the options available 
in the Texas state statutes governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act), Members can retire at ages 60 and 
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Note 8 - Texas County and District Retirement Svstem Pension Plan (continued) 

above with 8 or more years of service, with 30 years of service regardless of age; or when the sum of 
their age and years of service equals 75 or more. Members are vested after 8 years of service, but 
must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to recei ve any employer-financed benefi t. 
Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a lump sum are not entitled to any amounts 
contributed by their employer. 

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee's deposits to the plan, with interest, and 
employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the go verning 
body of the employer within the actuarial consD'aints imposed by the TCDRS Ac t so that the 
resul ti ng benefit s can be expected to be adequately fin anced by the employer' s commitment to 
co ntribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum of the 
employee' s accumulated deposits and the employer-financed monetary credits to a mon thl y annui ty 
using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act. 

Funding Policy -
The County has elected the aIU1ually determined contribution rate (Variable-Rate) plan provisions of 
the TCDRS Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributi ons fro m both employee members and the 
employer based on the covered payroll of employee members . Under the TCDRS Act, the 
contribution rate of the employer is actuarially determined annually. The employer contributed using 
the actuarially determined rate of 14 .95% for the months ofthe accounting year in 2012 , and 16.25 % 
fo r the months of the accounting year in 2013. 

The contribution rate payable by the employee members for the calendar year 201 3 is the rate of 
7.0% as adopted by the governing body of the employer. The employee deposit rate and the 
employer contribution rate may be changed by the governing body of the employer within the options 
available in the TCDRS Act. 

Annual Pension Cost -
For the County ' s accounting year ending September 30, 20 13 , the alU1 ual pension cost for the 
TCDRS plan for its employees was $9,922,581 and the actual contributions were $9,922,581. 
The annual required contributions were actuarially determined as a percent of tbe covered payroll of 
the parti cipat ing employees, and were in compliance with the GASB Statement No. 27 parameters 
based on the actuari al valuations as of December 3 1, 20 I 0 and December 3 1, 20 II , the basis for 
detennining the contribution rates for calendar years 2012 and 2013. The December 3 1, 20 12 
actuarial valuation is the mos t recent valuation. 

The required contribution was determined as part of the December 31 , 201 2 actuarial valuation using 
the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuari al assum ptions at December 31, 20 12 included: (a) 
8.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrati ve expenses), and (b) proj ected salary 
increases of 5.4 percent. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3. 5 percent. The 
actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the e ffect of short-term 
vo latili ty in the market value of investments over a ten-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued 
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Note 8 - Texas County and District Retirement System Pension Plan (continued) 

liabili ty is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basi s. The 
remaining amorti zation period at December 31, 201 2 was 20 years. 

Actuari al valuati o n da te 

Actuarial cost method 

Amorti zalion method 

Arnoni zation period in years 

Asset va luation method 

Assumplions: 

Investment return I 

Projected salary increases] 

Innation 

Cost-of.li vi ng adjustments 

ACTUARIAL V ALUA TlON INFORM A TlON 

12/3 1110 12/3 1111 12/31112 

enlry age enll)' age entry age 
level percentage of level pereenrage of level percentage of 

payroll , closed payroll , closed payroll , closed 

20 20 20 

SAF: IDYl smoothed SAF: IDyr smoothed SAF: IOyr smoothed 
val ue ESF: Fund value value ESF: Fund value value ESF: Fund 

value 

8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 

5.4% 5.4% 5.4% 

3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

I Includes inflation at the stated rate. 

TREND INFORMATION 
FOR THE RETIREMENT PLAN FOR THE EMPLOYEES OF 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, T EXAS 

Accounting A1IDual Percentage Net 
Year Pension of APC Pension 

Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 

09/30/2011 $8,439,502 100% $--

09/30/201 2 $8,781 ,345 100% $--

09/30/201 3 $9,922,581 100% $--

Funded Status and Funding Progress -
As of December 3 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial va luation date, the plan was 74.09% fu nded. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $266,299,369, and the actuarial value of assets was 
$1 97,302,396, resulti ng in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $68,996,973. The 

52 

180



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE:rvffiNTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 8 - Texas County and District Retirement System Pension Plan (continued) 

covered payroll (annual payroll of act ive employees covered by the plan) was $60,052,781 , and the 
rati o of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 114,89%. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI followi ng the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Note 9 - Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Plan Description -

The County sponsors a single-employer defined benefit post-employment benefll plan. 

Retiree Benefit s 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION 

Actuarial Valuation Date 

Actua ria l Cost Method 

Amortization Method 
Remaining Amortization 
Period 

Asset Valuation Method 

Discount Rate 

General Inflation Rate 

October 1, 2012 
Projected Unit 
Credit 

Level Doliar (open) 

26 years 

Market Value 

4.00% 

2.75% 

The County provides post-retirement health care benefits to all employees who reti red on or after 
April 9, 1990. Effect ive January I , 1997, Commissioners' COUli adopted the fol lowing policy 
detailing eligibility requirements for participation in thi s benefit: 

A} the employee must have retired under the Texas County and District Retirement 
System (TCDRS) guidelines described in Note 8; and 

B) the employee must have at least 8 years of TCDRS cred ible service with Jefferson 
County. 

For retirees prior to February 1, 2003, the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for 
those retirees that qualify. After February 1,2003, the County will pay on the fo llowing scale for 
retirees that qualify: 
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Note 9 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

Percentage Percentage 
Years of Paid by Paid by 
Service Retiree County 

8-11 300/ 70% 

12-1 5 200/ 80% 

16-19 100/ 90% 

20+ 0'1< 100% 

Retiree Spouse Benefits 
The employee's spouse is eligible for County paid health insurance benefits following the employee's 
retirement if: 

A) the employee met the above requirements A and B; and, 

B) the employee's spouse was ernol led in the health plan either as a dependent or an 
act ive County employee. 

Spouse participation will end in the event ofa divorce, at wh ich time COBRA continuation will be 
offered as described below. 

For retirees prior to February 1,2003 , the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for 
those retirees' spouses that qualify. For retirees between February 1,2003 and February 28, 2005, the 
County will pay the same scale as described above for retirees ' spouses that qualify. For retirees 
after February 28, 2005, the County requires the following premiums to be paid for retirees' spouses 
that qualify: 

A fS 'ge 0 ~pouse P remlUlTI A mount D ue 

Less than 65 during ten year Equal to the active employee 
maximum contribution made for a spouse 

Less than 6S after ten year 
maximum Full Prem ium 

Same percentage as retiree see 
Over 65 table above 

As of September 30, 2013, there were 530 participants receiving benefits. 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost-

In June 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) issued Statement No. 45 
(GASB 45), creating accounting standards for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) provided by 
governmental entities separa tely from a pension plan. This Statement establishes standards for the 
measurement, recognition, and display ofOPEB expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), 
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Note 9 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

note disclosures, and if applicable required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial reports 
of state and local governments. 

The Plan contribution rates are set annually by Commissioners' Court based on the combination of 
premiums and prior year costs ofthe self-funded portion ofthe plan The Plan is funded on a pay-as­
you-go basis. In 2013 the total contribution was $3,497,361. 

The calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in 
effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and 
plan members to that point. Actuarial valuation for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially 
determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations ofthe OPEB plan reflect a long­
term perspective. 

The County's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the 
employer (ARC), an amount aCluarially determined in accordance with the parameter ofGASB 45. 
The ARC represents a level offunding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal 
cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not 
to exceed thirty years. The County had its most recent OPEB actuarial valuation perfonned for the 
fiscal year beginning October 1,2012 as required by GASB. The County's annual OPEB cost for the 
current year is as follows: 

Annual Required Contribution 
Interest on prior year Net OPEB 
Obligation 

Adjustment to ARC 

Annual OPEB Cost 
County's Contribution made 

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year 

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year 
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$ 17,388,844 

1,579,833 

(2,471,150) 

$ 16,497,527 
(3,497,361) 

$ 13,000,166 

$ 39,495,821 

$ 52,495,987 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 9 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage 
Ending OPEB ofOPEB 

Cost Contributed 

09/3 0/2011 $11 ,627,584 26.28% 

09130/2012 $11,970,444 27.77% 

09/30/2013 $16,497,527 21.20% 

Funded Status and Funding Progress -

Net 
OPEB 

Obligation 

$30,849,880 

$39,495,821 

$52,495,987 

As of October I , 2012, the most recent actuarial va luation date, the plan was 0% funded. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $149,094,287, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, 
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $149,094,287. The covered payro ll 
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $62,180,294, and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 240%. 

The schedule of funding progress is presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefIts. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions -

Projection of benefits for financial reporting are made on the substantive plan (the plan as understood 
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the hi storical pattern of sharing of benefits costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point. The flctu~rifll methods and assumptions used include techniques that 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of 
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. In order to perform the 
valuation, it was necessruy for the County and the actuary to make certai n assumptions regarding 
items such as rates of employee turnover, retirement, and mortality, as well as economic assumptions 
regarding health care trend and interest rates. 

The Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the County's 
retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefllS, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial 
assumptions , the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected unit credit method then 
provides for a systematic funding for these anticipated payments. The yeru-Iy ARC is computed to 
cover the cost of benefits being earned by covered members as well as to runortize a portion of the 
unfunded accrued liability. 

In the October 1,2012, actuarial valuation, a 4% discount rate and a general inflation rate of2. 75% 
per year was used. The medical trend rates without Medicare of7% for 20 12,6.3% in 2013, 6.1 % in 
the third year, 6.0% in the fourth year, and ultimately grading down to 4.7% per year after the 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Note 9 - Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (continued) 

seventy-seventh year was used. The medical trend rates with Medicare of7% for 2012, 6.3 % in 
2013,6.1% in the third year, 6% in the fourth year, and ultimately grading down to 4.9% per year 
after the seventy-seventh year was used. The dental trend rate of 5.76% for 2012, 5.62% in 2013, 
5.48% in the third, 5.34 in the fourth, and ultimately grading down to 3.92% after the thirt eenth year 
was used. 

There has not been a separate, aud ited GAAP-bas is postemployment benefit plan report issued. 

Note 10 - Deferred Compensation Plan 

Employees of Jefferson County, Texas may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted 
under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with 
Respect to Service for State and Local Governments). 

The deferred compensation plan is administered by an unrelated financial institution. Amendments 
to the laws governing Section 457 deferred compensation plans substantiall y became effective 
January I , 1997. The County approved plan amendments such that plan assets are held in trust by a 
third party custodian, for the exc lusive benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The 
assets will not be diverted to any other purpose. The County's beneficial ownership of plan assets 
will be held for the further exclusive benefit of the plan fo r the exclusive benefit of participants and 
beneficiaries. 

Accordingly, the Coun ty perfOlms minimal admin istrative functio ns and does not perform any 
investment functions for the plan. Consequentl y, the assets held by the custodian are not included in 
the financial statements as of September 30, 20 I 3. 

Note 11 - Individual Funds Deficit Equity Balances 

The fo llowing funds had deficit equity balances as of September 30, 2013: 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 3 2013 

Note 11 - Individual Funds Deficit Equity Balances (continued) 

Governmental Activities 
County Clerk Records Archive Fund 
Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid 
Juvenile Community Corrections Program 
Mental Health Servi ces 

Drug Diversion Program 
Juven ile TJPC A 
Juvenile Advocate Incentive 

Sheriff Train ing Grant 
JAG Grant 
Sheriff Dept Grants 

High Intensity Drug Traffic 
Auto Theft Grant 
Drug Intervention Grant 
Family Treatment Court 
SHS P & LETPP Grants 

Southeast Texas Entertainment Comp lex 

Tota l for Governmental Activities 

$ 5,779 
17,944 

31,885 
4,443 

5,929 
85,8 18 

711 
7,211 

27,706 

369 

16,517 

6,081 
1,108 

445 

2,365 
214,433 

$428,744 

If funding does not become available to cover these deficit fund balances from other governmental 
entities, the County plans to transfer fund s to cover the deficit fund balance. 

Note 12 - Risk Management 

The Liability Insurance Fund was established to account for the contributions from the General Fund 
for payment of general liability claims. Under the laws of the State of Texas, claims for torts are 
limited to $ 100,000 per person and $300,000 per incident. The Liability Fund records a claim as 
payable when information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is 
probable that a liability has been incuned at the date of the financial statements and the amount of 
the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities of the fund are repOIied when it is probable that a 
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an 
amount for claims that have been incuned but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated 
considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Liability Insurance Fund 's claims liability 
(including an estimate for c laims incuned but not reported) were: 

Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year 

Incurred claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

Liabi lity for claims, end ornscal year 
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2013 2012 

$498, 175 

190,454 
(3 17,869) 

$370,760 

$353,664 

282,637 
(138,126) 

$498 ,175 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

Note 12 - Risk Management (continued) 

The Workers' Compensation Fund was established to account for the County's workers' 
compensation claims. Contributions are made from the General, Special Revenue, and Enterprise 
Funds for employees covered under the County 's workers ' compensation policy. Contributions to the 
fund are detennined by position class code within each department From October 1, 1999 , to 
February 14,2005 the County was fully insured for workers' compensation claims and employers ' 
liability. As ofFeb lUary 15,2005 , the County is self insured for workers' compensation claims and 
employers' liability. The County has excess coverage for workers' compensation claims and 
employers' liability claims limiting the County ' s liability to $500,000 per OCCUITence fo r losses 
occurring prior to October 1, 1999 and after February 15, 2005. Settled claims have not exceeded 
commercial coverages in any of the past three fiscal years. Liabi lities of the fund are reported when 
it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities 
are calculated considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Worker's Compensation 
Fund's claims liability (including an estimate for claims incurred but not reported) were: 

Liability for claims, beginning of fi sca l year 

InculTed claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

Liability for claims, end of fiscal year 

Note 13 - Public Entity Risk Pool 

2013 

$563 ,813 

265,048 
(527,380) 

$30 1,481 

2012 

$583,422 

772,730 
(792,339) 

$563,813 

On November 27, 2000, the Jefferson County Commissioners ' Co ul1 pursuant to Texas Local 
Government Code Ann. Sec. 172.001 organized the Southeast Texas Government Em pl.oyee Benefits 
Pool (The Pool). The Pool was organized for the benefit of Texas Political Subdivisions and Special 
Districts to make available accident, life, and health benefits for Pool member employees. Twelve 
trustees govern the Pool. Five of these trustees are the Jefferson County Auditor, Jefferson County 
Insurance and Benefits Manager, Jefferson County Human Resources Director, Jefferson County 
Purchasing Agent, and the Jefferson County Assistant District Attorney. Two of the trustees are 
members of Commissioners ' Court. The remaining five trustees are appointed by Commissioners ' 
Court. 

The Pool is responsible for adopting underwriting standards, qualifications for membership in the 
pool, and establishing the types of benefits to be provided and associated fees for these benefits. The 
members of the Pool are responsible for thei r members' eligibility in the pool and payment of 
monthly contributions for participation in the Pool. The Pool members are not subject to 
supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies. If the assets ofthe Pool were to be exhausted, 
members would not be responsible for the Pool's liabilities. Pool members currently include 
Jefferson County, Texas (reporting entity), Jefferson County Drainage District #3, and Jefferson 
County Drainage District #6. The total number of members in the Pool is 1,612. Operations of the 
Pool are accounted for as an internal se rvice fund. 

59 

187
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 3 2013 

Note 13 - Public Entity rusk Pool (continued) 

The Pool uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on medical and 
prescription claims. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 , the Pool had stop loss insurance 
contracts to limit the medical and prescription claims per individual member to $250,000 in a 
calendar year with a $1 ,250,000 aggregating group deductible. The Pool did exceed these limits by 
$187,182 during fiscal year2013 , by $450,72 1 during fi scal year 2012, and $ 106,506 during year 
2011. 

Liabilities of the Pool are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred 
but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering recent claim settlements trends. 

Changes in the Pool' s claims liability (including an estimate of claims incurred but not reported and 
claim adjustment expenses) were: 

Liability for clai ms, beginning of fiscal year 

Incurred claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

Liability for c laims, end of fiscal year 

2013 2012 

$1,046,882 

17,118,463 
(16,539,5 08) 

$1,625,837 

$1,8 18,892 

14,798,506 
(15,570,516) 

$1,046 ,882 

Additional information including ten-year revenue and claim development are addressed in a 
separate annual report. The annual report may be obtained from Southeast Texas Governmental 
Employee Benefits Pool, 215 Franklin Street Suite 200, Beaumont, Texas 7770 I. 

Note 14 - Construction and Other Significant Commitments 

As of September 30, 2013 , the County had the following commitments with respect to unfinished 
capital projects: 

Capital Project 

Courthouse Restoration 

Public Health Renovations 

Marine Security Center 

Public Interest Projects 

Bridge Repairs 

Note 15 - Contingent Liabilities 

Remaining Construction 
Commitment 

$ 516 ,533 

121 ,337 

169,697 

391,947 

144,104 

$ 1,343,618 

Expected Date 
of Completion 

09/30/2015 

12/31 /20 13 

12/31 /20 13 

12131 12013 

03/3112014 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the State of Texas. Any di sallowed expenditures or claims, including amounts 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Note 15 - Contingent Liabilities (continued) 

already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of 
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be detennined at this time although the 
County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

The County is involved in lawsuits and other claims in the ordinary course of operations. The 
outcome of these lawsuits and other claims are not presently detenninable and the resolutions of 
these matters are not expected to have a material effect on the financial condition of the County. 

Note 16 - Prior Period Adjustments 

In the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2013, the following adjustments were 
made to beginning fund balance for the Non Major Special Revenue funds: 

Beginning Fund Balance 

Prior period adjustments 

Beginning Fund Balance, as Restaled 

Non Major 
Special 

Revenue 
Funds 

$17,149,498 

( 16,434) 

$ J 7.133,064 

Adjustments were made to Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid by $2,847 and Juvenile 
TJPC A by $13,587 for excess intergovernmental revenue recorded in prior year. 

The total effect of these adjustments decreased beginning net position of the govemmental activities 
$16,434. 

Note 17 - Restatements and Reclassifications 

Certain restatements have been made to the prior year financial statements in order to confonn to the 
presentation of the current year financial statements. 

Note 18 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reporred as Assets and Liabilities CGASB 65"), establishes 
accounting and fl11ancial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources, cel1ain items that were previously rep0l1ed as assets and liabilities and 
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously 
reported as assets and liabilities. GASB 65 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2014 
and the impact has not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement 66, Technical Corrections-20l2-an amendment orGASE Statement No. 10 and No. 
62 CGASB 66"), seeks to improve accounting and financial reporting for a govemmental financial 
reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuances of two 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

Note 18 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued) 

pronouncements, Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting guidance Contained in 
Pre-November 30, 1989 GASB and A/CPA Pronouncements. GASB 66 will be implemented by the 
County in fiscal year 2014 and the impact bas not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans ("GASB 67"), replaces the 
requirements of Statement No. 25, Financial Reportingfor Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Nole 
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures , as they 
relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or similar arrangements meeting certain 
criteria. GASB 67 enhances note disclosures and RSI for both defmed benefit and defined 
contribution plans. GASB 67 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2015 and the impact 
has not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions ("GASB 68"), replaces the 
requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental 
Employers and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that provide 
pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet certain 
criteria. GASB 68 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2015 and the impact has not yet 
been determined. 

GASB Statement 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations ("GASB 
69"), requires disclosures to be made about government combinations and disposals of government 
operations to enable financial statement users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of those 
transactions. GASB 69 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 20 15 and the impact has 
not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement 70, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Nonexchange Financial Guarantees 
("GASB 70"), provides guidance to improve accounting and reporting by state and local 
goverrunents that extend and receive nonexchange financial guarantees. GASB 70 will be 
implemented by the County in fiscal year 2014 and the impact has not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Mad Subsequent to the Measurement 
Dales, ("GASB 71 "), amends GASB 68. GASB 71 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 
2015 and the impact has not yet been determined. 

Note 19 - Subsequent Events 

On October 29, 2013 , the County issued refunding bonds with a par amount of $1,340,000 and 
interest rates ranging from .62% to 1.93% to defease $ 1,285,000 of outstanding County debt. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA TJON 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

BUDGETED .... MOlJ\\'TS ACTUAL 

ORIGINAL FlNAL AMOUNT 

REVENUES: 

TAXES: 

PROPERTY $ 77,541 ,072 77,54 1,0 72 76,480,625 

SALES TAX 19,525,000 19,525,000 25, 170,356 

FEES 8,7 12,744 8,712,744 9,067,410 

LICENSES 395,800 395,800 590, 148 
SALES, RENTAL S. AN D SERVICES 1,920,659 1,920,659 2,658,453 

INTERGOVERN MENTAL 1,482,378 1,482,378 1,510,298 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,685,000 1,685,000 1,884,566 

INTEREST 218,000 218,000 162,714 

MISCELLANEOUS 24,000 24,000 35,9 18 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 111,504,653 111,504,653 117,560,488 

EXPENOITUR[S: 

GENERAL GOV ERNMENT $ 21,42 1,403 20,679,620 20,597,779 
JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 64, J 81 ,309 6 1,252,199 60,970,812 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 384 ,064 346,536 342, 171 
HEALTH AN D WELFARE 10,242,401 9,786,348 9.709,919 
MAI NTENANCE - EQUIPMENT AND STRUCTURES 12.978,959 11 ,934,433 11 ,765,040 
CAPITAL OUTLA Y 

D EBT SER VI CE 

PRlNCIPAL 379, 169 379, 169 379,169 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 15,893 15,893 15,893 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 109,603, 198 104,394,198 103,780,783 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES $ 1.901 ,4 55 7,110,455 13,779,705 

OTHEfl FrNAI\'CINC SOllRCES (US[S): 

TRANSFERS [N $ 3 
T RANS FERS OUT (4, 196,802) (9,405,802) (9,381,422) 

TOTAL OTHER FINA NC ING SO lJRCES (USES) $ (4 ,196,802) (9,405,802) (9,382,419) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (2,295,34 7) (2 ,295,347) 4,397,286 

FUND BALANCES. BEGIN/"IfNG $ 42,228,333 42,228,333 42,228,333 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 39,932,986 39,932,986 46,625,619 
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VARIANCE WITH 

fo"tN A l.. BUDCET 

( 1,060,447) 
5,645,356 

354 ,666 
194 ,3 48 
737,794 

27,920 
199,566 
(55,286) 

11 .918 

6,055,835 

81.841 
281 ,387 

4.365 
76.429 

169,393 

613,415 

6,669,250 

3 
23 ,380 

23,383 

6,692,633 

6,692,633 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

1. Budgetary Basis 

o Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP. 

o The department is the legal level of budgetary con trol. Commissioners' Court 
approval is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may 
not increase the total budget. 

o Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and the Debt Service Funds. 

o The Capital Project Fund - Capital Projects Fund which is considered a major fund 
does not have a legally adopted budget. 

2. Analysis of Significant Expenditure Variances from Original Budget 

Commissioners' Court approved $5,209,000 in budget transfers over the original budget fo r 
addi tional Transfers Out to fund the next phase of Courthouse renovations in the Capital Project 
fund, addi tional capital purchases for Ford Park, and increase the County's match in several 
grant funds . 

[n addition, the Court approved approximately $515 ,000 in budget transfers over the original 
budget for the increased cost for indigent defense. These transfe rs were not part of the original 
budget. 

The above budget transfers were funded with the savings from various departments. 
Commissioners' Court was able to achieve $603,055 in actual savings from the total budget, wi th 
the assistance from all County departments. 
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Actuari al 

Valuation 

Date 

12/31120 10 

12/31/2011 

12131 /20 12 

, 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

TEXAS COUNTY AND DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuari al Annual 

Actuaria l Va lue Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered 

of Assets Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 2 

(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) 

$184,745,6 14 $240,888 ,57 8 $56, 142,964 76.69% $59,806,758 

$ 190,465,968 $254,265,84 1 $63,799,873 74.9 1% $59,497,087 

$ 197,302,396 $266,299,369 $68,996,973 74.09% $60,052,781 

- The annual covered payroll is based on (he employee contributions received by TCDRS for the year ending 
with the va luation date. 
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UAAL as a 
Percentage 

of Covered 
Payroll 

[(b-a)/c) 

93.87% 

107.23% 

114.89% 
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Actuarial 
Valuation 

Fiscal Year Date 

201 1 10/1/2010 

201 2 1011120 I 0 

2013 10/1/2012 

JEfFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuaria l 

Accrued 
Actuarial Liability Unfunded AAL Funded 

Value of Assets (AAL) (UAA L) Ratio 
(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) 

$0 $ 110,088,287 $110,088,287 0% 

$0 $110,088,287 $ 110,088,287 0% 

$0 $149,094,287 $149,094,287 0% 
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UAAL as a 

Annual Percentage 

Covered of Covered 

Payroll Payroll 

(c) [(b-a)/c] 

$59,33 7,019 185.53% 

$59,322,820 185.57% 

$62,180,294 239.78% 

196



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND 
INFORMATION AND OTHER 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

197



198



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES · BUDCET AND ACTUAL (CAAPI 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMUER 30, 2013 

BUDGETE D AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOllNT 

CENER,\ L COVERNMENT : 

TAX ASSESSOR,COLLECTOR ; .4 96,919 3.}}j,785 3.32 7.048 

HUMA" RESOURCES 4 I 2.448 377,514 37 1,278 

COUNTi AUOITOR ),400.77 '1 1,37 1.001 l.)63.77) 
COUNTi CLERK 2,05 2.586 2.021.740 2.0 17.460 
COUNTY IUDGE 83 1,949 7N.OH 766,4~9 

ruSK MANAGEMEN'T 227, 153 232.927 232,042 
COt.'NTY TREASURER 279,413 267,)22 264.005 
pR:JNTl)-.lQ DEPARTh1ENT 153,300 137,4 11 134,856 
PURCHASINQ AGENT 5 14,639 481.348 478,138 
GENERAL SERVICES 9 .073,535 8,882.293 8.860,145 
DA T A PROCESSING 1.823,778 1.182,175 1,775 .38 1 
VOTERS REG1STRATlON DEf'ARTMEt-rT 276,693 208.220 206.50 1 
ELEcnoNS DEPARTM ENT 606,837 543,705 539.5 19 
VETERA NS SERVICE 271.3 72 264,23 1 260 .H6 

TOTAL G Er-; ERAL COVERNMENT S 21 ,42 1 403 20,6 79.620 20,~97.779 

JU DI CIAL AND :"'AW EN ~'ORCEMENT: 

DISTRICT A lTOR,NE'I' 5,~06,306 5,215.294 5.206.164 
DISTRIC T CLERJ.: 1.7 17,184 1,.S85,724 1. 583 .022 
CRIMINAL DI STRICT COURT 1. 064,34Q 1,335A63 1,325.515 
5HH DISTRIC1 COURT 281,032 281.73 1 279.809 
nnnt DISTRICT COURT 267,028 267.730 263,065 
DHH DISTRICT (OUR T 270, 528 27 1.:m 269,07 1 
InNOOISTRlCT COURT 266, 598 267.302 264 ,106 
252NO OISlRJ CT COURT 1.391.6 11 1.60 7. 196 1.602.4 73 
179TH DISTRICT COURT 372,378 36 1, 588 356.252 
l l7TH DISTRICT COURT 664,982 687, 138 680.903 
IURY 1,075.883 693,61 2 692 .67S 
I.P PRECI"ICTNO.I,PLACEHO I 323 ,9 50 324, 107 322. 345 
J.P PREcrNCT NO. I ' PLACE NO 2 329,937 329.937 326,745 
J P PRECINCT NO 2 3 18,303 27.'i . .i50 27).824 
J.P. PREC INCT NO. 4 320.40 I 308.003 300.926 
J P PRECrNCT NO. /I 345, J2j 342.607 337.68 5 
J P PREC rNrT NO. i 334,626 327.685 323,573 
I.P PRECINCT NO I 34 1. 76 1 J19.444 ] I J,854 
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO 1 427.600 388.915 38 1.723 
COUKll' COURT AT LAW NO "l 60~ .646 594 ,0 31 589.439 
COUNTY COU RT AT LAW NO ] 582, !D9 545,836 537.053 
COURT MASTER 417.5C6 39 1,757 386,315 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION CENT£R 243,5 84 )96.021 189,642 
JUVENILE AL TERNA TlVE SCHOOL 354 .226 3 18,60J 3 16,583 
COMMUNITY SUPERVISION 48.007 44,642 44 .6'12 
SHERIFF 12, 115,622 11 . 510,485 11 ,457,959 
CRJME LABOR.·nORY 1,200,192 1.1 23.39 1 1,1) 9,112 
JAIL 26,164 .327 24 ,980, 155 24,949. 102 
JUVEN ILE CORRECTlONAL PROBA TION 1,469,894 1, 152,863 1, 112.736 
JUVENILE DETENTlO('ll HOME 1,954.092 1,77 1,353 1.762,269 
CONSTABLl3 PRECIt-oCT NO. I 714 ,7)) 691, 193 687,978 
COI\STABLE PR..I::('INCT 1\'0. 1 410,63 7 397,281 392,763 
COI\'5TABLE PRECIN CT NO. 4 402.760 385.524 380,0 18 
CONSTABLE I'RECIN(j' NO. 6 533.907 491,346 483 .582 
CONSTABLE PRECI NCT NO 7 402,97~ 393,504 386,403 
CONSTABL€ PRE.CINCT NO ~ 400,803 398,103 38 9,638 
COUNT( MORGUE 640.000 675789 675,788 

TOTA L JUDIC' AL AN D LAW E)\' J'ORCEM tNT 64,1 81 ,3()<} 61.252,199 60,970.812 
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VARrANCE WITH 
I'INA L BUDGET 

8.737 
6,236 

7,2J 1 
4.280 
7,588 

'" 3, 117 

2,555 

3.210 
2 1,S~ 8 

6.894 
),7 19 

4,186 

3.655 

8 1,84 1 

Q, 130 

2. 702 

9.948 
1,922 

4.665 
2,161 

3.196 
4,723 

5,336 
6,2~5 

937 
1,762 

), 192 

1.726 
7.077 
4.922 

4, 112 
5,590 
1,252 
4.592 

8,7&3 
5,442 

6,379 

2.020 

52,526 
4,219 

31,on 
40,129 

9 ,084 

3.215 
4 ,5 20 
$.506 
7,764 
7, 101 

8,465 

I 

281,387 

[CONTINUEDI 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, T EXAS 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES · BUDGET AND ACTUA L (GAAP) 
FOR THE PISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3D, 20 13 

BUOGETED AMOUl'nS ACTUA L 
ORJGINAL FINAL AMOUNT 

EDUCATI ON AND RECREATION: 

AGRlCUUlJRAL EXTENSI ON SERVICE $ 38~,O64 346,536 342. 171 

TOTAL EDUCATION AND RECREATION $ 384,064 ] 46,5.36 342, 171 

HEALTH AN D WELFARE: 

PUBLIC HEAL ntl,fNrT I $ 1. 1116,003 1,080, 127 l,06u n 
PUBLIC HEAL TIllJ"NrT 2 I, r 17,724 1,062.037 \.042,945 
t-tURS E PRACllllON ER 305,767 302,73 1 299,667 
CHlLD WELFARE 158,900 15 1,069 14 5.736 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONn.Ol 349.898 143,333 335.885 

INDIGENT MEOICAL SEIW leE 4.'04.101 4,594,009 4.~88.916 

MOSQUITO COJ\'lROl 2. 163.007 1.006,827 1,995,1 SO 

£MERC,ENCY MANAGEMENT 206.993 196,215 190,245 

TOBA.CCOSElTlEMEl\'T FUND 50,000 50,000 50.000 

TOT~l HEA LTH AND WEl,.FARE $ 10.242,4 0 1 9,786,348 9,709,919 

MAINTE NANCE - EQUI PM ENT &: STRUCTURES: 

(DORmOUSE &: ANNEXES 2,692.2 17 2,365,590 2.35~.996 

PORT ARTli UR BUIl.DINGS 654.933 588,767 578.375 
MIO..a>UNTY BULLDLNGS 190,7B 190, 753 181 ,829 
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT, I 1,567,233 1,452,076 1,42:3 .235 
ROAD &: BRIDGE PCT. 2 I,Ci 13,698 1,561,827 1,544,993 
ROAD & BRIDG EPCT,) 1,887,340 1,543,695 1,)04,430 
ROAD If:. BRIDGE PeT. 4 2,047,57 1 1.870.798 1,855,742 
ENGINEERING 938,027 887.0 16 880,315 

PARKS &: RECREATION 194 ,406 198,403 171.723 
SERVICE CENTER 1, 192.781 1,275.508 1,269,402 

TQ1'A L MA INTENANCE · EQ UIPM ENT & STRl!(TURES , 12,978,959 11,934 ,4:13 11,765.040 

CAPITAL OUTL AY: $ 

DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 379. 169 379,169 379169 
lI\'TEIlEST AND COMMISSION 1.),89) 15,893 1 ~,893 

T OT AL DEBT SER VICE 395,062 395,062 395,%2 

TOTAL OPERATING EXpENDITURES $ 109,603,198 104,)94 ,198 )03,780,783 

OTHER flNANC ING USES: 

TRANSfERS OUT 4,196,802 9,40H02 9,382,422 

TOTA L OTHER fiNAN CIN G USES $ 4, 196,802 9,405,802 9,382,422 

TOTAL GENE RAL FUND EXPENDITURF..5 11 3,800,000 \ 13,S00,OOO 113.1 6],205 
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VARIANCE \\1TH 
FINAL BUDG ET 

4365 

4,365 

18,752 
19.092 
:1,064 
5.333 
7,448 
5,09) 

11.677 
5,970 

76,429 

10.594 
10.392 
8,924 

28.841 
16.8)~ 

39,265 
15,056 
6,701 

26,680 
6. 106 

169,393 

613.415 

23,380 

23,380 

636,79~ 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINI NG BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJO R GO VERNMENT AL FUNDS - SUMMA R Y 
SEPTEM BER 30, 2013 

TOTAL 

NONMAJOR 

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT GOVERNMEf"ITAL 

R~;Y-ENUE PROJECTS SERV1CE FL(N DS 

ASSETS, 

CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS $ 17,386,745 2, 170,66 1 1, 160.4 13 20,7 17,8 19 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVA Bl.E, Ne l 82,996 82,996 

fN TEREST REC EIVABLE 1,99 5 274 153 2,422 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 2.520,227 121,548 2,64 1.775 
DELfNQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Nel 100, 136 100,136 
PENALTY AND fNTEREST RECEIVABl.E, Nel 49.553 49 ,553 

fNVENTO RY, AI C051 39,9 1 I 39,9 11 
PREPAID ITEM ].[ 36 1, 136 

TOTA L ASSETS $ 20,033,0 I a 2,2 92,483 1,3 10,255 23.635,748 

LIABILI TIES AND FUN D BA LANCES 

LIABILITIES , 
ACCOUNTS PAYA BLE $ 2,334 ,832 121.548 108.3·i6 2,564,756 
DUE TO OTHER FUN DS 963,070 214,433 1, 177,503 
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 282,438 282,438 
DEFERRED RE VENUE 725,625 130,865 856.490 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 4,305,965 335,98 1 239,241 4,88 1,187 

FlIND BALANCES, 
NONS PENDA BLE FOR: 

INVENTORY $ 39,9 11 39,9 11 
PREPAID ITEMS 1,136 1,1 36 

RESTRlCTED FOR , 
DEBT SER VICE 1,07 1,0 14 1.071 ,0 14 
CONSTR UCTION 46,395 46 ,395 
PUBLIC INTEREST 1,395,549 1,3 95,549 
JU DICIAL & LA W ENFORCEMENT 4,696,316 4.696.316 
EDUCATION & RECREA TION 1, 178,666 1,178,666 
HEA LTH & WELFARE 8,277,1 97 8,277, 197 
MAfNTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

& EQUIPMENT 352 ,716 352.71 6 
COMMITTED FOR: 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 169.697 248,865 4 18.562 
ASSIGN ED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 2,064.2 17 2.064 ,2 17 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (384 ,14 )) (402,975) (787. 11 8) 

TOTAL FUND BA LANCES $ 15,72 7,04 5 1,956,501 1,07 1,0 14 18,754561 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 20 ,033,0 10 2 , ~~1..483 1,3 10,255 23,635,748 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COM BINING STATEMENT OF REVENlIES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMA,)OR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

TOTAL 

NONMAJOR 

SPECIAL c"prrAL O'IIT COYERNMENTAL 

REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE FUNDS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES S 6,112,782 6, 112,782 

SALES TAXES 1,015 ,651 1,0 15,65 1 

FEES 4,034,46 1 4,034.461 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 18,035,314 2.876.402 20,911 ,716 

SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 709,963 709,963 

FINES AN D FORFEITURES 190,090 190,090 
CONTRJBUnONS AND DONATIONS 4.700 4,700 
INTEREST 54.406 6,422 10.908 71,736 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 24,044,585 2,882 ,824 6, 123,690 33,051 ,099 

EXPENDITURES: 
CURRENT 

GENERAL GOVERJNMENT S 639,924 639,924 
JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 23 ,590,2 16 23.590,216 
EDUCA nON AND RECREATION 1.018 ,877 1,0 18,877 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 912.979 9 12,979 
MAI NTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

AND EQU IPMENT 27.332 27,332 
CAPITAL OUTL AY 2.838,085 2,838,085 
DEBT SERVICE 

PRJNCIPAL 3,965,000 3,965,000 
INTEREST AND COMMI SSION 1,960,536 1,960,536 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 26, 189,328 2,838,08 5 5,925,536 34,952,949 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (2, 144,743) 44,739 198, 154 (1 ,901,850) 

OTHER FlNA NCING SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN $ 1, 145,679 50,000 1, 195,679 
TRANSFERS OUT (406.955) (406,955) 

TOTAL OTHER FINAN CING SOURCES (USES) $ 738,724 50,000 788,724 

NET CHAN GE IN FUND BALANCES S (1 ,406,019) 94 ,739 198, 154 ( 1, 113, 126) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNII"G $ 17,149,498 1,861 ,763 872,860 19,884,1 21 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTM ENT (16,434 ) (16,434) 

FlJND BALANCE. BEGINNING (Resta ted) $ 17, 133,064 1,861,763 872,860 19,867.687 

FlIND B.~LANCES, ENDII"G $ 15,727,045 1,956,502 1,071,014 18,754,561 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources other than expendable trusts, or major capital projects thatare legally restricted 
to expenditures for speci fied purposes. Included in this heading are the following 
individual funds: 

Lateral Road Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures of materials 
incurred in the maintenance of the lateral roads of the County. Financing is provided 
by contributions from the State. 

Breath Alcohol Testing Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
courts on D.W.I. convictions and the expenditure of those funds. 

Law Library Fund - This fund is used to account for the maintenance of the County 
Law Library. Financing is provided by fees from law suits filed in the District Courts 
and County Courts-at-Law. 

Juvenile Probation and Detention Fund - This fund is used to account for receipts 
specifically designated for use in juvenile programs. 

Bail Bond License Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures made by the 
courts from a five hundred dollar fee collected for all bond licenses. 

County Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to 
account for fees collected by the County Clerk for the maintenance of their records and 
the expenditure of those funds. 

County Clerk Records Archive Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
collected by the County Clerk for the preservation of records prior to 1990 and the 
expenditure of those funds. 

ASAP Constable Pct 8 Program - This fund is used to account for fees collected 
from the Port Arthur Independent School for the administration of the Absent Student 
Assistance Program (ASAP) by the Constable Pct 8 and the expenditure of those funds 
for the program. 
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County Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to 
account for fees collected by the County Clerk, District Clerk, and Sheriff for the 
maintenance of County records and the expenditure of those funds. 

Justice Court Building Security - This fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the justice courts to finance security services and equipment for justice courts not 
located in the County courthouse. 

Hotel Occu pancy Tax Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection of a 2% 
HotellMotel Occupancy tax. Revenues collected from this tax are to be used for 
tourism projects in the County. 

County and District Court Technology Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
. collected from defendants convicted in a County, Statutory County, or District court 
and the expenditures of those funds on technological enhancements for the previously 
mention courts. 

Sheriff and Constable Education Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
expenditures associated with the education of Sheriffs deputies and Constables of the 
County. 

Tax Office Auto Dealer Fund - This fund is used to account for taxes collected from 
Local Auto Dealerships to be used by the County's Tax Office. 

Unclaimed Funds Management Fund - This fund is used to account for Unclaimed 
Funds for all County departments. 

Family Protection Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
District Clerk for family violence prevention or intervention and the expenditure of this 
money. 

District Attorney Forfeiture Fund - This fund is used to account for forfeitures 
received by the District Attorney from criminal convictions and the expenditure of 
those funds. 

Hot Check Fund - This fund is used to account for fees received by the District 
Attorney for the prosecution of hot check offenders and the expenditure of those funds. 
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Justice of the Peace Courtroom Technology Fund - This fund is used to account for 
the fees collected by the Justices of the Peace on misdemeanor convictions and the 
expenditure of those funds on technological enhancements for the justices' courts. 

District Clerk Records Management Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
collected by the District Clerk for the maintenance of their records and the expenditure 
of those funds. 

County Clerk Election Contracts - This fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the County Clerk for election contracts with local governments and the expenditure of 
those funds. 

County Clerk HA V A Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
County Clerk for the rental of equipment purchased by the Help Americans Vote Act 
(HA VA) grant. 

Child Abuse Prevention - This fund is lIsed to account for fee s collected for certain 
child sexual assault and related convictions and the expenditure of those funds. 

Sherifrs Special Revenue Funds - This fund is used to account for fees, forfeitures , 
and other revenue received by the Sheriff in association with Security Fees, Law 
Officer Training fees, D.A.R.E. Contributions, Sheriffs Forfeitures, Sheriffs 
Commissary, and the Marine Division reimbursements, and the expenditure of those 
funds. 

Guardianship Fee Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
County Clerk to supplement the support of the judiciary in cases involving 
guardianships. 

Juvenile Delinquency Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the courts for certain offenses and the expenditures associated with juvenile 
delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication measures. 

District Court Records Technology - This fund is used to account for fees collected 
by the District Clerk for the preservation and restoration of District Court records. 

Probation Department Funds - These funds are used to account for the expenditures 
of maintaining probation services as authorized by the County and District Courts. 
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Financing is provided by State grant and probationary fees. Included in this heading 
are the following individual funds: 

Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid 
Juvenile Community Corrections Program 
IV-E Foster Care Fund 
Juvenile Accountability #1 
Mentally Impaired Offenders 
Community Supervision 
Women's Center 
Mental Health Services 
Community Corrections 
High Risk Caseload 
Drug Diversion Program 
Juvenile Accountability #2 
Juvenile TJPC A 
Juvenile Advocate Incentive 

Grant Funds - These funds are used to account for receipts of Federal and State grants 
designated for special projects or services. Included in this heading are the following 
individual funds: 

Family Group Conferencing 
Bush-Clinton Recovery 
Sheriff Training Grant 
Forensic Science Improve 
Diabetes Prevention Grant 
JAG Grant 
Sheriff Dept Grants 
SCAAP Grant 
Crime Victims Clearing - I 
Regional Communication 
Crime Victims Clearing - 2 
EMPG Grant 
Forensic Science Improvement Grant 
Port Security Grants 
ARRA Port Security 2009 
High Intensity Drug Traffic 
Auto Theft Grant 
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FEMA Emergency 
Drug Intervention Grant 
Violence Against Women - 1 
Violence Against Women - 2 
Family Treatment Court 
Hamshire Water & Sewer III 
Cheek Step Sewer Improvements 
SHSP & LETPP Grants 
Hamshire Dump Site Hwy 73 
Cheek Water and Sewer Phase 3 
Community Emergency Response Grant 
First Time Sewer 
TXCDBG Disaster Recovery 
FBI Firing Range 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY , TEXAS 
CO~1BINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

BREATH JUVENILE 

LATERA L ALCOHOL LAW PROBATION &: 

ROAD TESTING LIBRARY DETENTION 

FUNDS FUN D FUND ruN D 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVA LENTS $ 352,669 27,036 11 4,690 494,067 

ACCOUNTS RECElVA BLE, Net 

INTEREST RECEI VAB LE 47 , 14 62 

DUE FROM OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 2.875 

INVENTORY, Al CoSt 

PREPA ID ITEMS 

TOTA LASS ETS $ 352,7 16 27,040 11 4,704 497 ,004 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILnrES: 

ACCOUNTSPAVABLE $ 15,9 16 3,043 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNM ENTAL ENT ITI ES 

DEFERRED REVENUE 

TOTA L LlASIUTIES $ 15,9 16 3,043 

FUND BALANCES, 
NONSPENDABLE FOR, 

INVENTORY $ 

PRH A ID ITEMS 

RESTRICTED FOR, 

PUBLIC lNTEREST 

JU DICIA L & LA W 
ENFORCEMENT 27,040 493,961 

EDUCA llON & RECREA TJON 98,788 

HEALTH& WELFARE 

MAINTENANCE OF 

STRUCTURES & EQUI PMENT 352,7 16 

COMMITTED FOR 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

UNASSIGNED IDEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 352,716 27,040 98,788 493 ,961 

TOi.'\ L liABILITIES AND 
FUND 8AL-\NCES $ 352.716 27,040 114.704 497.004 

72 

218



BAll BOND 

UCENSE 

FUND 

495 

495 

495 

49 5 

495 

COt!NTY CLERK 

R};CORDS 

MGMT. AND 

PRESERVA TI ON 

FUND 

474,157 

61 

474,2 18 

15_211 

15,212 

459,006 

459,006 

474,2 18 

COUN1l' 

CLERK 

RECORDS 

ARCHIVE 

FUND 

18,82 1 

18,821 

2' ,600 

24,600 

(5,719) 

(5,779) 

18 ,82 1 

ASA P 

CONSTAB L( 

per • 

PROGRAM 

92,24 5 

92,2' 5 

36556 

55,689 

92 ,245 

9') ,245 

73 

COUNTY 

RECORDS 

MGMT. AND 

PRESERVATION 

FUND 

45 ! ,653 

59 

45 1,712 

2,677 

2,677 

449,035 

45 1,7 12 

219



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUN DS - SPECIAL REVENUE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

JUSTICE HOTEL COtlNTY 8: 

COURT OCCUPANCY DISTRICT COURT 

BU ILD ING TAX TECH NOLOGY 

SECL1RITY FUND FUND 

ASSETS, 

CASH AND CASH EQU IVALENTS $ 7 1, 144 1,034,067 11,484 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVAB LE, Nel 74.7$5 

INTEREST RECEIVABLE 9 133 2 
DUE FROM OTl-lER 

GOVERNMENTA L ENTITI ES 

INVENTORY, Al Cos. 

PREPAID ITEMS 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 71, 153 1, 108,985 11 ,486 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIAB ILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PA YA8LE S 29,107 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL EN TITIES 
DEFERRED RE VENUE 

TOTAL LIABILITI ES $ 29,107 

FUND BALANCES: 

NONSPENDA8LE FOR: 
TNVENTORY $ 
PREPAID ITEMS 

RESTRICTED FOR: 
PUB LIC TNTEREST 
JUDIC1AL& LAW 

ENFORCEMENT 7 1, 153 11.486 

EDUCATION & RECREATION 1,079,878 

HEAr.TII & WELFARE 

MAINTENANCE OF 

STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT 
COMM Jn'ED FOR 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

UNASS IGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 7),153 1,079,87& 11,486 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES $ 71,153 1,108,985 11,486 
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SHtRfff A ND 

CONSTABLE: 

EDUCATION 

ruND 

38,476 

38,480 

2,563 

2,563 

35.9 17 

35 .917 

38,4S0 

TAX OFFI C E: 

AUTO 

DEAL ER 

FUND 

24 1,900 

J2 

241 ,932 

48,269 

4B ,269 

193.663 

193,663 

241,932 

UNCLAIMED 

FUNDS 

MANAGEMENT 

FUND 

122,9 11 

122,911 

10.420 

10,-l2 0 

11 2,49 1 

11 2,49 1 

122.9 11 

FA MILY 

PROTECT ION 

FUND 

IB,9BO 

2 

18,982 

IB,962 

18.982 

IS,962 

75 

DI STRICT 

AITOflNtY 

FORfE!TURt 

FUND 

197,717 

2 

197,71 9 

197 ,7 19 

197.71 9 

197.719 

HOT 

CHECK 

FUND 

32,847 

]2,847 

635 
S-l 7 

1,182 

3 1,665 

) 1 ,665 

32 ,847 

JP 

coun TROOM 

TECHNOLOGY 

ruND 

464.128 

6 1 

464, 189 

327 

327 

46].862 

463.862 

464,189 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

DISTRICT COUNTY COUNTY 

CLERK CLERK CLERK CHILD 

RECORDS ELECflON HAV", ABUS E 

MANAGEMENT CONlRACTS FUND PREVENTION 

ASSETS, 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS \7.246 8.081 23,730 l,478 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Nel 

INTEREST RECEl VABLE 2 3 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTA L ENTIT IES 

INVENTOR Y. A I Cosl 

PREPAID ITEMS 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 17,248 8,082 ll ,7ll 3,478 

L1 ABJLJTl ES AND FUND BALANCES 

LiABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PA Y ABLE $ 1,.515 

DU E TO OTHER FUNDS 
DUE TO OTH ER 

GOVERNMENTA L ENT ITI ES 

DEFERRED REV ENU E 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,515 

FUN D BALANCES, 

NQNSPENDA8 LE FOR. 

INVENTORY 
PREPAID IT EMS 

RESTRICTED FOR. 
PUBLIC lN TEREST 8,082 23,733 
JUDICIAL & LA W 

ENFORCEME NT 15,733 lA78 
EDUCATION & RECREATION 

HEALTH & WELFARE 

MAINTENANCE OF 
STR UCTURES & EQU IPMENT 

COMM ITTED FOR, 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
UNASS IGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES S IS,7ll 8,082 23,7)3 3,478 

TOTAL LiABILITI ES AND 
FUND BALANCES $ 17,248 8,082 23,733 l ,478 
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SHER IFF'S 

SPECIAL 

REVENUE 

FUN DS 

1,967.396 

500 

3S 

549,309 

19,9 11 

2,557,151 

189.253 

4875 15 

676,768 

19,9 11 

1,840,4 72 

1,880,383 

2,557, 151 
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GUAR DIANSHIP 

FEE 

FUNO 

149,539 

20 

149,559 

20 

20 

149,539 

149,539 

149,559 

JUVENILE 

DELI NQUENCY 

PREVENTION 

81,686 

II 

8 1,697 

81 ,697 

81,697 

81,697 

DlSTRK, 

COURT 

RECORDS 

TECHNOLOGY 

6 1,478 

8 

6 1,486 

61,486 

61,486 

6 1,4 86 

PR08ATION 

DEPARHfENT 

FUNDS 

2,477,538 

7, \74 

315 

5,433 

1,058 

2,491,5 18 

373,438 

89,947 

282 ,438 

725,625 

1,471 ,448 

1,058 

1, 165,799 

(146 ,787) 

I ,020,070 

2,49 1,5 18 

77 

GRANT 

ruNDS 

8,429,33 I 

537 

1, 108 

1.870,365 

78 

10,301 ,41 9 

1,580,786 

329,3 72 

1,910,1 58 

78 

175 ,866 

8,277, 197 

169,697 

(231,577) 

8,391 ,261 

10,301 ,419 

TOTA L 

17,386,745 

82,996 

, ,995 

2,520,227 

39,9 11 

1,136 

20,0)),0 10 

2,:n4 ,8 32 

963 ,070 

282 ,4 38 

725 ,625 

41305,965 

39,9 11 

1, 136 

1,395,549 

4,696) 16 

1, 178,66(; 

8,277,197 

352,7 16 

169,697 

(384,1 43) 

15 ,727,045 

20,033,0 \ 0 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY , TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES , 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVE~"i~1ENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

BREATH 

LATERAL AL.CO HOL LAW 

RO AD TESTfNC LrBRARY 

FUND fUND roND 

REVENlIES: 
TAXES $ 

FEES 10,422 66,664 
FINES AND FORFEITtJR£S 
SALES, RENTAL & SER VICES 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 30,119 

INTEREST 1,057 7 1 "8 
CONTR IBUTIONS AND DONAT IONS 

TOT AL REV ENUES $ 31 ,176 10,493 67.082 

EXPENDITURES: 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 

JUD ICIAL A NO LA W ENFORCEJvfENT 4,794 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 162,018 
HEA LTH AND WELFARE 
MA INTENANCE OF STRUcrURE.S 

AND EQUTPl'vfENT 27,332 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 27,332 4,794 162 ,0 18 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OFREVENtI£S 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 3,844 5,699 (94,936) 

OTHER FINANCrNC SOURCES (l IS[S): 
TRANSFERS IN $ 

TRANSFERS OUT 

TOTAL OT H ER FI NANC IN G 
SOllRCES (l ISES) $ 

NET C HA NGE TN FUND BALAN CES S 3,844 5,699 (94 ,936) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGfNNIN G S 348,872 21,3<1 j 193,724 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

FUN 0 DALANCES, BEGINNING (Reslaled) $ 348
1
872 11,34 1 193,724 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 352,716 27,040 98,788 

78 

J\JVU/TL( 

PROBATION & 

DET'£NT1ON 

nJND 

37,646 

265, 132 

1.858 

304,636 

)3! ,856 

331 ,8 56 

(27,2')0) 

35.670 
C~ ,2 50) 

33,420 

6,200 

487,761 

487,7 61 

493
1
961 
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COUNTY CLERK COUI\TY COUNTY 

RECORDS C LERK ASAP RECORDS 

BA IL BOND MG~H. "''fO RECORDS CONSTABLE M Gil-H .AA"D 

LICENS E PRESER VATION ARCHI VE pcr 8 PRESERvATION 

FUN. F1IND FUND PROGRA M FUND 

1.98 1 2 19,676 138,461 149.678 

7~5.t;98 

13 I,l .j O 103 1.163 

1,994 120,8 16 238,565 745,898 150 ,841 

159,924 343.258 63, 108 
10,845 745 .893 

JO,S4 S 159 ,924 343.258 74 5.898 63, 108 

18 ,85 1 ) 60,892 (l04,693) 87,7)3 

(S ,851 ) 60,892 (104,693) 87,733 

8,85 1 398,11 4 98,9 14 36 1.)02 

8,8:5 I 398.114 98,914 36 1,302 

459.006 (5,779) 449,035 

[CONTINUED) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR 11-IE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

JUSTICE HOTEL 

COURT OCCUPANCY 

BlllLDING TAX 

SECURITY FUND 

REVENllES: 
TAXES 1,015,651 

FEES 13.106 
FINES AND FORF EITURES 
SALES, RENTAL & SERV ICES 17.949 
INTERGOVERNMHITA L 

fNTEREST 187 2,455 
COl'ITRlBUTIONS AND DONA TrONS 

TOTA L REVENU ES S 13,293 1,036,055 

EXPEN DITURES: 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT , 
JUD IC IA L AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 

EDUCATION A ND RECREATiON 856,859 

HEALTH AND WELFARE 
MAlmENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

AND EQUIPMENT 

CAPll AL OUTlA Y 

TOTAL EXPENDITUR ES , 856,859 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENU ES 
OVER EXPE.\'DITLlRES $ 13,293 179. 196 

OTHER F'lN i\ NCING SO l!RCES (USES): 
TR ANSFERS IN , 
TRA NSFERS OUT (50,000) 

TOTAL OlOER FJNANC ING 
SOURCES (USES) , (50,000) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES , 13,293 129,196 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNI NG $ 57,860 950,682 

PRIOR PERIOD ADJ1JSTMENT 

FUND BALANCES, BEGfNNING (Restated ) , 57,860 950,682 

FUND BALANCES. ENDING , 71,153 1,079,878 

80 

COUNTY & 

DISTRICTCOUJ!;T 

TECHNOLOGY 
FUND 

5,090 

06 

S, 1I 6 

5,116 

5,116 

6,370 

6,370 

11,486 
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SHER!!"F AND 

CONSTAOLE 

eDUCATION 

ruND 

144 

144 

23 .463 

23,463 

(23,3 19) 

(23,319) 

59 .236 

59,236 

35,917 

TAX OFFICE 

AllTO 

OI:ALER 

FUND 

4,466 

3,526 

7,993 

56,043 

56,043 

(48 .05!) 

(4 8,051) 

24 1,7 14 

241.7 14 

193,663 

lJNC~AJM"£O 

FUNDS 

~fANAGEME"''' 

ruND 

S, 117 

5.1 17 

5,1 17 

5,1 17 

\07,374 

107,374 

112,491 

F'AMrLY 

PROTECTION 

FUND 

15.990 

.11 

16.021 

18,000 

18,000 

( 1.979) 

~ I ,979l 

20.961 

20,96 1 

18,982 

81 

D[STR1Cf 

ATTORNEY 

FOR FEITURE 

FUND 

87.'169 

[Q,04S 

597 

107, 111 

! 71,933 

)71,933 

(64,822) 

(64,822) 

262.54 I 

262,541 

197,719 

HOT 

CHECK 

FUND 

51.361 

51.36 1 

100,467 

100,46 7 

(49.106) 

(49.106) 

80,77 ] 

80,77) 

3 I ,665 

oW 

COURTROOM 

TECHNOLOGY 

FUND 

53,200 

1,290 

54.490 

23.158 

23,758 

30,732 

30,732 

433,130 

433,130 

'163,862 

ICONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVE RNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 201) 

DIS1'RICT COUNTY COUNTY 

CL.ERK CLERK CLERK 

RECORDS ELECTIO N ""VA 

CHILD 

AI'IUSE 

MANAC [ M"ENT CONTRAC-rS FUND PREV'fJ'IT1 ON 

REVENUES: 
TAXES S 
FEES 21,770 1.478 
FINES AND FORFEITURES 
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 8,067 23,68 1 
INTERGOVERNMENTA L 
IN TEREST 65 17 '9 8 
CONTRIBUT IONS AND DONAT IONS 

TOTAL REVENUES S 21,835 8,084 23,730 1,486 

EXPENDITURES: 
GEN ERAL GOVERNMENT S 3,563 11.528 
JUDIC IAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT )7,710 

EDUCAT ION AND RECREATION 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 
MAINTENANCE Of STRUCTURES 

AND EQUIPMENT 
eAPn AL OUTLA Y 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES S 37 ,7 10 J.S6J 11 ,528 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCV) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ ( 15.875) 4,521 1'),202 1.486 

OTHER FINANC ING SOllRCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN , 
TRANSFERS OUT 

TOTALOTAER FINANCING 
SOURCES (lISES) S 

NET CHANGE TN FUND BALANCES S (1S,875) 4,521 12,202 1,486 

f UN D BALANCES, BEGtNNrNG S 3 1,608 ],561 11 ,531 1,992 
PR IOR PERI O D ADJllSTMENT 

FUND BALANCES, BEG INNING (Resis ted) $ 31,608 3t56 1 11,531 1,992 

FUND BALANCES, ENDrNG 5 15,733 8,082 23,733 3,478 

82 

SHERIFf'S 

SPECIAL 

REVENUE 
FliNUS 

165,348 

100 ,621 
660,237 

1,867. 864 
5.242 
4

1
600 

2,803.912 

J ,44(),ISO 

3,446, 150 

(642,238) 

440.000 
(l49.040) 

290.960 

P 51,278) 

2,23 I ,66 1 

2,23 1,66 1 

1,88Q,383 
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j)jSTlUCT 

GUARO lANSH (P JUVENILE COtJRT PRO DATION 

FE< OEl. Il'QUENCY RECORDS O[PARTMEI\'T GRANT 

FUND PR[VENTION TECHNO LOGy F1JJ''DS FUNDS TOTAIJ 

1,0 1 S,651 
27,060 347 21,540 2,924,059 4,034,461 

2,000 190,090 
29 709,963 

4,129,188 10,978,068 18,035,31 4 
198 236 148 8,596 25,568 54 ,406 

100 4,700 

27,458 58) 21 ,688 7,063 ,843 11 ,003,765 24,044,585 

2.500 639,9 24 
7,907, 862 10,767,480 23,590,2 16 

1.0 18,877 
912,979 9 12,979 

27,332 

2,500 7,907,862 11 ,680,459 26_189 ,328 

24,958 583 21,688 (84<1,019) (676.694) (2,14<1,74 3) 

207,424 462,585 1,145,6 79 
(205 ,174) (49 1) (406,955 ) 

2,250 462,094 738,724 

24,958 583 21 ,688 (841,769) ~2 1 4 ,600 l (1,406,0 19) 

12458 1 81.1 14 39,798 1,878,273 8,605,86 1 17, 149,498 
(16,434) (16,434) 

124,581 81 , 11 4 39,798 1,861 ,839 8,605,80 1 17,133,064 

149,539 81 ,697 61,486 1,020,070 8,39 1,26 1 15,727,045 

8) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS­

SPECIAL REVEN UE - PROBA nON DEPARTMENT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

JUV f:N ILE 

PROBATION JUVENILE 

AND COMMUNITY IV·E rOSTER JUVEN ILE 

DETI:NTlON- CORRECTIONS CARE A CCOUNTABILITY 

ASSETS: 

CASH AN D CAS H EQU IVALENTS 
ACCDUNTS RECEIVA BLE, Ne t 
INTEREST REC EI VA BLE 
DUE FROM O THER 

GOVERNM ENTAL ENTITIES 
PREPAID ITEMS 

TOTAL ASS HS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LI AB ILITI ES : 
ACCOU NTS PAYABLE 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
DUE TO OT HER 

GOVERN MENTAL ENTITIES 
DE FER RED REVENUE 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BA LANCES: 
NONS PENDAB LE FOR: 

STATE AID 

$ 27,796 
390 

57 

$ 28,24 3 

$ 1,891 

44.295 

$ ___ 4""6",, 1",87,-

PREPAID IT EMS $ 57 
RES TRICTED FOR: JUD ICIA L & 

LA W ENFORCEMENT 
UNASS IGNE D (DE FIC IT) (18,00 1) 

(17.944) TOTAL FUN D BALANC ES $ ___ ==,-,-
TOTAL LIAilILITIES AN D 

FUND BALANC ES 28,243 

PROGRAM FUN t) #1 

2,278 5S6,96 1 

90 

1,05 1 

2,278 587,05 1 1,05 1 

324 
1.05 1 

34,163 324 1,05 I 

586,727 
(3 1,885) 

(3 1,885) 586,727 

7,278 587,05 1 I ,OS I 

ICONTINUEDj 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS­

SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBA nON DEPARTMENT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

MENTALLY 

IMPAIRED MENTAL 

OFFENDERS COMMUNm' WOMEN' S HEALTH 

PROCR.'\.M SUPERVISION CENTER SERVICES 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 53037 913,371 568,813 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Nel 4,792 976 
INT EREST RECEIVABLE 22 1 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 
PREPAID ITEMS 707 14 5 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 53,037 919,091 569,934 

LiABILITIES AND FUND BALA NCES 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCO UNTS PA VABLE $ 5,074 155,149 98,540 4.443 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 23,711 202,681 
DEFERRED REVENUE 22,537 227.947 239,519 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 51,322 383,096 540,740 4,44) 

FUND BALANCES: 
NONSPENDABLE FOR 

PREPAID IT EMS $ 707 145 
RESTRICTED FOR: JU DICIAL & 

LA W ENFORCEMENT 1,715 535 ,288 29,049 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (4,443) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 1,715 5)5 ,995 29, 194 (4,443) 

TOTAL L1A B1LITIES AND 
FlIND BA LANCES $ 53,037 9 19,091 569,934 
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CO MMUNITY 

CO RRECfION S 

16:'.9 18 
1,0 16 

149 

167,083 

14,529 

56,046 
8),))9 

153.914 

149 

13,020 

13, 169 

167,083 

HIGH 

RISK 

CASELO,\D 

69.083 

69,083 

8.697 
60,386 

69,083 

69,083 

DRUG 

DIVERSION 

PROGRAM 

86,825 

18 

86,843 

23.1 14 

69,658 

92 ,772 

(5,929) 

(S.929l 

86,843 

JUVLNILE 

ACCOUNTABILITY 

" 

4,364 

4.364 

4,364 

4,3 64 

4,364 

87 

J1JVENILE 

TJPC 

A 

4 

4 

6 1,676 
24 . 146 

85,822 

(85 ,8 18) 

(85 ,8 18l 

4 

ruVENJLf. 

ADVOCATE 

INCENTTVE 

3.456 

3,456 

4,167 

4,167 

Pll) 

(7 11 ) 

3,456 

20lJ 

TOTAL 

2,477 ,538 
7.174 

315 

5,433 
1,058 

2,491,518 

373 ,438 
89,947 

282 ,438 
725,625 

1,471 ,448 

1,058 

1.165.799 
(l46 ,787l 

1,0'0,070 

2,491.518 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBIN ING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEN DITURES, 

AND CHAN GES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVE RNMENTAL FUNDS­
SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBA TJON DEPARTMENT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTE MBER 30, 2013 

REVENUES, 
FEES $ 

FIN ES AND FORFEITURES 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
INTEREST 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES, 
JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 
CAPIT AL OUTLAY 

T OTAL EXPENDITURES $ 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPE"IDITURES $ 

OTHER flNANCI.'L SOURCES (USES): 
TRA NSFERS IN $ 

TRANSFERS OUT 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 

NET CHANCE IN FUN D nALAN CES $ 

fUND BA. LANCES, BEGlNNlNG 
PRI OR PERI OD ADJUSTMENT 

H IND BALANC ES, OCTOB £R 1 (Rcsi3 Ied) $ 

FU;'\'O BALANC ES. ENDING $ 

JUVENfLE 

PROBATION JUVENILE 

AND COMM UN ITY 

DETENTlON-- COR RECTIONS 

STATE AID PROGRA."" 

45,586 
87 

45,673 

57,82 1 

57,821 

( 12,148) 

(12, 148) 

(2,949) (3 1,885) 
(7,847) 

(5,796) (3 1,885) 

(J 7,944) (3 I ,88 5) 

89 

rv-E rOSTER 

CARE 

f UND 

19,345 
1,832 

21 . 177 

8,789 

8,789 

i 2,388 

12,388 

574,339 

574 ,339 

586,727 

JUVENILE 

ACCOUNTABILITY 

" 

1.05 1 

1,051 

1.168 

1,1 68 

( I 17) 

11 7 

117 

(CONTIN UED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS· 
SPECIAL REVENUE· PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

MENTALLY 

iMPAfRED 

OFFENDERS COl\fl\fUNllY WOMEN'S 

PROGRAM SU PERVl SION CENTER 

REVENU ES: 
FEES $ 2,5J I ,00 I J2J ,l9J 
FI NES AN D f ORFEITURES 2,000 
INTERGOVERNM ENTAL I I 1,5 09 1,309,968 774,394 

INTE REST 6,672 

TOTAL REVENUES S I 11 ,509 J,84 9,64 I 1,097,687 

EXPENDlTV RES: 
JUD IC IAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT $ 119,357 J,772,47J 1,588, 11 4 
CAPITAL O UTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDIT URES $ 119,357 3,772,473 1,588, 11 4 

EXC ESS (DEFI CIENCY) OF R EYENU ES 
OYER EXP ENDITURES $ (7 ,848 ) 77, 168 (490,427) 

OTHER FIN ANC IAL SO URC ES (US ES): 
TRANSFERS IN $ 
TRANS fERS OUT (205, 174) 

TOTAL OTHER FINA NC ING SOURCES (USES) $ (205 ,174) 

NET C HA NG E IN FU ND BALANCES $ (7,848) (128,006) (490,427) 

FUN D BALA NCES, BEGINNiNG 9,56J 664 ,001 519,62 1 
PRIOR P ERIOD ADJUSTME NT 

FUND BALANCES, OcrOBER I (Re!it1lted) $ 9 ,56J 664,001 519 .621 

FUN D BALA NCES, ENDING $ t ,7 J 5 535,995 29,194 

90 

MENTAL. 

HEALTH 

SERVlCES 

4,44 3 

4,44 J 

(4 ,443) 

(4 ,44J) 

(4,443) 
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HI GR DRUG JUV ENfLE JUVENfLE JUVENILE 

COMM'UN ln ruSK DI VERSI ON ACCOUNTABILITY TJPC ADVOCATE 1013 

CORRECTIONS CASELOAD PROGRAM #2 A I1'I'CENTIVE TOTAL 

69,765 2,924,059 
2,000 

366.700 154.174 )33. 1 17 19,20 1 944 ,077 4, 129,188 

5 8,596 

366,766 154,174 452,882 19,201 944,082 7,063,843 

370,107 248 ,8 16 557,575 21,335 1,157,864 7,907,862 

370,107 248,816 557,575 21,335 } ,157,864 7,907,862 

(3,341 ) (94,642) (104,693) (2, 134) (2 13,782) (844,0 19) 

103,725 101,448 2.1 34 207,424 
(205, 174) 

103,725 101,448 2, 134 2,250 

(3,34 1) 9,083 (3,245) (213,782) (841,769) 

16,5 10 (9,083) (2,684) 141 ,551 (711 ) 1,878 ,273 
(13,5 87) (16,434) 

16,5 10 (9,083) (2,684) 127,964 (7 II ) 1.86 1,839 

13, 169 (5 ,929) (85 ,8 18) (7 II ) 1,020,070 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS-

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUN DS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

FAMTLY 

GROU P BUSH . SHERIFF rOR£NSIC 

CONFERENCING CLINTON TRAINING SCJ ENCE 

PROIEcr RECOVERY GRAI\'T I MPROV[ 

ASSET S: 

CASH AND CA SH EQU IVA LENTS $ 35,778 1,646 
ACCOUNTS RECE IVA BLE , Net 
INTEREST RECE IVA BLE 5 
DUE FROM OTH ER 

GOV ER NMENTAL ENTTTlES 12,022 1,658 
PREPAID ITE MS 

TOT A L ASSETS $ 35,783 1,646 12,022 1,658 

LI AB ILI TIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LlA BlLITIES, 
ACCOUNTS PA YABLE 1,8 15 
DUE TO OTH ER FUNDS 17.41 R l ,658 
DUETOOTHER 

GOVERNMENT AL ENTiTlES 
DEFERRED REVENUE 

TOTAL LiABILITIES 19,233 1,658 

FtJr'iO BALANCES: 
NONS PEN DABLE FOR' 

PREPAID ITEMS $ 
RESTRICTED FOR: 

JUDICIAL& LAW 
ENFORCEMENT 35,783 

HEALTH & WELFARE 1,646 
COMMlITED FOR: 

CONSTR UC TiON CONTRACTS 
UNASSlGNED (DEFlCIT) (7,21 1 ) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 35,783 1,646 (7,2 11 ) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 
AND FUND BALANCES $ 35,783 1,646 12,022 1,658 
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DIABETES 

PREVENTION 

GRANT 

JAG 

GRANT 

-lOS 
27,29R 

27,706 

(27,706) 

(27,706) 

SHERIF'F' 

DEPT 

GRAr".'TS 

369 

369 

(369) 

(369) 

SCAAP 

GRANT 

27.RSR 

4 

27,862 

?7 ,862 

27,862 

27,862 

93 

CRJME 

VlCTTM S 

Cl.EARJNG - 1 

6 .. 154 

5,090 

11,44 4 

9,780 

9,780 

1.664 

1,66< 

11,444 

REGIONAL 

COj'vf~fUN1CAnON 

69,042 

9 

69,05 1 

69,051 

69,05 ) 

69,05 1 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS-

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

FORENSIC 

CRIME SCIENCE PORT 

VICTIMS EMPG rMPRQVEMENT SECURITY 

CLEARING· 2 GRANT GRANT GRANTS 

ASS ETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS $ 52,827 108 
ACCOUNTS RECE IV ABLE , Ne! 
INTEREST RECEIV ABLE 7 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITI ES 10,562 JO,876 1,742,424 

PREPA ID ITEMS 

T OTAL ASSETS $ 10,562 83 ,7 10 108 1,742 ,424 

liABILITIES AN D FUND BAlANCES 

LlABILrrIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAY AOLE 1,08 7 1,534,725 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 9,:? 88 207,699 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENT AL ENTITIES 
DEFERRED REVENUE 

TOTAL Ll A81LITIES $ 9 ,288 1,087 1,742 ,424 

FUND BA LANCES: 
NONSPENDABLE FOR 

PREP AID ITEMS 
RESTRI CTED FOR 

JUDICI AL & LAW 
ENFORCEMENT 1,274 108 

HEALTH & WELFARE 82,623 
COMM ITTED FOR 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
UNA SSIGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 1,274 g"l.62J 108 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 
AND FUND BALANCES $ 10,562 83 ,710 108 1,742,424 
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AIUtA 

PORT 

SEC~R1TY 

1009 

169,697 
(169,697) 

HIGH 

INTENSIT Y 

DRUG 

TRAFFIC 

3,449 
13.068 

16,517 

(16,5 17) 

(16,517) 

AUTO 

THEFT 

GRANT 

25 ,075 

25,075 

9,90~ 

21,252 

31, 156 

(6,08 1 ) 

(6,081) 

25 ,075 

fEMA 

EMERGENCY 

8.16',297 

1,081 

8, J65, 378 

8, 165,3 78 

8, 165.378 

8,165,378 

95 

DRUG 

I NTERVE"'T ) O~ 

GRANT 

11 ,952 

11 .952 

2,802 
10.158 

13,060 

(1, 108) 

(1,108) 

11 ,952 

V10LEr"CE 

AGAINST 

WOMEN.) 

11 ,057 

11 ,057 

1,500 
9,557 

11 .057 

11/057 

VIO LENCE 

AG,\ I [':ST 

WOM EN·2 

536 

8,625 
7R 

9.239 

7.7 10 
1,529 

9. :::! ]9 

78 

(78) 

9,239 

[CONTINUED! 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FU NDS-

SPECIAL REVEN UE - GRANT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

CHEEK 

FAM ILY HAMSHIRE STEP SASP &: 

TREATMEf';" WATER &: SEWER LETPP 

COURT SEWER In IMPRQ\'[MENTS GRA NTS 

ASSETS, 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 5,877 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 
INTEREST RECEIV ABLE 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENT AL ENTITIES 11 ,024 

PREPAID ITEMS 

TOTA L ASSET S 11 ,024 5,877 

Li AB ILITIES AND FUND BALANC ES 

Li ABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 3,10'2 ],750 385 

DUE TO OTH ER FUNDS R,367 I,no 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITI ES 
DEFERRED REV ENUE 

TOTAL LiABILITIES 11 ,469 3,750 2,365 

FliN D BA LAN CES: 
NONSPENDABLE FOR 

PREPAlD ITEM S 
RESTR ICTED FOR' 

JUDICIAL & LA W 
ENFORCEMENT 

HEA LTH & WELFA RE 2.117 
COMM ITIED FOR, 

CONSTR UCTION CONTRACTS 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (445 ) (2,365) 

TOTAL FUND BALAN CES $ (445) 2,127 (2,365) 

TOTAL LiAUiLtTIES 
AND FUND BALANC ES $ 11 ,024 5,877 

96 
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HAMSHIRE 

DUHPsrTE 

HWY 7J 

\ 9~ 

192 

192 

191 

192 

C HEEK 

WATER AN D 

SEWER 

PHASE J 

CO MMUNITY 

EMERGENCY 

RESPONS E 

GRA NT 

4,76 1 

4,762 

4,762 

4,762 

4,762 

FIRST 

TIME 

SEWER 

757 

758 

758 

758 

758 

97 

TXCDBG 

DI SASTE R 

RECOVER Y 

19.902 

19,903 

19.90) 

19,903 

19,903 

FBr 

rJ RING 

RANG E 

39,932 

)9,9)2 

) 9,9)2 

) 9,932 

39,932 

zorJ 
GRA NT 

TOTALS 

8.429)) 1 
5)7 

1.108 

1,870,)65 
78 

10,)0 1,4 19 

1,580,786 
)29)72 

1,9 10, 158 

78 

175.&66 
8,277, ) 97 

169,697 
(2l I,577) 

8,39 ' ,26 J 

10,30),41 9 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA NCES - NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ­
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

REVENUES: 
INTERGOV ERNMENTAL 
INTEREST 
SALES , REN TAL & SERVICES 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 

TOT,>\L REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 
HEA LTH & WELFA RE 
CAPITAL GUTLA Y 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EX PEI\'DITUR ES 

OTHER FINANCING SO URCES (USES), 
TRANSFERS IN 
TRANSFERS OUT 

TOT AL OTHER FINAN C ING 
SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHA NGE IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 

fAMILY 

GROUP 

CONFERENClNG 

PROJECT 

105 

$ __________ ~IO~S~ 

$ 1,310 

$ ________ --""',3-'" 0,-

$ _________ ("""',2"'OS"-) 

$ 

$-------

$ ( 1.205) 

36,988 

35,783 

98 

BUSH 

CLINTON 

RECOVERY 

5 

5 

5 

5 

1,641 

1,646 

SHERIFF 

TRAINING 

GRANT 

10,207 

10.207 

17.41 8 

17,41 8 

(7.2 11) 

(7 .2 11 ) 

(7,2 II) 

FOREN SIC 

SCIENCE 

IMPRO\'[ 

24,351 

2'.35 1 

24,351 

74)51 
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OlABETES 

PREYENTTON 

CRANT 

30,5 15 

30,5 15 

23 ,:276 

23 ,276 

7.239 

30 

30 

7,269 

(7,269) 

JAG 

GRANT 

14 

14 

36.603 

36,603 

(36.589) 

(J6,58 9) 

8,883 

(27,706) 

SHERIFF 

DEPT 

GRANTS 

369 

369 

(369) 

(369) 

(369) 

SCAAP 

CRAI'~ 

17, 129 
124 

17,253 

22 ,019 

22 ,0 19 

(4 ,766) 

(4,766) 

32,628 

27,862 

99 

Cltil \f E 

VICTI MS 

CLEARING· J 

5,090 

5.090 

21,1 15 

21.115 

( 16,025) 

16.953 

]6,953 

928 

736 

1,664 

REGIONAL 

COMMUNlCATION 

206 

206 

10,000 

10,000 

(9,794) 

(9,794) 

78
1
845 

69,05 1 

[CONT1NUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STA TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES c NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS­
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

FORENSIC 

CRIME SCIENCE 

VT CTIMS £MFG IMPROVEMENT 

CLEARJNG · 2 GRANT GRANT 

REVENUES: 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 45.838 51 ,028 
INTEREST 174 
SA LES, REN TAL & SE R VICES 29 
CONTRJ BUT10NS A NO DON A nONS 100 

TOTAL REVENUES 45,938 5 1,23 I 

EX PENDITURES: 
JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 243,434 
HEALTH & WELFARE 29,481 
CA PIT A L OUT1..A Y 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES S 24) ,434 29,48 1 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES S (197,496) 21 ,750 

OTHER FINA NCING SOURC ES (USES), 
TRANSFERS IN $ 197,596 
TRA NSFERS OUT (488) 

TOTAL OTHER FIN ANCING 
SOURCES (USES ) $ 197.596 (488) 

NET CHANGE IN FUN D BALANCES $ 100 2 1,262 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINN ING 1, 174 61 ,36 1 107 

FUND BALANCES, E.r\'D1NG 1,27 4 82,623 108 

100 

PORT 

SECURITY 

GRA.NTS 

8.903 ,326 
89 

8,903,4 15 

8,887,525 

8,887,525 

15,890 

27,959 

27,959 

4 ] ,849 

(43 ,849) 
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ARRA HlC :-: 

PORT INTENSITY AUTO I>RUG VIOLENCE VIO LENCE 

SECURJTY DRUC THEFT FEMA INTERVENTIO N AGAINST " C AI NST 

1009 TRAFFIC GRA"''T EMEf( CENCY GRA NT WOMEN- J WOMEN _l 

984,3 75 18,296 83 ,752 538,350 57.464 76,283 8.625 
2~ ,7 66 

984.375 18,296 83.752 563,1 )6 57.464 76,283 8.625 

1, 10 5,457 34,813 106,637 58 ,571 147.762 14.2-l6 
772 .010 

1,105,457 ) 4,8 1 ) 106,637 772,0 10 58,572 147,762 14,246 

112 1,082) ( 16,517) (22.885) (208,894 ) ( I, IOS) (71 ,479) (5,621 ) 

)21.082 16.SG< 76,052 5,621 

12 1.082 16,S04 76,052 5,62 1 

( 16,5 17) (6,08 1) (20S,S94) (1 ,108 ) 4,573 

8
1
374

1
272 (4,57) ) 

( 16,517) (6,081) 8,1 65,378 ( I, I 08) 

[CONTINU ED) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STA TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS­
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

CHEEK 

FAMTLY HAMS HIRE STEP 

TREATMENT WATER &- SEWER 

COU RT SEWER rn IMPROVEMENTS 

REVENUES: 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL )5. 268 
INTEREST 14 
SA LES, RENTAL & SERVICES 
CONTRmUTIONS AND DONATIONS 

TOTAL REVEN UES $ 35,268 14 3 

EXPENDIT URES, 
JUDI CIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT $ 35,849 
HEAlIH & WELFARE 
CAPlTAl QUTLA Y 

TOTAL EXPEND ITURES $ 35,849 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVE R EXPENDITURES S (581 ) 14 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES), 
TR.A. NSFERS IN $ 
TRA NSFERS OUT (3 ) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SO UR CES (USES) $ (3) 

NET CHA NGE I N FUND BALANCES S (5 81) 14 

FU r.: O BALANC ES , BEG INNING 136 2,11] 

fl lND BALANCES, ENDING (445 ) 2 , 12 7 

102 

SHSP& 

LETP P 

GRANTS 

52,671 

52,67 1 

52,712 

52,712 

(41 ) 

488 

488 

447 

(2,812) 

(2,)65) 
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CHEEK COMr.-IUNITY 

II AMSHIRE WATER AND EMERGENCY FIRST TXCDSG FBI 20\3 

DUMP SIT E SEWER RESPONSE TIME DISA STER FIRING GRA'" 

HWY7J PHASE 3 GRA!'I'T SEWER RECOVERY RANGE TOTALS 

35.500 10,978,068 
14 2 50 25,568 

29 
100 

35,500 14 2 50 11 ,003 .765 

10,767,480 
35.500 91 2,979 

]5.500 11 ,680,459 

14 2 50 (676,694) 

462,585 
(491 ) 

462 ,094 

14 2 50 (214 ,600) 

19 1 4.748 756 19,853 39,932 8,605,861 

192 4,762 758 19,903 39,932 8,39 1,261 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

251



252



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources used for the 
acquisition or construction of capital facilities except those financed by Enterprise 
Funds or Internal Service Funds. Included in this heading are the following individual 
funds: 

Highway Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures in the 
construction of county roads. 

Southeast Texas Entertainment Complex - This fund is used to account for the 
construction costs of a multi-facility park which has been renamed Ford Park. 

1957 Road Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for the purchase of right-of-way 
for highway and utility adjustments in conjunction with the Texas State Highway 
Department. 

TCEQ - First Time Sewer - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for the 
installation ofa low pressure sewer system to approximately 81 low income residential 
customers in the Candlelight and Martel subdivisions. Funds for this project are from 
penalties assessed by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

2002B Certificates of Obligation - This fund is used to account for the expenditures 
of proceeds from $13,090,000 in Certificates of Obligation issued in April 2002. The 
proceeds will be spent on a variety of projects. The projects scheduled to be funded 
are a County wide 800 MHz radio system, and furniture and fixtures at Ford Park. 

Keith Lake Fish Pass - This fund is used to account for the expenditures to construct 
erosion control devices in the Keith Lake Fish Pass. 

ORA Capital Grants - This fund is used to account for the grants from the Office of 
Rural Affairs (ORA) and Community Development Block Grants for Disaster 
Recovery Programs. 
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SEP Umphrey State Park Project - This fund is used to account for the expenditures 
for the construction of the Walter Umphrey State Park Pavilion. Funds for this project 
are from penalties assessed by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY , TEXAS 
COMBINING BALA NCE SHEET 

NONM AJ OR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJ ECTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

SOUTHEA ST 

HI GHWAY TEXAS 

rMPROV~MENT ENTERTArN .. rtNT 1957 ROAD 

roND COMPLEX BQI\'O FliND 

ASSETS: 

CASH AN D CASH EQU IVA LENTS $ 155,633 467,3 78 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 21 62 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTIT IES 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 155,654 467,440 

LIABI LlTlES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAY ABLE $ 
DUE TO OTH ER FUNDS 214.4 33 

T OTAL LIABILITI ES 214,4]] 

FUND BA LANCES: 
RESTRICTED FO R CONSTRUCTION $ 

COMMITTED FOR CON STRUCTION CONTRACTS 
ASSIGNED FOR CA PITAL PROJECTS 155 ,654 467,44 0 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (2 14,433) 

TOTAL FUND BA LA NCES ~ 151,6.14 (2 14,4 ] 3) 467,440 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE, $ 155,654 467,440 
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TCEQ - Fr.t~ 

TIME SEWER 

45,063 

45,063 

45,063 

45 ,063 

45,063 

l00lB 

CERTIFICATE 

Of.- OHLlG,\ nON 

PROJ£CT 

KEITH LAKE 

FISH PASS 

1,440.932 
19 1 

1,44 1, 123 

1,44 1, 123 

1,441,123 

1,441 , 123 

ORA 

CAI'ITAL 

CRANTS 

60,323 

121.548 

181 ,87 1 

12 1.548 

12 1,548 

248,865 

( 188,542) 

60,323 

18 1,871 

107 

SEP UM1'l1R EY 

STATE: PARK 

PROJECT 

1,332 

1,33 2 

1,3 32 

1,332 

1,]]2 

TOTA L 

2, 170,66 1 
274 

121,548 

2,292.483 

121 ,548 
2 14,433 

335,98 1 

46,395 
248,865 

2,064,2 17 
(402 ,975) 

1,956,502 

2,292 ,483 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT URES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS· CAPITAL PROJECTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

SO UTHEAST 

HIGHWAY T EXAS 

IMPROYEMENT ENTERTArNMENT 19S7 ROAD 

FUND COl\ffLEX BOND fUND 

REV ENUES: 
~TEROOVERNMENTAL $ 65.338 
INTEREST 558 1,278 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 558 66,616 

EXPENDITURES: 
CAPITAL OUTLAY $ 43,301 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 43,30 1 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPEN DITU RES $ (41, 743) 66,616 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS ~ $ 50,000 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 50,000 

NET CHA NGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (42,743) 50,000 66,6 16 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 198,397 (264,433) 400 ,824 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 155,654 (2 14,433) 467 ,440 
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1002B 

CERTrl'lCATE ORA SEP UMPHREY 

TCEQ - FIRST OF OBL.lGA T ION KEIT H LAKE CAPITA I~ STA n:: PA RK 

TIME SEWER PROJECT F1SR PASS GRAN TS PROJ ECT TOTAL 

75,325 2,735,739 2,876,402 
!IS 4. 166 297 7 6,422 

115 75,326 4.1 66 2,736,036 7 2,88>,824 

74.507 2.720.277 2,838,085 

74,507 2,720,277 2,838 ,085 

115 819 4,166 15,759 7 44 ,739 

50,000 

50,000 

115 8 19 4, 166 15,759 7 94,739 

44 ,948 (819) 1,436,957 44,564 1,325 1,86 1,763 

45,06J 1,44 1,123 60,323 1,332 1,956,502 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for each specific long -tenn debt. 
These funds account for the accumulation of resources and subsequent 
disbursement of such resources to pay principal, interest, and commissions. 
Included in this heading are the following individual funds: 

2012 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and 
expenditures associated with the $47,305 ,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
issued in May 2012. 

2003B Certificates of Obligation - This fund is used to account for the revenues 
and expenditures associated with the $1,505,000 in Certificates of Obligation issued 
in May 2003. 

2011 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and 
expenditures associated with the $5,550,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds' 
issued in March 2011. 
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JEFFERSO COUNTY, TEXAS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

2012 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALENTS $ 1,017,259 
INTEREST RECEIV ABLE 134 
DELINQUEN T TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 78,688 
PENAL TY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 38,939 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,135,020 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 85, 162 
DEFERRED REVENUES : 

DELINQUENT TAXES 63,896 
PENALTY AND INTEREST 38,939 

TOT AL LIABILITIES $ 187,997 

FUND BALANCES: 
RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE $ 947,023 

TOT AL FUND BALANCES $ 947,023 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,135,020 

112 

268



2003B 
CER TIFI CATES 

OF 
OBLIGATION 

12,680 
2 

1,406 
696 

14,784 

1,523 

1,142 
696 

3,361 

11,423 

11,423 

14,784 

2011 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

130,474 
17 

20,042 
9,9 18 

160,451 

21,691 

16,274 
9,9 18 

47,883 

112,568 

112,568 

160,45 1 

1 13 

TOTAL 

1,160,413 
153 

100,136 
49,553 

1,310,255 

108,376 

81,3 12 
49,553 

239,241 

1,07 1,014 

1,071 ,014 

1,310,255 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

2012 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 4,815,760 
INTEREST 7,550 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,823 ,310 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 2,910,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,749,290 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 4,659,290 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 164,020 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 164,020 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 783,003 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 947,023 
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2003B 
CERTIFICATES 2011 

OF REFUNDING 
OBLIGATION 

85,742 

99 

85 ,841 

25 ,000 
56,796 

81,796 

4,045 

4,045 

7,378 

11 ,423 

BOND 

1,2 11 ,280 
3,259 

1,2 14 ,539 

1,030,000 
154,450 

1,184,450 

30,089 

30,089 

82 ,479 

112,568 

TOTAL 

6,11 2,782 

10,908 

6, 123 ,690 

3,965,000 
1,960,536 

5,925 ,536 

198, 154 

198, 154 

872, 860 

1,071 ,0 14 

I 15 
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JEFFERSON CO UNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVIC E FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCA L YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

BUDG ETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGINAL FINA L AMOUNTS 

R EVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 6,024,31 2 6,024,3 12 6,112.782 
INTEREST 8.850 8,850 10,908 

TOTAL REVE NUES $ 6,033,162 6,033 ,162 6, 123 ,690 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 3,965,000 3,965,000 3,965,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,969,3 12 1,969,3 12 1,960,536 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 5,934 ,3 12 5,934 ,312 5,925,536 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 98.8 50 98,850 198, 154 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 98,850 98.8 50 198 ,154 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 872, 860 872,860 872,860 

FUND BALANCES, EN DING $ 97 1,7 10 97 1,710 1,071 ,0 14 

116 

VARIAN CE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

88,470 
2.058 

90, 528 

8,776 

8,776 

99,304 

99,304 

99,304 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHA NGES IN FUND BALANCES" BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE" 2012 REFUNDING BONDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 ,20 13 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGINA L FI NAL AMOUNTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TA XES $ 4,747,974 4,747,974 4,8 I 5,760 
INTEREST 7,000 7,000 7,550 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,754,974 4,754,974 4,823,3 10 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERV ICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 2,9 10,000 2,9 10,000 2,9 10,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,753,200 1,753,200 1,749,290 

TOTA L EXPENDITURES $ 4,663,100 4,663,200 4,659,290 

EXCESS (DEfi CIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 91 ,774 9 1.774 164 ,020 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 91.774 91,774 164,020 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 783,003 783.003 783 .003 

FUN D BALANCES, ENDI NG $ 874,777 874.777 947,023 
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VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

67,786 
550 

68,336 

3,9 10 

3,910 

72 ,246 

72 ,246 

72,246 
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JEFFERSON COU NTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE - 20036 CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGA nON 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS 

REVENU ES, 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 84,482 84,482 85 ,742 
INTEREST 150 150 99 

TOTAL REVENUES 84,632 84,632 85 ,84 1 

EX PENDITURES, 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 25 ,000 25,000 25,000 
INTEREST AND COMM ISSION 58,362 58,362 56,796 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 83,362 83,362 8 1,796 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REV ENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 1,270 1,270 4,045 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 1,270 1,270 4,045 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 7,378 7,37 8 7,378 

FUND BALANCES , ENDING $ 8,648 8,648 11,423 
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VARIANCE 
WITH FI NA L 

BUDGET 

1,260 
(5 1 ) 

1,209 

1,566 

1,566 

2,775 

2.775 

2,775 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXA S 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN F UN D BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE - 201 I REFUNDIN G BONDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EN DED SEPTEMBER 30,2013 

BUDGETED AMO UNTS ACT UAL 
ORIGINAL FINAL AMO UNTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 1,191,856 1,19 1,856 1,211 ,280 
INTEREST 1,700 1,700 3,259 

TOTAL REVENU ES $ 1,193,556 1,193,556 1,2 14,539 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 1,030,000 1,030,000 1,030,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 151,750 157,150 154,450 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1, 181,750 1,187,750 1,184 ,450 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 5,806 5,806 30,089 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 5,806 5,806 30,089 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 82,479 82,479 82,479 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 88,285 88,285 112,568 
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VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

19,424 
1,559 

20,983 

3,300 

3,300 

24,283 

24,283 

24 ,283 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services 
provided by one department or agency to other agencies of the government and to other 
government units,' on a cost reimbursement basis, Included in this heading are the 
following individual funds: 

Liability Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for the County's contribution 
and payment for liability claims, 

Workers' Compensation Fund - This fund is used to account for the County's 
contribution and payment for workers' compensation claims. 

Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool - This fund is used to 
account for the County's group health insurance program, which includes 
comprehensive major medical and dental care, 
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ASSETS, 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

SOUTHEAST 

LIABILITY WORKERS' TE,."<A S GOVERNMENT 

INSU RAN CE CO MPENSA TJQN EMPLOYEE BEI\'EFTTS 

FUND FUND POOL FUNO 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 616,995 515,28 1 2,563,687 
ACCOUNT S RECEIVABLE 26,778 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 82 68 34 2 
DUE FROMQTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 254,09 1 
INS URAN CE DEPOSIT 75,500 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 617,077 590,849 2,844,898 

LiABrLITlES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 15,45 1 
CLAIMS LIABILITY 370,760 301 ,48 1 1,62',83'( 

TOT AL LIABILITIES $ 370,760 301,481 1,641,288 

NET POSIT ION: 

UNRESTRICTED $ 246,317 289,368 1,203,6 10 

TOTAL NET POS ITION $ 246,3 17 289,368 1,203 ,6 10 
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TOTAL 

3,695,963 
26,778 

492 
254,09 1 

75,500 

4,052 ,824 

15,451 
2,298,078 

2,313,529 

1,739,295 

1,739,295 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHA NGES IN NET POSITlON -
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

SOVfH r.AST 

L1AH1Lln' WO RK£R,S ' TEXAS GOVERNM£NT 

rNSURANCE COMPENSATION EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

FUND FUf','O POOL FUND TOTAL 

O PERATING REVENUES: 

EMl'LOYEE CONTRIBUTl ONS $ 2,019,862 2,0 19,862 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 500,000 14, 127,6 12 14,627,612 

TOTAL O PERATI NG REVENllES $ 500,000 16, 147,474 16,647,474 

O PERA TiNG EXP ENSES: 

ADM INl STRATl VE $ 1,555,735 1,555,735 
INCURRED & ESTIMATED CLAIMS 190,454 342,309 15,650,730 16,183,493 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 190,454 342 ,309 17,206,46 5 17,739,228 

OPERATING INCOM E (LOSS) $ (190,454) 157,691 (1,058,991) (1,091 ,754) 

NONOPERo\ TING REVENUES: 

MEREST $ 2,0 11 694 7,161 9,866 
REFUNDS AND RECOVERIE S 44, 100 526,366 570,466 

TOTAL NON QPERA TlNG REVEN l lES $ 46, 11 1 694 533,527 580,332 

CHA~GE IN NET POSITION $ ( 144,343) 158,385 (525,464) (511,422) 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 390,660 130,983 1,729,074 2,250,7 17 

NET POSITION, ENDING $ 246,3 17 289,368 1,203,610 1,739,295 

122 

282



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

SOUTH£AST 

LlABILJTY WO RK ERS' TEX."S GOVERNMENT 

[NSlIFi.MKE COM PENSAn ON DrIPLOYEE BEi'lEfITS 

FUND fUND POOL FUND TOrAl 

CA SH FLOWS FROM O PERA TlNG ACTIVITIES: 

RECEIPTS FROM CUSTOMERS AND USER S 2,0 11 ,493 2,0 II ,493 
RECEI PTS FROM EMPLOY EES 2,016,489 2,016,489 
PA YMENTS TO SUPPLIERS (l ,S SS,08S) (1,555 ,085 ) 
INTERN AL ACTI VITY- RECE1PTS(PA YMENTS) FROM 

(TO) OTHER FUNDS 500,000 11 ,842.795 12,342,795 
CLAIMS PAID (3 17,869) (607 . 141) ( 15,07 1.775) ( 15.996.785) 
OTHER RECEIPTS 44 . 100 843.626 887,726 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERA l ING ACT1VlTlES S (273 ,769) (107.141 ) 87 ,543 (293,367) 

CAS H FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACnVITIES: 

INTEREST S 2.195 8 II 7,556 10,562 

NET CA SH PROV ID ED BY INVESTMENT . .J,CT1VITl ES I 2,195 811 7,556 10.562 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CAsn $ (271,574) ( 106.330) 95,099 (282.805) 
CAS'" AND CASI-I EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 888,569 621.611 2,468,588 3,978.768 

CAS t-1 AND CASH EQlJlVALENTS - ENDING $ 616,995 5 15,28 1 2,563,687 3.695,963 

RECONCILIATI ON OF OPERATING INCOM E(LOSS) TO NET 

CASH PROVlDED(trSED) BY OPERA"flN G ACTIVITIES: 

OPERATING INCOME{lOSS) $ ( 190,454) 157,691 (1 .058.991 ) ( 1,09 1,754) 
A.DJU STMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME 

(LOSS) TO NET CASH 

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES : 

OTHER NON-OPERA TfNG REV ENUES 44,100 526,366 570,466 
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 313,887 3 13,887 
INSURANCE DEPOSIT (2,500) (2,500) 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 654 654 
ACCOU NTS PA YABLE (273,328 ) (273.328) 
CL AIMS LIABILITY (127 ,415) (262,332) 578,955 189,208 

NET CASH PROV IDED BY OPERATING ACTl V rTlES $ (173.769l ( 107, 14 1) 87,543 (293.367 ) 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as a trustee or 
agent for individuals, private organizations, and other units of government. Such 
funds are operated by carrying out specific terms of trust indentures, ordinances, grant 
requirements, or other governing regulations. Included in this heading are the 
following individual funds: 

Treasurer Maintained Fund - This fund is used to account for various monies 
deposited with the County Treasurer for distribution to other individuals and/or 
government entities. 

County Clerk Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution 
of money held in trust by the Clerk of the County Courts. 

District Clerk Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution 
of the money held in trust by the Clerk of the District Courts. 

Sheriff's Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution of 
money held in trust by the Sheriff. 

Justice of the Peace Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in trust by the Justices of the Peace. 

Tax Assessor/Collector Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in trust by the Tax Assessor/Collector. 

District Attornev's Seizure Fund - This fund is used to account for the seizure and 
subsequent distribution of seized personal property. 

Comm unity Supervision Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection 
and distribution of money held in trust by the Community Supervision Department. 

Juvenile Probation Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in trust by the Juvenile Probation Department. 

Flexible Spending - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution of 
money collected under the Internal Revenue Code Section 125 benefit plan . . 
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Women's Center Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in trust by the Women ' s Center: 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY. TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FID UCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2013 

TREASU RER COUNTY DISTR IC t' JUSTICE or 
/>1.A1NT ... 1NED CLERK CLERK SHERWf"'S TH E PEACE 

ruND f UND 'UND fUND FUND 

TQTALAGENCY FUNDS 
ASSETS. OCT OBER J 2012 

CASH AN D CASH EQUIVA LENTS S 368.891 3.487.188 5.997,766 562,602 \ 72.66] 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 5,700 

DUE FROM OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 309.464 44 ,681 

TOT,4, L S 684.0SS 3 481.188 6,042!447 56 2160 2 172,66) 

ADPIT I ONS 
CASH AND CAS H EQU IVALENTS S \,955.56\ ':'.646,5 13 11.034,921 4,993 .232 3.505 .657 
ACCOUNTS RECE IVABLE , Net 6,715 

DUE FROM OTHER 
GOVERNM ENTAL EN TITI ES 334,568 29.357 

TOTAL S 2,296,844 3,646.513 11.064 278 4,993,2 32 3.505,657 

DELETIONS 
CASH AND CASH EQU IVALENTS S 1,92.\139 -L184.9X3 10.667.4<17 5.{l37.270 J.506.186 
.<l.CCOUNTS RECEI VAB LE, Ne.1 5,700 

DUE FROM OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES ) 49,.H 8 44.68\ 

TOTAL S 2,278.1 57 4,384
1
983 10,7 12,1 28 5,031,270 3,506,186 

MSEIS: · S;£PTEMBER 30, 2013 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 401,213 2,7~S,7 18 6,365,240 518,564 172, 134 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 6.715 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 294,8 14 29,357 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 702,742 2,748.71 8 6 ,394
1
597 518,564 172,134 

LIA BlLTTT~:S - QCTQBER I 2012 
ACCOU NTS PA YABLE $ 2 \ 1 ,731 1.099,726 5.9iJ.2S8 512 ,988 7>7 .,HII 

DUE TO OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 472.324 5S,48 1 69. 189 49,614 1.1.5, 182 

OTHER PA Y ABLES 2 .331.98 1 
TOTAL 684,055 3.481.1 88 6,042,44 7 ;62 ,602 172.663 

ADDI TI ONS 

ACCOUNTS PA YABLE $ I ~6 ,S44 !1 5,012 9,45~ ,711 1.843)45 259,102 
DUETOOTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1,814,S3:2 S5 .0J4 70,014 40.632 \4 2,069 

ornER PAYABLES 427,496 

TOTAL S 1,95 1,376 597.542 9,524 ,725 1.884,317 401,271 

OHHIONS 
ACCOUNTS PA YABLE $ I O~,O \ 7 507 .265 9,<)90,447 U\78. 802 266,6 \ 8 

DUE TO OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1,828,072 55,481 82 , 128 49,61 ~ PS, I82 

OTHER PA YABLES 773,266 
TOTAL S 1, 93 2,689 1,336,012 9,172,575 L928.4) 5 401 .800 

I ' A!m l ITES - SErTEMBER 30, 20 U 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 24 11,558 707,473 6,337,522 477 ,931 30,065 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 458,184 55.034 57,075 40,633 142,069 
OTHER PAYABLES 1.986,2 11 

TOTAL LI A BILITIES , 702,742 2,748,7 18 6,394.597 5 18,564 172,134 
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TAX ASSESSOR Ol STRICT COMMUNIT Y JUVENILE fl.EX 1IILE WOM £N'S TOTAL 

COLLECTOR ArrORN£Y'S SUPERVISION PROBATION SPENOINC CENTER ACENCY 

FUND SE IZURE FUND TRUST f UND TRUST fliND FUND T RUST fUND FUNOS 

:1,118 1,939 349,<>84 .'77.641 .\ 189 1<1 ,74 4 15,016,309 
5.700 

99. ]55, 135 

3.681 ,939 349684 377,6<13 3, 189 99. 14,744 15,377,144 

565 J5S,S40 120,982 ~, 17 9.686 18.357 284,~51 763,920 ')95,862,120 
6 ,715 

1,886 :365,8 11 
565,358,840 120,982 4,179,686 18,357 286337 763 ,920 596 234,646 

564, 725,:>47 104,07:;' ~,204 .26 1 17 ,657 2'3.08] 7511Jj96 595,599,644 
5,700 

1,980 3951879 
564,725,3<1 7 104,075 4 ,204 ,261 17 ,657 275,063 756,096 S%,ODI, :nJ 

4,315,432 366,591 353,068 3,889 11 ,368 22,568 I S.27S,785 
6,7 15 

,9, 325,067 

4,315 .432 366.;91 )53,068 3.889 12,264 22.568 15,6 10,567 

J.M L939 ."4 9,68~ :177.043 3.189 IJ ,7<14 12,262,383 

990 782,780 
2,]3 1,981 

3.681,939 ]49 684 ] 71 .643 ] , )89 99. 14,744 15,377, 144 

5fJ6.91I ,765 120,982 4.182,306 :20.764 302.4 01 76],910 584,1) 1.652 

1. 122,28 1 
427,496 

566,91 1,765 120,982 4.1 82,306 20764 302.40 1 76.1,920 586
1
661 ,429 

SM .278,272 104. 075 4,206.R81 20.064 290.1 :;7 756,096 58:l,502,67 4 

99. 2, 152,066 
77],266 

566,27&,272 104,075 4,206,88 1 20,064 29 1, 127 756.096 586,428 OQ6 

015,432 366,59! 353,068 3.889 ) 2,264 21.568 12.87 ),36 1 

752.995 
1,986.211 

4.3 15,432 366.59 1 ]5] ,068 3.889 12 264 22.568 15 ,610 ,5 67 
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNm 

SCHEDULE BY SOURCE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS: 

LAND 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS 
EQUIPMENT 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAP IT AL ASSETS 

$ 

TOTAL 

3,840,787 
57,918,331 
90,832,122 
37,234,070 
19,216,458 

$ =~2~09~,0~4~1~, 7,;;;68~ 

INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE: 

GENERAL FUND $ 86,582,553 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 30,063,3 II 
CAPIT AL PROJECTS FUND 89,818,665 
GIFTS 2,5 77,239 

$ 209,041 ,768 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

FUNCTION LAND INFRASTRUCTURE 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ $ 

JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 45,446 
HEALTH & WELFARE 14,000 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES AND 

EQUIPMENT 3,78 1,341 57,918,331 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 3,840,787 $ 57,918,331 
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BUILDINGS & CONSTRUCTION 
IMPROVEMENTS EQUIPMENT IN PROGRESS TOTAL 

$ 442,267 $ 4,706,062 $ $ 5,1 48,37.9 
28,296,823 17,970,056 2,72 1,463 49,033 ,788 

891 ,009 1,108,784 501,624 2,5 15,417 

61,202,023 13,449, 168 15,993,37 1 152,344,234 

$ 90,832, 122 $ 37,234,070 $ 19,2 16,458 $ 209.041 ,768 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL H INDS 

SCHEDllLE OF CHANGES BY FUN CTIO N 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 

RESTATED 
BALANCE 

FUNCTION )0/ 112012 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS TRANSFERS 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 5,034,252 $ 114 ,077 $ $ 

JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 47,293, 180 2,0 11,106 (270,498) 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 2,032.087 494 ,962 (ll ,632) 
MAJNTENA NeE OF STRUCTIJRES AND 

EQUJPMENT 148,807,0 15 3,617, 109 (79,890) 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITA L ASSETS $ 203,186 ,534 S 6,237,254 $ (382,020) 
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BALANCE 
9/30/2013 

$ 5,148,329 
49,033,788 

2,515,417 

152 ,3 44,234 

S 209,04 1.768 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Jefferson County, Texas comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements , note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the 
County's overall financial hea lth. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 
These schedules conrain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the Counry'sfinanciai performance and weI/-being 
have changed over time. 

Revenue Trends 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess 
the Counry's most significanrlocal revenue source, the properry 
tax. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader access 
the affordab iliry of the Counry's current levels of outstanding 
debt and the Counry 's abiliry to issue additional debt in the 
fut ure. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to 
help the reader understand the environment within which the 
Co unty's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infraslructure data to help 
the reader underSland how the information in the County 's 
financial report relates to Ihe services the Counry provides and 
Ihe activities it pelforms. 

Sources: Unless othenv ise noted, the infonnation in these schedu les is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant yea r. 
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JEFFERSO N C OUNTY, TEXAS 
NET POSITIO N BY C O M PONENT 

LAST n:.N fiSCAL \'EARS 

(accru al lJ lsis o( .(counting) 

fisu l Yen r 

1(X" 200' 2006 2007 ,., -GoYcmm(11131 activitieS: 

Nel fnveSlmCIit in capil.;!. l asset. S 47,46J,S45 49,581,705 5 1,600.015 S 56.750,OSI 62,450,46& 
RUlncled 5.066,000 5.940.456 3,955,SlJ ),993 ,898 7,893,536 
Unrn iricl fd !54.782,457~ (49,275,540) {29,540.936) ~ 16,829,422 ) (17,964,265 ~ 

Tol.al govcnllncntaJ ~ Cllv il ies nCI posillOn S a ,n l .6 Il) 6,246,621 , 260 14,904 , 4],914,~57 , 52,379,7:19 

BIHlness.(ypc BellVille . , 

Nelln~stmenl in capiral assets S 88,652.J66 87,70S,682 S 88,876,7 15 89,080.109 S 88,482,2 17 

Ullre~(fiC l ed (5,294,847) ~4,764,O)81 ( m ,098) {760,424! 13),397 

Tolal business, type actIVities nct poSit ion 83,35 7,,5 19 82,944 ,644 S 88,70 1,617 88, 3 19,68$ , 88,6 / 5,614 

RcdllSSincallons 
Nel ln \lcwncnlm capilal H)(;(S S (63,446,642) li (63,3 73,806) S (64 ,799,956) (64,0%,344 1 (63,0 16,132) 

UlUeslrIc lcd 6),446,64 2 63,373 ,806 64,799,956 64,09(, .144 61 ,016, 1:12 
Toul rtc!a ssi fic.1Ii o n~ , S , 
Prinla ry govemmcnt; 

Nel hWf slmclIl lII c~p r l ~ 1 aS5CI. 72,670,569 , 73.9 16,58 1 75,676,774 8 1.733,846 , 87,9 [6,55] 

RC51nClro 5,06<J,OOO 5,940,456 3,955,825 3,993.1198 7,89],.53 6 

Unr~lI ic tcd 3,369 338 9,3)4,228 35,083 922 46,506,498 45, 185,264 

TOlal prim~ry govemmenl An posirion 81 , 105,907 89, 19 1,265 li 114 7 16,52 1 .L.!. 32.13 4,24 1. li 140,995,)5) 

NOle, The n:cl~ s sdica II On is for the debt assoclaled wi Lb rJ ,e l:onSlTUCli on off Old Park The assclS ale aO;Ollnlcd 

rOr in th ~ Business,type ;t« ivilic5 w luOln ~nd OIC dc\)\ is accounled ror in the Go~emml; nta l activ ities column 

' ·111 2007, the S()Ul h e3~ 1 Texas Go\'cmmefll Employee BCIICfi lS Pool Flmd was reclaSSified fror,1 an Enterpnse Fund 10 an [nlem al Service Fund 

" GASH 54 wu implemented 

2009 

S 68,242,040 

10,615,478 
{2 1 ,890,574) 
56,%6,944 

S 93,237,299 
] 425,854 , 94,663. 153 

S (6 1,855,720) 

6 1,855,720 

99,6 2J,6 19 

10,61 5,478 
41 .391 ,000 

15 1,630,097 

TABLE I 

lll.Q 2011 " lli1 lQ.!l 

S 7 1,336,466 81,583,824 S 82,640,72 7 S 84,123,857 
[J,S5 [J3 8 18,9[0,796 18,0 17,919 2~,4JJ,l98 

p5.286 048) (48 ,931,222) !43,402,923) i53,259,6151 
S 49,90 1,956 51,:563,398 57,2SS,n.l S % .297,440 

9 1,674,40) S 90,465,368 90,441 ,044 , 87.043,444 
2, 114 ,066 377,CM6 620,635 592,)00 

9),788,469 , 9O,S42,4 14 {,I 1,OG1,679 31,635,744 

(60,563,707) S (57,637,497) S ( ~0,4)8 ,282) ,; (46, 786,666) 

60,663,707 57,637,497 W ,4}8.282 46, 786,666 , 

S 102,347, 162 ,; 114 ,411,695 122,643 ,489 S 124,380,635 

1 3,~5 1 , S 38 18,9 10,796 18,0 17,9 19 25,433, 198 

21. ~9 1, 725 9,083,321 7,655,994 (5,880,649) 
]4 ),G90,425 S 141.405,112 148,3 17,402 IO,'HJ , I84 
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Elpl'n~d 

Governmenta l activities 

General GOVl':l1lment 

J"die; ... 1 and Law E"forceme!1l 

Education and R ... ~rC:l!ion 

Health ~d Welfarc 

Maimenaoee - Equipmellt and Structures 

IntcfcSI Md Charges on Loug- tenn Debt 
TOlal governmental aCl:ivilics expenscs 

Ol1s;ness-type actilli ticg: 

Airpon 

Enrertainment COlnple,," 

Healdl Insnr3nce Risk Pool 

Tot,11 Ousincss--Iypc c,,"pensc~ 

Total primary govenuncnl expenses 

2004 

S 14 ,333,080 

54 ,948,624 

1,144,907 

7,375)42 

11,366,472 

4,15S,680 

S 93.424,105 

s 3,796,26 1 

7,522 ,0<.3 
9,7]0,612 

S 21,028 936 

1 114,4 SJ,04 1 

0\ Progr/l m Revenncs 

GOlienunenllllllcti ll ihcS: 
Charges ['01- services 

General Govcmmenl S 3,4 26.4 49 

Judicial and Lnw Enforcemcnt I 1,],1 1 )33 

Educll iion and RcerUlion 1-1 I ,03 I 

Heahh and Welfare 31 8,092 

Maimen3J1CC - Equipmeul :md Structu res 5.4 [8,454 

Operahng grants lind coorributions 7,287,999 

Capilal b'TaJ1IS and eonlTibut ious 799,213 

Towl governmental acuvilies progranl revenues S 28,722.573 

B,lsinCSS-lype activities: 

C113J't)es for services: 

Airport 

Emeruuuncnl Complex 

HeNtll IIISlUance Risk Pool 
Operating grams Ilfld cono-i\Julionii 

Capital grants alld eonlribul iolls 

2004 

$ 2,014 ,163 

3,882,286 

10,303,593 
) 02,762 

1,056,242 

Tota[ buslncss-type aClivilies pl'Ogram revenues S 17,5 59,046 

TOLa[ pnnlaI)' govenuncnt program revenues S 46,28 1,6 19 

Ntt (expense)lrtventtc 

GOI'emroenl.1! ac ti"it ie5 

BU51neSs,type actil'ities 

TOllll primary go~erTlmcm IIC I expcn~ c 

1 (64,70 I ,532) 

(3,469,890' 
(68.17 1,422) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CliA NG ES IN NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEA RS 
(a~: .:ru" l basis of II CCOUll li'. I;) 

Fi~c.:l1 Yl'~r 

2005 

14,089,777 

53,370,633 
1, 119,936 

9,[40,307 

11.711 ,754 

4,25 1,603 
93,684,0)2 

S 3,5 73,304 

7,1 95,328 

9,995)78 

2006 

15,048,763 

55,468,283 

1, 140,083 

8,339,076 

47,442,78 1 

4.l 28,4S0 
1.~I,567 ,436 

:1 4,117,325 

7,392,777 

10, 101,2 17 

1 20764,41 0 ') 21,611,3 19 

S 114 , ~48,442 i IH17 8,755 

3.643,656 $ 4,616,00 1 

10,283,91 0 11 ,587,628 

153 ,760 223,468 

88,3~9 93,465 

5,293,623 15,177,669 

9,411.568 )6.793,964 

3,292 628 2,114,187 

S 32.167,504 S 70,606,382 

Im 

S 2,423,738 

3.4 85,93) 

9,26J ,49[ 

247,732 

476,678 

S 15,897,572 

48,065,076 

S (61,3 16.518) 

(4,866,838) 

(66.383 ,366) 

2006 

2,693,193 

2,9 18,548 

10,973,699 

1,390.786 

4,395,052 

S 22,371.278 
:) 92,977,660 

(60,%1,054) 

759,959 

(60,20 1,095 ) 

l..QQl..:! 

20,OO8. ~49 

59,282, 186 

1,713.942 

8,78U% 

18,185,968 
3_98S ,[8[ 

S 11 1,960,122 

4,219.627 

8,685,.143 

.$ 12,904,970 

S 124,865,092 

6.9 13,696 

11 ,434,794 

[91 ,911 

86,231 

8,232,587 

11.7 18,420 

1,2'>0, 133 

S 39,867,782 

2007 H 

S 2,407,949 

3,924,467 

3,125,475 

[0,057,89 1 

S 49,925,(;73 

$ (72,091,340) 

(2,8<17,079) 

S (74,939,4 19) 

= 
20,369,690 

69,[ 70,4 2 [ 

1.93[,084 

10,104 ,60 1 

21, 11 8,467 
3,804 ,9 )4 

1 126,499,177 

, ~ .902,812 

7,648,4 62 

12,55[,284 

139,050,461 

6,637,669 

10,700,[95 

88,452 

92,009 

5,768,7)5 

14,050,11 6 

269,347 

S 37,606,523 

~ 

3.269,502 
3,06~,942 

2,741 ,002 

9,075,44 6 

46,68 1,969 

(88,891,6S ~) 

(JA7 5,83 8) 

.$ (92,368,492) 

2009 lli!! 

34,940,3 66 $ 33 ,344,39[ 

74,059,745 75,939, 112 

1,6[1.435 1,637,026 

11.205,583 10.824.64 4 

35,000,580 18,724,938 

3,7 [5.282 3,587 ,860 

16~ .$ 144,057.97 1 

S 4.710,467 , 5,095,941 

7,889.8?1 7,977,002 

S [2,687,469 

[ 73,210,460 

S 8,741,944 

10,434.533 

208,0)6 

370,S57 
8.447,1 93 

30,927,086 

937,390 

s: 60,066,74 t 

, 
2009 

2,999,851 

3"1 6,4]) 

43,397 

8,278,928 

12,985,832 

157,043,803 

7,6 11.696 

9J76,938 

10 1.907 

575.)43 

6,328,64 1 

15,607,904 

2,336,880 

41 .940,309 

IQ1Q 

2,897,~ I[ 

3,684 ,655 

2,145)1 [ 

15,038,6 13 8,727 ,777 

S 7~ ,105 ,356 S 50,668,086 

S ( 100,466,250) 

2,35 1.14 6 
$ (98,[ [5,104) 

(102,[ 17,(6 2) 

(4,258,055) 

(106,375,7 17) 

.illl 

S 34,710,153 

76,819,206 

UIl,440 

9,704,323 

13,365 ,41 0 

3,.188,354 

S 1)9)00,886 

l.Q!l 

! 32 ,862570 

8 [,522,130 

1.3 15,8 19 

17,7S8,07S 

15,552,976 

[,936,]02 

150,947,872 

s 5,~06,74 6 1 6,6 18.247 

6,866,792 10,248,457 

S 12,373J38 16,866 ,704 
15 1,674,424 S 167 ,8 14 ,576 

S 8,218,24 1 

9,679,128 

86,010 

40 1,929 

4,047,555 
16 ,494,8)] 

8,991, 187 

S 47,91 8,883 

ill.! 

9.076,0 15 

9,859,SSO 
74,005 

369,503 

~,362,121 

18.243.076 

11,9.18,532 

54,922.802 

2012 

3,088,666 1 3,7 12.848 

2,943,86 1 6,274 ,380 

1, 100,366 1 ,9~O,880 

$ 7,132,893 S 11 ,948,108 

1 55M I ,776 S 66,870,9 10 

S (91,382 . .003) 

(5,24 0,64 5) 

(% ,622,648) 

! (96,025,07.0) 
(4,91 8,5%) 

S (1 00,943,666) 

TABLE 2 

I.Qil 

S 37 .2B,9 1B 

85,995,590 
1,369,1 59 

10.9 [7,065 

17 , [62,873 

1,762,428 

S 154,461,033 

, 7,386,238 

9,77 1,707 

S 17,IS7,945 
.$ 171,618,978 

1 7,279,674 

'9.234,S38 

84 ,613 

392,6 12 
5,837,68 1 

19.1 50,824 

5,122,624 

S 47,202,566 

, 
2013 

3,978 ,820 

5,5)6,308 

943,357 

1 10,458,485 

.$ 57,66 1,05[ 

$ ( [07,238,467) 

(6,699,460) 

( 11 3,957 ,92 7) 
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Gcner3 1 Revenues ~nll Olher CIoaogu ill Nel Posilion 

GoyemmenLaI aCl,yihes: 

Ta:<.cs: 

Property laxes S 46,260,529 S 57,535,230 , ()5,719,324 65,719,324 , 72,6 I H06 S 75,616,097 , 75,407,51 1 , 73,1 58. 156 S 79,416,013 83,036,649 
Sales la"',"5 14,288 ,063 14 ,743.209 1 1,654,606 21,654,606 23 906.777 30,4\0,633 21,36 1,596 20,96I,4B 23,864.675 24,695.1 94 
Alcoholic Beyerage Ta;\, 430.130 431,874 503, 134 503,134 506 ,047 614,474 575.928 547.605 484,988 475,l62 
HOiel Occupancy Tn:>; 658,878 709,94 1 973,569 973,569 1,01 1,5 77 1,294,063 893,234 981.619 1,064,165 1.01 S,M I 

Investmeul earTll llgs 552,32 1 U74 ,286 2.735,655 3.373.5 14 2,87\ ,285 842,485 402,735 266.1 18 54 L,703 281.672 
Miscellaneous ( 108.034) 6,406 9,957 214,078 208,499 29,275 26,095 24,164 25,206 35,918 
Tl<lJIsrers ( 10,697,918) (4,586,185 ) ~4,8Q5,971} (2,086, I 10J (3.762 ,1 H) p.687,8J2) (3,330,199) (2,27 1.1 461 {4. 183 ~641 (3,223 ,628) 

TO\al go,'emmenl:ll activities , 51,383,%9 S 70,014 ,761 , 86,790,174 S 90,352 , 11 5 97JSH~6 , 105,1 19,195 S 95,336,900 , 9] ,667,969 , 101 2 13, 18() 10613161618 
Business.cype aClivities ' 

loveSlmenl CaTl llngs , 3,832 , 8,673 S 15.356 S 18.915 , 9.467 , 2,369 , 3,338 , 1,979 , 9J5 269 
Miscel1:'11leous 284,978 115,681 145 6,192 49,834 20 .465 71,950 49,628 

Tl1Insrers 10,697,918 4,586, 185 4,805,971 2,086,110 3,762,155 ] ,681)l32 3330,199 2,27 1.1 46 4, 183,564 3,223,628 
Total business,type 3CliYlues $ 10,986,118 S 4594,858 , 4,997,0 14 S 2, 105,025 ,1.771,767 3,696,393 S 3383,37 1 , 2,294.590 , 4,256,449 3,273,525 
TOlal primal)' govcmmelll , 62,370.697 , 74,609,6 19 , 91,787 ,288 S 92,457,1'10 101.l19,603 108.8 15,588 S 98,710.27 1 ~962.559 S 105.4 69,635 109,590, 143 

Chances ill Nel Positioo 
GovcmmenLai activlhes , (iJ)I1.563) , 8,498.233 25,829,220 , 18,259,775 , 8,465,182 , 4.6l2.'M5 S (6,7&0,762) , 2,285,966 , :5, 188,11 6 , (941.849) 

Dusllless·type aClivilies 7,5 16 ,8]8 (2 7! ,980) 5,756,973 {142.054) 295,929 6,047.5]9 (874 ,684) (2,946,055) (662 , 14 7~ P.425,935} 
T olal primary govulIIm:nl , (5 ,800,725) S 8,226,253 , J U86,193 , 11 ,5 11,12 1 , 8,761,11 ( , 10 ,700,484 , (7,655,446) (660,089) 4 ,525,969 (4,36 7,7M) 

• * In 2007, the Sou lhc~5 1 Te"~5 Go""nllnCIlI Employee [3enciolS Pool Fund W35 reciaS51Ticd from an Elllerpri sc Fund 10 an IllIc", ,,1 

v) Service Fund 

---l 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2004 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Alcobolic Hotel 
Beverage Occupancy 

Property Tax Sales Tax Tax Tax 

$ 46,260,529 $ 14,288,063 $ 430,130 $ 65 8,8 78 
57,535,230 14,743,209 43 I ,874 709,941 
61 ,247,030 20, 150,3 58 494,20 1 894,368 
65,719,324 2 I ,654,606 503,134 973,569 
72,6 I 5,806 23,906,777 506,047 1,0 11 ,577 
75,616,097 30,410,633 614,474 1,294,063 
75,407 ,5 I 1 21,361,596 575 ,928 893 ,234 
73,158,156 20,961,453 547,605 98 1,619 
79,4 16 ,013 23,864,675 484,98 8 1,064,1 65 
83,036,649 24,695 , I 94 475,162 1,015,65 1 

138 

TABLE 3 

Total 

$ 6 1,637,600 
73,420,254 
82,785,957 
88,850,633 
98 ,040,207 

107,935,267 
98,238 ,269 
95 ,648,833 

104,829,841 
109,222,656 
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~ 

W 
'D 

General fund 

Reserved 
Unreserved 

N onspendablc 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total genera l rund 

All other govemmental runds: 

Rcserved 
Unreserved, reponed in . 

Special revcnuc r\Jnds 

Ca plLa) project runds 

Debt service fiJilds 
Nonspcndablc 
Restricted 

Commiue<l 
Assigned 
Unassigned (De ficll) 

2004 

$ 4,363,03 1 

781 ,09 1 

$ 5, 144, 122 

$ 5,069,747 

7,630,588 

(94.756) 

Total a ll other govemmental runds $ 12,605,5 79 

~ 

S 3,660.569 
9.473,913 

$ 13 ,134,482 

S 5,943,84 2 

7,095,623 

(62 ,120) 

257.097 

$ 13.234,442 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
roUN D BALANCES OF GOVER NMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEA RS 
(modified accrual ba sis or accountin g) 

Fiscal YC!l r 

2006 2007 2008 :1.QQ2 

$ 1,1 01,397 $ 1, 196,058 $ U 24,272 $ 1,247,682 
19.445, 189 28,724,474 31.324.562 37.639,200 

$ 20 ,546,586 $ 29.920,532 $ 32 ,448,8 34 5 38,886,882 

$ 3,958,995 S 3,9%,] 77 $ 7,895,953 $ 10,617,54 1 

16.985,952 17 ,623 ,43 8 12 ,48].025 14,975,902 

(1 ,6 18) (1.6 18) 

826,359 482,912 287 .948 376.688 

$ 21 .771,306 S 22, 10 1,109 $ 20,665,)08 $ 25 ,970, 13 1 

A GASI3 Sl..:J. temenl 54 was imp1cment.alcd ror fi scal year 20 II whieh ch<l.nged the ci:'SSlficallon or fund balance amounts. 

Pr ior year amounts hal'e not been res tated roc the ,mplemelllauon orSl.atcment 54. 

TA BLE4 

2010 20 11 " illl 2013 

$ 1.107,057 
34,899.538 

1,023 ,855 898 ,536 1,043,407 
3,482,075 2,295,347 4.3 12,676 

3 1,886 ,947 39,034,450 4 1,2 69,536 
$ 36,006,595 $ 36,392.877 $ 42,228,333 $ 46,625,619 

$ 13.853 .088 

15,625,403 

186,623 
9, 130 58, 197 41.047 

17,397,567 18, 1 J6,4 76 25,56 1,948 

5, 150,723 3,047,323 1,902 ,675 

4,867,06 1 8,499,277 2,064,21 7 

14,83 2,614) (2,670,874) (787, 118) 

$ 29,665,1 14 $ 22 ,59 1,867 $ 27,050,399 $ 28,782,769 
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T ABLE ~ 

JLFFERSON COUNTY, Tt.:XAS 

C HANGES IN FUND DA tANCES O F GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAS T TEN flS CAL YEARS 

(" ' Q dir.~d :!ec ru:!\ b~lii or ~ccounli') &:) 

Fis~. ~1 Vrar - - ill!> 1lli ""'- '''' ill!!. ill.!. llll 1lill 
REVENUES: 

Propel1)' Tua ~6.2 76,63(l , S1,J 4J,6S5 61,103,19) M,07 1,514 7I,~1 6 ,1 9) 75,912 ,693 7~,995,020 72,939,364 79,446,J 16 81,593,407 

Sales TaxC1 15,)77,07 . 1 ~,88~,021 2 1 ,~38,927 21,1] 1,309 2S, ~ 2 4,40 1 12.3 19,170 22,8JO,758 22,490,677 25,413,828 26,186,007 

Fcc! 12,441 ,8 \4 12,058.229 IZ,7)2,3113 13,2)2,594 1},B44,))4 13,3 72,000 1 ), 247,75S 11,176,331 lJ,OS6,IS2 13_WI,871 

Licenses 421 , 11 6 404.647 ~2 ~,4 J8 42J.l IJ 409,386 ~87,8~6 4SJ ,002 407,5 12 465,720 590, 148 

!nl ergovemm~"ul 7.7 lJ ,J79 10,984 ,076 39,0 11 .714 12,962, 160 14,31D47 30,549,286 17,890,178 2J,2()6 ,710 )0, 118,180 23,807,60) 

SlI!a . Rent'! & Service.! 4.995,661 ~,407.000 4,%3,482 5,4116. 288 4,173,70) 5,585,920 J.07J ,201 2,8J7,483 3,8 )9,6 )0 1,369,Ol 6 

fi nes and Forf~ilurc~ 3,118,964 2,897,424 J,~)I,886 3,008,1 96 2, 181,478 2,076,41 7 2,1 99,HS 2,On,7n 2,\30,801 2,074,656 

Inlercs.l 65 1,152 1, 123,9 12 2,703,2 10 3,08),9)8 2,2J6,JH 1,250,787 692,129 273, 177 536,993 254,207 
Mir.u:UaQequs 8,8611 8,256 62 ,80~ 17,539 17,936 29,275 26,095 24,1 64 ZS,2OO 35,91g 

CoollJibuliol'lS :o..nd Donations 22,400 26,J OO 10, 1% 18,968 4,11 6 1,)1~, I 90 j 1,727 4,04 1 ',4 12,098 4,700 

TO\J.I Ro:venucs , 9),027,055 106,1 39, 121 146,I I O,2J~ 126,4:15,81 9 1) 4, IB,n l 162.89U94 136,439.)96 1)7,451,184 1 S6 ,4 ~ 4,9 54 1 ~ 1,O I 7,Dl 

EX PENOITURES: 

Gene ... 1 GOVtfllmenl lJ , )67,973 13,85 I .OS2 15,367.H9 t7,9 62,9~6 IS,S87,891 20,315,453 20,8 5) ,875 20,474 .698 , 10,252,98 1 2l.1)7,70) 

Judici al and LAW c nforccmClI1 5 ~ ,20~,202 n,7 1 '; . 84~ ~),84 8 ,43J 60 , 79\58~ 69,726,438 69 ,6S6 ,9~ S 72,502,1 SO n,03 I,%a 79,934,077 84,56 1,028 

Educati on md R<CIl:u;oQ I ,OS9. 736 1. 117,604 1,137,01 ') 1,7 17,102 1,9 15,987 1,579,264 1 ,61 4,~SS 1,298, ~ 02 1,304, 505 1,36 1,048 

r~ eaJlh lIOO Wcl{~re 7,298,844 7,Qll . 4~9 8,2X,,2SJ 1t,794,712 10,024,011 IO,600,14S 10,571>,843 9,538) II 10,345,186 10,612,898 

MainrtflutCc ofSlI1.lClUfCS ~nd Equipme!ll 9,000,103 1I,255.?IXI 4; ,799,0 11 t .~,8S0 ,658 19, 8~I,9S4 J6,319,4 18 17,12J.I ~',1 115 4] ,110 12, 115,480 11 ,7 ',11 ,372 

~ Capi l.l.lOUllay 15,491,047 ~.lS8,OO2 4.776,39 1 3,690,930 2,0 16,129 4,076,087 7.218,481 17,434,755 11 ,9 1),277 6,777, 118 .., 
Debl Scrvi c~s 

0 Pri ncipal ) ,250,000 3)J 5,OOO ).890,000 4,045,000 J,51 0,OOO },660.000 ),760,000 ( 94 2,070 55.1 11 ,843 4.J~ 4, 1 69 

IlllCte$l lind Commission 4.151 ,299 4,120,881 4,08-0)9 3 ',118 978 J 794,062 3,67 1,21> 1 1,5]8,141 3,530,217 ", 123,025 1,976,429 

Total Expendilure. 1 06 ,8~4,206 ',18.7~,80) 1 j$, \~9, O J5 11 6,795,960 129,426,472 , 149,9S8,6S) 1J7. 187,243 142,84),M! 195,720,474 142.612,76S 

Exo=s (Dd'lcialCY) of Revenuel 
o~c . E.:p<ndilufe, ( \ 5,1127, t~l) 1.3 74 .120 IO,9S I, I99 9,639 ,8S9 4,696,779 12.939,9 \ t (7~ 7,S~7) (5,39 1,467) ()9,275,5l0) 9,)~4 , 7 68 
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ill! - ~ """ /ill """ llllt !!ill ill! llil 
O TH ER FINANC IN G SOUR CES ( lISES): 
T,an.f", In , UI6,946 7J5,870 'UOll ,217 S 3, 101,422 8,147.776 , 10,267,060 8,49 1,580 2.1I~ 1.()()O 6.709, .170 6.590,69'1 
TllInsfer 0...1 (2.640,332) (J ,I I S,594) ( 10,514,101) (~.l87}J2 ) ( 1I,909.9JI ) ( 1J,954,8'm {I 1,82 1,179) ( 3.MB.7SS) ('U2J,9S I) (9,789.117) 
P"x:.:ws from S~ l e orCapiLaI AS5CI5 2, 111 ,000 
Cap'l&J Leue Ob l ig~liol\J 1. 7) 1,957 

IO$Uranee Procc<:o:h 10,000,000 1. I ~O.OOO 157,877 2556,532 I.J 14,0 11 
ISlUinee of Deb! UI60}38 3,000,000 ,\,5,\0,000 'I 'i.}05,OOO 

'>rcmium on Debllswcd <90 249.283 4,970, 522 
I'aymcru (0 R.eli.mding nond E~crow AgclIl (5 ,612,H2) 

TOlal O ther R nane ing Sourcu (U.es) ~J7.201 S 560 766 4.9 \1~.O29 , 638'10 13 ,604,278) (1,1)1')001 , l,g46,76Q (670,914) 49.460,94 1 (J,ln,6IS) 

Net Change In Fund nal~oce, ( 1\289,949! -J.<)3S,0~ (, 15,945 ,22.8 9.103,7~9 1,092 ,50 1 11,808.61 1 , 1,000~,'ln {6062A41 ! 1 0. 18~.42 1 6, 146,090 

D<:bl Servi(;C: As A Pc.rcwlagc or 
Nom:api uJl Expwdilure~ 8,3% S, I'I. 6 I'" 7, )'1. 60% 5.1% ~.8% 66% 32~/. 4 7'1, 

J(fF( lIS0N CO \IN1'V, TeXAS 

CEN[ R,oI, L GOVElt N"'I£ NTAI , TAX REVt;;NUES II V SO lInCt;; 
l ,\ ST TEN f iSCAL VEARS 

(OlI od ;n ~d lIttr"al b~~;~ or'Ccoonl;ng) 

Fiica l Akoholir Drvrnl;" " ofd Occollancy 

~ 
~ PrOp(rl y TlI ~ SII() T~ l T" Ta~ To(~1 

2004 " 46,216,(»0 " 14,2SS,06] 4JO, Il0 658.S/8 6 1,653,101 

2005 57.)4J.lM 14,14J,20? 4JI,874 709.'14 1 7J ,228,679 

2006 6 1, IOJ, I93 10,1 ~(),J 5 S 494 ,20 1 894.368 82 , 6~ 2 ,1 2 0 

2001 65,01 1,5 14 l IM4 ,60u 50J ,IJ4 973569 88,202,823 

""" 71, 516.19J '1) ,906,777 506,047 1.01 1.577 96.940,59~ 

2009 75,9 12,69) 30/IIONJ u1 4,474 1,294.(6) 108,23 1,863 

20 10 75,995,020 lJ.)blYI6 575,928 80J ,234 98,825,778 

201 1 12,959)64 20,',161,45) 547,605 98 1,619 "5,450,04 1 

2012 79.'146) 16 lJ.8M,675 484,"88 1,064, 165 104,860, 144 

20l J 82)9J ,407 24,695, 1'>4 475,1 62 LO ISM I \08,779,4 14 
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.p. 
N 

Fisca l 

Year 

Ended 
September 30 

J EFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Real Prol!crty Personal Pro~cr(~ Le5s: Total Taxable 
Residential Commercial Motor Tax Excmpf ASSessed 
Property Property Vehicles Oliter ~ropcrty Value 

Total 
Direct 
Tn 
Rate 

2006 $ 5,763,919,286 $ 8,244,921,075 $ 53,451 ,4 10 $ 3,377,709,770 $ 3,069,336,20 I $ 14 ,370,665,340 $ 0.425 
2007 5,433,538,560 10,360,470,535 54,889,880 3,872,073,860 3,180,724,674 16,540,248,161 
2008 6,729,159,173 11,409,878,641 62,781 , 190 4, 196,575,015 3,824,188,028 18,574,205,991 
2009 7,717,517,403 12,524,3 72,020 63 ,467,330 4,907,849,539 4,4 16,709,776 20,796,496,5 16 
2010 7,848,755,180 11 ,452,048,660 59,394,290 4,83 1,378,530 3,053,531,674 21, 138,044,986 
2011 8,042,282,874 12, 128,893,349 47,961,490 4,820,689,110 2,904,361 , 132 22, 135,465,69 1 
2012 7,989,089,195 12,510,887,7 10 51, 129,790 5,42 1, 135,950 2,8 19, 185,882 23 , 153,056,763 
2013 7,912, 100.439 14,408,052,759 62,242,770 6,068,922,220 3, 198,328 ,907 25,252,989,28 1 

Source: Jefferson County Appraisal Di~lricl 

Note: Property in tile: counly is reassessed annUally. The county assesses property at 100% of aCluaJ value for alilypes of real and personal property. 
However, each homestead residential property can only increase by a maximum of 10% in any given yeM. Estimated actual value is calculated by 
adding back the loss to the limil on homestead residenLial properties to the tOlaltaxab!e assessed value. Ta'l. rates arc per $100 of assessed value. 

(a) Includes lax-exempt propeny . 

.. Reponing began in fiscaJ year 2006. 

0.400 
0.390 
0.365 
0.365 
0.365 
0.365 

0 365 

TABLE 6 

Estimated Assessed 
Actual Value (a) as a 

Taxable Pcrccntag~ of 
Value Achlal Value 

$ 14,455,989,770 82,89% 
16,560,749,332 83 .98% 
18,879,604,039 84.29% 
21,244,031 ,039 84 .26% 
21,J37,887,3 16 88.20% 
22,248,999,610 88.85% 
23,199,553,509 89.32% 
25,274 ,550,28 1 88.83% 
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-... 
w 

Debt 
l' isca I Operating Service 
Year Rate Rate 

2006 $ 0.375 $ 0.050 $ 

2007 0.355 0.045 
2008 0.353 0.037 
2009 0.331 0.034 
2010 0.330 0.035 

2011 0.33 1 0.034 
2012 0.336 0.029 
20\3 0.340 0.025 

Source: Jefferson Co unty Tax Assessor Collector 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PROPERTY TAX RATES 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING (a) GOVERNMENTS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Overlappin~ Rates 
Cities Sch::)Qi Districts 

Tot.1 Debt Tot.1 Debt 
County Operating Service C ity Openlting Service 

Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate 

0.425 $ 0.406 $ 0.271 $ 0.677 $ 1.491 $ 0.136 
OAOO 0.420 0.232 0.652 1.311 0.119 
0.390 OA 19 0.187 0.606 1.077 0.144 
0.365 0.385 0.202 0.587 1.058 0.186 
0.365 0.394 0. 199 0.593 1.073 0.220 

0.365 0.394 0.197 0.591 1.058 0.226 
0.365 OAOI 0.185 0.586 1.059 0.230 
0.365 OAI2 0.182 0.594 1.059 0.2 17 

TOhtl 

Schcol Special 
Rate Dis lric ts 

$ 1.627 $ 0.2 16 
1.430 0.216 
1.221 0.205 
1.:44 0.217 
1.293 0.226 
1.284 0.192 
1.289 0.193 
1.276 0.194 

(a) Ove rlapping rales are those of local governments lhal apply to properly owners within Jefferson County. Not all overlapping rales apply LO all Jefferson County property owners. 
(e.g., th e rates for special districts apply on ly to the proponion of tile CaullCY's property owners whose prOperly is located wl!.hin (he geographic boundllTics of lhe speciaJ districl.) 

Note: Rates are per .$ I 00 of ta'(ablc value. Rates for overlapping entities arc an average tax rate of all cities (6), school districts (7), and special districts (J 3) located within Jefferson County 
r OT fi scal year 2013, totaJ rates ranged between .2 160 and .7920 for cities, l.l05 and 1.388 1 for schoo l districts, and .0279 and .5593 for specid disLIicts. 

,. Reporting began in fiscal year 2006. 

TABLE 7 

Total Direct 
& 

Overlapping 
Rates 

$ 2.945 
2.698 
2A22 
2AI3 
2A77 

2A 32 
2.43 3 
2A29 
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TABLE 8 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PRINC [PA L TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND N[NE YEARS AGO 

2013 2004 

Percentage of Percentage of 
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable 
Assessed Ass essed Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayers Value (b) Rank Value Value (b) Rank Value 

ExxonMobil Oil Corporalion $ 2,506,492,790 1 9,93% $ 1,749,241 ,690 1 J 3.88% 
Motiva Refinery 2,388,843,550 2 9.46% 822,853 ,850 3 6.53% 

Premcor Refining Group Inc 1,264,036,700 3 5.01% 361,295,770 5 

Total Petrochemieals USA 1,074 ,957,370 4 4.26% 414 ,690,450 4 3.29% 
Huntsman Pe trochemical Corp 44 5,629,0 10 5 1.76% 854,294, 100 2 6.78% 

Chevron Phillips Chemical Co 416,411 ,930 6 1.65% 295,531 ,520 6 2.3 5% 
BASF'-Alofina Joint Venture 369,446,730 7 1.46% 0.00% 

Sun Marine Terminals Inc 345,346,620 8 1.37% 0.00% 

Enterpri se Texas Pipeline LP 286,382 ,160 9 1.13% 

Entergy GulfSmtes Inc. 283,790,030 10 12% 245, 114 ,920 7 

Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co. 213 ,153,550 8 1.69% 
E I Dupont Oe Nemours 132 ,957,790 9 1.06% 

Southwestern Bell Telephone Co. 113,577,590 10 0.90% 

TOTAL $9,381,336,890 37.15% $5,202,711,230 36.48% 

Source: Jefferson County Appra isal District. 

(b) Amoun is shown for these taxpayers do nol include assessed values attributable 10 certain subsidiaries and affil iates which 

are nOI g rouped on Ihe Lax ro ll wi lh the taxpayers shown. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

September 30 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Collected within the Fiscal 
Year of the Levy 

Total Tax Collections in 
Levy for Percentage Subsequent 

Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years 
$ 60,784,747 $ 59,849,203 98.46% $ 666,617 

64,523,739 63 ,544,312 98.48% 739,577 
70,675,310 69,387,969 98.18% 989,245 
74,727,959 73,704,158 98.63% 664,378 
74,415,469 73,446,110 98.70% 521,572 
79,159,690 77,966,579 98.49% 606,277 
83 ,581,379 82,381,734 98.56% 439,176 
91 ,087,946 89,859,552 98.65% 

• Reporting began in fi scal year 2006. 

TABLE 9 

Total Collections to Date 

Percentage 
Amount of Levy 

$ 60,S I 5,820 99.56% 
64,283,889 99.63% 
70,377,2 14 99.58% 
74,368,536 99.52% 
73,967,682 99.40% 
78,572,856 99.26% 
82,820,9 10 9909% 
89,859,552 98.65% 
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General 
Fiscal Obligation 
Year Bonds 

2006 $ 79,3 92,478 
2007 75,385,127 
2008 71,912,777 

2009 68,290,426 
2010 64,553,045 
2011 60,664,579 
2012 56,704,005 
2013 52,482,467 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RATIO OF OIlJTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Notes Capital Total Primary 
Payable Leases Government 

$ 2,648,987 $ 101,959 $ 82,143,424 
2,332,066 52,224 77,769,417 
2,005,529 73,918,306 

1,669,086 69,959,512 
1,322,435 1,144,977 67,020,457 

965,267 585,075 62,214,921 
597,263 57,301,268 
218,094 52,700,561 

Percentage of 
Personal 

Income (a) 

1.20% 
1.09% 
0.96% 
0.85% 
0.74% 
0.66% 
0.59% 
0.55% 

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

TABLE 10 

Per Capita (a) 

$ 332 
$ 319 
$ 305 
$ 289 
$ 266 
$ 247 
$ 227 
$ 209 

(a) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for personal income and population data . 

• Reporting began in fi scal year 2006. 
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TABLE 11 

Fiscal 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Percentage of 
Estimated 

Less: Actual 
General Amounts Taxable 

Obligation Available in Value (a) 
Year Bonds Debt Fund Total of Property Per Capita (b) 

2006 $ 79,392,478 $ 337,083 $ 79,055,395 0.55% $ 319 
2007 75,385,127 318,212 75,066,915 0.45% 308 
2008 71,912,777 76,619 71 ,8 36,158 0.38% 297 
2009 68,290,426 176,339 68,114,087 0.32% 281 
201O 64,553,045 330,833 64,222,212 0.30% 255 
2011 60,664,579 354,241 60,310,338 0.27% 239 
2012 56,704,005 716,106 55,987,899 0.24% 222 
2013 52,482,467 90 1,217 51,581,250 0.22% 205 

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

(a) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property in Table 6 for 
property value data. 

(b) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for population data. 

* Reporting began in fiscal year 2006. 
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TABLE 12 

JEFFERSON COUNTY. TEXAS 

DIRE CT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

AS OF SEPT EMBER 30, 2013 

Government a l Unit 

JEFFERSON COUNT Y DI RECT DEBT 
Total Direc1 Debt 

Estimated 
Percentage 
Applicable 

Debt O utstanding (3) 

$52.700,56 1 100. 0% 

OVERLAPPING DEBT REPA ID W ITH PROPERT Y TAXES: 

CITI ES: 
BEAUMONT 
BEVI L OAKS 
GROVES 
NEDER LAND 
PORT ARTHUR 
PORT NEC HES 
TA Yl.OR LANDIN G 

SC HOOL DISTRICTS 
BEAUMONT 
HAMSHI RE FANN ETT 

HARDI N JEFFE RSO N 
NEDERLAND 
PORT ARTH UR 
PORT NECH ES 
SA BINE PASS 

PORT DISTR ICTS: 
BEAU MO NT 
PORT ARTHUR 
SABINE PASS 

ORA INAGE DISTRICTS: 
DRA IN AGE DI ST RICTS /13 
DRA INAGE DISTRJ CTS #6 
DRAI NAG E DISTRI CTS #7 

NA VIG ATI ON DISTRI CTS ' 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

MUNICI PA L UTI LIT Y DIST RICTS: 
NORTH WEST f OREST 

WATE R DIST RICTS: 
WATER DI STRICT 1110 

EMERG ENCY SERVICE DISTRICTS: 
EMERG ENCY SERV ICE DIST RICT II I 
EM ERG ENCY SER VICE DISTRICT 112 
EMERG ENCY SERV ICE DISTRICT #3 

CONSERVA TION DI ST RICTS : 
TRINITY BAY 

IMPR OVEMENT DISTRICT: 
CARD INA L MEA DOWS 

TOIal Ove rlapping Debt 
TOTAL DIRECT AND OV ERLAPP[NG DEBT 

23 1,093,050 

5,170,000 
15,715,000 
5,995 ,000 

16.135,000 

398,205,000 
9,235,000 

58, 180,657 
2),020,000 

275,465.000 
117,69 1,078 

31 ,91 0,331 

7,605.000 
33 ,040,000 

1,290,428 

4,835,000 

SO llrc es: Debl outswnding dala was provided by each or the taXing e nti ties. 

100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 

100.0% 
100.0010 
59.3% 

100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 

100. 0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 

100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 
1000% 
100.0% 

1000% 

1000% 

Eslimated Sha re of 
Overlappin g Debt 

S52,7oo,561 
$52,700,561 

231 ,093,050 

5, 170,000 
15,715,000 
5,995,000 

16. 135,000 

398,205,000 
9,23 5,000 

34 ,501 ,130 
n .020,Ooo 

275,465.000 
117,69 1,078 
31,9)0.33 1 

7,605,000 
33,040,000 

) ,290,428 

4,835,000 

$],210.906,017 
$ 1,263,606,SiS 

NOle: Overlapping governments are Ihose that coinCIde, al least in pa rt , with the geographiC bOLmdaries or Ihe 
county. This schedule estimates the portion or the oUlstanding debt of those overlapping governmenlS Ihat is 
borne by the residenl s and businesses of Je fferson County. This process reco gn izes that . when considering 
the County 's abili ty 10 issue and repay long-tenn debt, Ihe entire debt burden borne by Ihe residenlS and 
businesses should be laken into account. However, this does not imply Ihal every ta.xpayer is a residenl , and 
there fore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping gove rnment 

(a) The percentage orove rl apping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable 
pe rcentages were eSlimmed by delerm ini ng the portion o r laxing entity tha I is within the County's boundaries 
and dl vidmg il by the taxi ng emily's 101£11 taxable assessed value. 
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Debt lim it 

Tolal net debt applicable (0 limit 

Legal debt margin 

TOlalllet debt applicable to lile 

limil as a percentage or debt 
limit 

20(J4 

$ 3,469,794 

82,987 

$ 3,386,807 

2.39% 

1005 

$ 3,639,382 

82,888 

$ 3,556,494 

2.28% 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORM ATION 

LASTT£N FISCAL YEARS 

(amounts expressed in thousand s) 

Fisc:.1 Year 
200(, 2007 2008 2009 

$ 3,502,2 10 $ 3,948,502 $ 4,534,760 $ 5,060,472 

79,203 75 ,177 71,908 68, 149 

$ 3,423 ,007 $ 3,873,325 $ 4,462,852 54,992,323 

2.26% 1.90% 1.59% 1.35% 

TABLE 13 

20I() 20ll 2012 20 13 

$ 4 ,825,20 I $ 5,042,794 $ 5, 124 ,994 $ 5,580,038 

64 ,234 60,4 I 6 60,416 48 ,404 

$ 4,760,967 $ 4,982,378 $ 5,064,578 $ 5,53 1,634 

1.33% 1.20% 1-1 8% 0.87% 

Leg~ 1 Debt Ma rgin CR;c ulation ror Fiscal Yl'ar 20 1l 

Assessed Value orReal Properly $ 22,320,153 

Debt limit (25% or assessed value o r real property) 5,580,038 

Debt ap;,>licabJe La limit: 

General ob liga:ion bonds 49.305 
Less: Amount sci as ide for repayment 

or general obi igalion debt 
TOlalncl debt applicablc \0 limit 

Legal debl margi n 

901 

$ 48,404 

$ 5,53 1,634 

Note : Under ArtIcle III . Secl ion 52 of the State COnS{ilUlion • Jefferson County's oULstandin g general obligation debt should not exceed 25% o f 

a~sessed valuation o f real property By law, (he general obligatiol! deht subject (0 tile 1 imitat ion may he offset by amounts sel asIde for repaying 

general obligation bonds. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Personal 
Income 

(amounts Per Capita School 
Fiscal expressed in Personal Median Enrollment 
Year Population (a) thousands) Income (b) Age (a) (a) 

2006 247,571 $ 6,854,993 $ 27,689 36.5 62,002 

2007 243,914 $ 7, 152,534 $ 29,324 36.4 59,776 
2008 241 ,975 $ 7,684, 158 $ 31,756 36.7 62,290 
2009 242,142 $ 8,183,189 $ 33 ,795 36.5 61,721 
2010 252,273 $ 9,099,739 $ 36,071 35.6 62,433 
20 11 252,273 $ 9,369,167 $ 37,139 36.0 63,371 

2012 252,802 $ 9,786,471 $ 38 ,7 12 35.9 63 ,371 

2013 251,813 $ 9,658,791 $ 38,357 36 .0 63,433 

Data sources 
(a) Bureau of Census 
(b) Texas Workforce Commission 

• Reporting began in fiscal year 2006. 

TABLE 14 

Unemployment 
Rate (b) 

6.6% 
5.7% 
7.3% 

10.7% 
10.6% 
11.7% 
10.2% 
10.1% 
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TABLE 15 
JEFFERSON COUNT Y, TEXA S 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND NI NE YEARS AGO 

20 ll 2004 

Percen tage of Percentage of 

Talal County Tolal Cou nty 

Employe r Employees Rank Employment Em ployees Rank Employmen t 

State of Texas 5,500 5.12% 1,930 5 1. 77% 
Beaumont ISO 2,976 2 2. 77% 2,781 I 2.55% 
ExxonMobil Oil Corporation 2,000 3 1. 86% 1,150 3 1.97% 
Chrislus Heahh Sou theast Texas 1,530 4 1.43% 2,176 2 2.09% 
Motiv(l Enterpnses 1,475 5 1.3 7% 
Cil), of Beaumont 1,335 6 1.24% 1,100 8 11 0% 
Memor ial Hermann Baptist Hospilal 1,232 7 1.1 5% 1,34 0 6 1 2)% 

Je fferson County 1, 184 8 1.1 00/0 1, 130 10 1.04% 
Port Arthur IS O 1,170 9 1.0tfOlo 
Valero 833 10 0.78% 

E.!. DuPont Sabine Rive r Works 2,000 4 1.83% 

U S Postal Encoding 1,227 7 1.13% 

Westvaco 1, 175 9 1.08% 

TOTAL 19,235 17.9 1% 17,209 15.79% 

Source , Employment numbers provided by each entity 

15 1 
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TABLE 16 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Full-time Eguivalent Employees as of September 30 

Function 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

General Government 169 176 171 180 170 166 164 166 
Judicial & Law Enforcement 

Deput ies 114 122 124 13 1 134 J 31 134 138 
Detention Officers 222 239 22 1 240 242 239 238 241 
Others 439 435 436 441 444 440 442 436 

Ed ucati on & Recreation J4 17 18 18 20 14 15 15 
Health & Welfare 64 55 56 63 63 59 60 60 
Maintenance - Equipment & 

Structures 
Road & Bridges 59 71 70 69 68 67 66 64 
Engineering 10 9 10 10 9 10 10 10 
Mai ntenance 31 30 27 30 29 28 28 30 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport 25 23 26 23 25 25 23 24 
Ford Park 125 101 79 22 23 19 20 23 

TOTAL 1,272 1,278 1,238 1,227 1,227 1,198 1,200 1,207 

Sources: County and Ford Park payro ll records 

" Report ing began in fi scal year 2006. 
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TABLE 17 
JEFFF..R.SON COUNTY, TEXAS 

OPERATINC IND ICATORS DY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FISCAL YEAR 
function 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 20 13 -----

Judic!al & Law Enrorcement 

Courts 
Number or Indigent Cases Heard 2,082 2.8]9 2,984 2,945 2,945 2,490 2.4 13 3)49 
Number or Juslice of Peace Cases 47,627 5 1,416 50,997 43 ,3 26 4),488 44,642 48,3 63 43,205 

Sheriff 
Number of Arrests 6,147 6,42 3 6,543 6,41l4 6,5 73 6,099 6,023 5,898 
Number of Citations 1,203 1,242 2,300 1,112 1,043 1.241 1,08 1 915 

Jail 
A verage Daily Population of Inmates 959 1.171 986 899 910 926 8 15 767 

Constables 
Number or Papers Served 21,209 19,874 15,847 15,954 16,%7 16,860 15 ,344 15,472 

Education & Recreat!on 

Library 
Number of Patron Visits 6,129 5,9]5 6,300 4,002 1.536 n/,' n/,' nla A 

~ Health & Welfare V> 
w Health & Welfa re 

Number of Pal lents Seen In Clini c 7,363 8,111 8,3 I 0 9,375 I 1,53 I I J,968 11 ,644 7,433 

Mosquito Con lIol 
Numb(;;r of Acreage Sprayed 2,613 ,632 1,386.752 1,393,743 2,175.872 1,070,464 8 18,972 1,328,128 700,672 

Mainlenance . Eq uipment & Struehlres 

Road & Bridge 
Road Miles Maintained 368 368 370 370 370 370 )69 370 

Airport 
Number of Aircraft Opera ll ons 61,856 55,350 32,273 27,89 1 26,332 22,602 22,5 15 20,35 1 

Number of Enplaned 25,687 25,650 22,126 22, 174 17,957 18,098 5,666 24,669 

Number of Deplaned 26,219 26, II 7 22,387 21 ,588 17,997 18,207 5,328 24,351 

Health Insurance Risk Pool 

Number of Participants in Plan 1,389 \ ,429 1,490 1,541 1,568 1.550 !,S81 1,6 12 

Entertainment Complcx 
Nu mber or EvenlS 199 160 221 183 198 188 185 176 

Total Attendanee 248,639 6 17,246 280 ,0 12 658,3)7 647,207 629,123 7 12,688 668,718 

Sources: Vari ous county departments 
Nole- indicators are not available for the ge neral govcmmcm runclion s 

" Libra ry was c losed 12/31/10 

• Reponing began In Iisc21 },(;if 2006 
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TABLE 18 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BV FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL VEARS 

FISCAL VEAl! 
Fll nction 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 20lJ 

Jud icial & Law En[oreement 
Sheriff 

Palroi Units 92 109 11 9 116 120 122 122 126 
Aviation Units 3 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 
Marine Unils 3 3 4 9 9 II II I I 

Jai l 
Dorms 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 
Bed Capacity 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 

Constab les 
Patrol Units 29 29 30 3 I 32 27 24 29 

Education & Recreation 
Library Holdings (ie books, audio, video) 45,378 44,28 1 46,104 35,549 36,038 nI. " nI, " nI," 

Healih & Welfare 
en Mosquito Conlrol ... 

Mosquito Spray Tlucks 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 
Weed Conlrol Trucks 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Aviation Units 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Maintenance· Equipmen t & Structures 
Road (miles) 368 368 370 370 370 370 369 370 
Bridges 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 

Airport 

Runways (linear [eeL) II ,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11,820 

T-H angar & Open Span Hangars (square [eel) 138,706 154,376 144,276 123,076 123,076 150,470 150,470 150,470 

Office Space (square [ee l) 15,055 15,535 14,439 14,426 14,426 18,885 18,885 43,850 

Enlertairunenl Complex 
Number of venues 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Softbal l Fields 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 
Exhibit Ploor Space (square feel) 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 

SeaLing Capacity 23,500 23 ,500 23 ,500 23 ,500 23 ,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 

Sources: Various count y depaIlments 
Norc: Indicators are Jlot available for the general govenunent function . 

" Library was closed 12/31110. 

~ Reponing began in fisca l yeal 2006 

324



325



326



  PGM: GMCOMMV2                       DATE                                PAGE:   1
                                    03-31-2014
            NAME                                     AMOUNT     CHECK NO.     TOTAL

JURY FUND

TRI-CITY COFFEE SERVICE                               160.25     391989
WARREN'S DO-NUTS                                       84.46     392047
                                                                           244.71**
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.#1

CARQUEST AUTO PARTS # 96                               76.63     391897
RALPH'S INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS                         55.41     391964
SMART'S TRUCK & TRAILER, INC.                          17.56     391973
AT&T                                                   60.98     391976
TRANTEX, INC.                                         475.00     392003
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .03     392005
                                                                           685.61**
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.#2

EASTEX RUBBER & GASKET                                 10.00     391914
NOACK LOCKSMITH                                        36.00     391949
RITTER @ HOME                                         437.11     391963
SETZER HARDWARE, INC.                                  25.78     391969
WASTE MGT. GOLDEN TRIANGLE, INC.                       79.12     391995
NEDERLAND HARDWARE SUPPLY                               8.38     391997
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS, INC.                              83.01     392025
                                                                           679.40**
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. # 3

ENTERGY                                               232.55     391925
MUNRO'S                                                34.13     391947
OIL CITY TRACTORS, INC.                                55.96     391953
AT&T                                                   69.76     391976
TIME WARNER COMMUNICATIONS                             80.22     391980
STRATTON INC.                                          26.66     391996
HOWARD'S AUTO SUPPLY                                  150.33     392001
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .85     392005
PCM-G                                                 262.80     392072
SPURLOCK ROAD VETERINARY CLINIC                       166.30     392106
                                                                         1,079.56**
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.#4

APAC, INC. - TROTTI & THOMSOM                         109.51     391886
BEAUMONT FRAME & FRONT END                            480.80     391890
BRANCE KRACHY CO., INC.                               117.26     391892
J.K. CHEVROLET CO.                                    250.75     391931
M&D SUPPLY                                              6.54     391939
MUNRO'S                                             1,112.73     391947
PORT ARTHUR NEWS, INC.                                 99.99     391960
SMART'S TRUCK & TRAILER, INC.                          78.52     391973
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .12     392005
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            2.00     392015
VULCAN INC                                             47.29     392030
BEAUMONT FREIGHTLINER STERLING                        107.80     392044
NATALIE ROBERTS                                       129.46     392061
INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER - BMT                   116.90     392074
ON TIME TIRE                                          322.98     392107
SOUTHEAST TEXAS PARTS AND EQUIPMENT                    46.26     392124
                                                                         3,028.91**
ENGINEERING FUND

OFFICE DEPOT                                           80.50     391952
                                                                            80.50**
PARKS & RECREATION

LOWE'S HOME CENTERS, INC.                             143.08     392025
                                                                           143.08**
GENERAL FUND

TAX OFFICE

HERNANDEZ OFFICE SUPPLY, INC.                         579.00     391929
OFFICE DEPOT                                          341.29     391952
ACE IMAGEWEAR                                          20.69     391970
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .06     392005
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                        1,621.72     392015
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  PGM: GMCOMMV2                       DATE                                PAGE:   2
                                    03-31-2014
            NAME                                     AMOUNT     CHECK NO.     TOTAL

ROCHESTER ARMORED CAR CO INC                          352.00     392089
                                                                         2,914.76*
COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES

BEAUMONT FAMILY PRACTICE ASSOC.                       165.00     391889
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            6.18     392015
                                                                           171.18*
AUDITOR'S OFFICE

UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS AT AUSTIN                         150.00     391990
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            3.65     392015
                                                                           153.65*
COUNTY CLERK

FED EX                                                 10.54     391918
OFFICE DEPOT                                          824.18     391952
XEROX CORPORATION                                   1,010.86     391998
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          367.82     392015
                                                                         2,213.40*
COUNTY JUDGE

CHEROKEE COUNTY CLERK                               1,144.00     391908
LAIRON DOWDEN, JR.                                    500.00     391911
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            4.76     392015
GRACE NICHOLS                                       2,000.00     392069
HARVEY L WARREN III                                 1,600.00     392083
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                  116.58     392117
                                                                         5,365.34*
RISK MANAGEMENT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           17.59     392015
                                                                            17.59*
COUNTY TREASURER

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          229.97     392015
                                                                           229.97*
PRINTING DEPARTMENT

OLMSTED-KIRK PAPER                                    147.70     391954
                                                                           147.70*
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

THE EXAMINER                                           99.00     391916
OFFICE DEPOT                                          107.83     391952
PORT ARTHUR NEWS, INC.                                250.56     391960
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           13.74     392015
                                                                           471.13*
GENERAL SERVICES

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                   80.00     391933
SPINDLETOP MHMR                                    32,990.75     391936
OLMSTED-KIRK PAPER                                  2,704.00     391954
TIME WARNER COMMUNICATIONS                            482.62     391979
CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL                          1,332.65     392035
ROCHESTER ARMORED CAR CO INC                        3,858.78     392089
DYNAMEX INC                                           226.58     392122
                                                                        41,675.38*
DATA PROCESSING

GUARDIAN FORCE                                         36.00     391873
CDW COMPUTER CENTERS, INC.                             77.92     392002
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       75.98     392012
JOHN FERRARA                                          483.56     392037
TIGER DIRECT.COM                                    1,592.26     392070
                                                                         2,265.72*
VOTERS REGISTRATION DEPT

OFFICE DEPOT                                          657.54     391952
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          240.24     392015
                                                                           897.78*
ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT

THERESA GOODNESS                                       20.00     391923
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OFFICE DEPOT                                          268.84     391952
ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE, INC.                     893.70     392006
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           10.06     392015
SIERRA SPRING WATER CO. - BT                           37.03     392019
                                                                         1,229.63*
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

JEFFERSON CTY. YOUNG LAWYER'S ASSOC                    40.00     391879
DALLAS CHILDRENS ADVOCACY CENTER                    1,410.00     391909
GT DISTRIBUTORS, INC.                                 160.27     391920
HERNANDEZ OFFICE SUPPLY, INC.                         410.00     391929
OFFICE DEPOT                                        1,275.56     391952
STATE BAR OF TEXAS                                    120.00     391977
WAYLN G. THOMPSON                                     465.21     391986
TRIANGLE BLUE PRINT CO., INC.                          12.00     391987
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          213.02     392015
LEXIS-NEXIS                                            98.00     392017
RECALL TOTAL INFORMATION MANAGEMENT                   998.84     392033
PATRIOT GROUP                                       2,097.94     392056
9TH COURT OF APPEALS                                   10.00     392060
BRIAR ENTERPRISES                                      47.00     392100
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                1,260.55     392117
LESLIE JONES                                          143.92     392119
                                                                         8,762.31*
DISTRICT CLERK

OFFICE DEPOT                                          165.43     391952
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          331.85     392015
SHI GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, INC.                        329.20     392020
                                                                           826.48*
CRIMINAL DISTRICT COURT

JACK LAWRENCE                                          66.82     391876
A. MARK FAGGARD                                     2,595.00     391917
RENE MULHOLLAND                                       397.70     391991
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            1.22     392015
                                                                         3,060.74*
58TH DISTRICT COURT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                             .41     392015
                                                                              .41*
60TH DISTRICT COURT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                             .41     392015
                                                                              .41*
136TH DISTRICT COURT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           10.21     392015
                                                                            10.21*
172ND DISTRICT COURT

TEXAS COURT REPORTERS ASSOCIATION                     325.00     391983
                                                                           325.00*
252ND DISTRICT COURT

JEFFERSON CTY. YOUNG LAWYER'S ASSOC                    20.00     391879
ANITA L. SEEGERS                                    1,134.00     391891
THOMAS J. BURBANK, P.C.                               900.00     391895
A. MARK FAGGARD                                       975.00     391917
LEAH HAYES                                             29.10     391928
BRUCE N. SMITH                                        900.00     391974
KEVIN S. LAINE                                        900.00     392000
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          381.36     392015
CAROLYN WIEDENFELD                                    800.00     392027
LINDSEY SCOTT                                         115.71     392052
SUMMER TANNER                                         126.10     392055
SEAN VILLERY-SAMUEL                                   600.00     392078
RYAN GERTZ                                            800.00     392081
JASON ROBERT NICKS                                    800.00     392082
JAMES R. MAKIN, P.C.                                1,948.23     392094
ALEX BILL III                                         600.00     392096
                                                                        11,029.50*
279TH DISTRICT COURT
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LINDA C. CANSLER                                      325.00     391896
LAIRON DOWDEN, JR.                                    325.00     391911
JIMMY D. HAMM                                         325.00     391927
KEVIN PAULA SEKALY PC                                 325.00     391968
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            1.62     392015
MATUSKA LAW FIRM                                       75.00     392126
                                                                         1,376.62*
317TH DISTRICT COURT

THOMAS J. BURBANK, P.C.                               325.00     391895
OFFICE DEPOT                                          104.44     391952
MARVA PROVO                                           325.00     391961
ANITA F. PROVO                                        825.00     391962
TEXAS CENTER FOR JUDICIARY                            135.00     391982
KEVIN S. LAINE                                        325.00     392000
CHARLES ROJAS                                         400.00     392004
GLEN M. CROCKER                                       500.00     392021
JUDY PAASCH                                         2,233.33     392042
TONYA CONNELL TOUPS                                 1,050.00     392059
NORMAN DESMARAIS JR.                                  325.00     392079
STEFANIE L. ADAMS, ATTORNEY AT LAW                    225.00     392092
MATUSKA LAW FIRM                                      225.00     392126
                                                                         6,997.77*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 1 PL 1

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           20.45     392015
                                                                            20.45*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 1 PL 2

TEXAS MUNICIPAL COURT - JUSTICE                        36.00     391985
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                             .81     392015
                                                                            36.81*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 4

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .25     392005
                                                                              .25*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 6

OFFICE DEPOT                                          342.92     391952
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           33.72     392015
                                                                           376.64*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 7

AT&T                                                   29.39     391976
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .33     392005
                                                                            29.72*
JUSTICE OF PEACE PCT. 8

THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                  115.50     392117
                                                                           115.50*
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO.1

OFFICE DEPOT                                          349.91     391952
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            3.65     392015
SIERRA SPRING WATER CO. - BT                           81.70     392018
GERALD EDDINS                                       1,073.71     392114
                                                                         1,508.97*
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 2

GAYLYN COOPER                                         250.00     391874
THOMAS J. BURBANK, P.C.                               250.00     391895
TRAVIS EVANS                                          250.00     391915
JOHN E. MACEY                                         250.00     391940
OFFICE DEPOT                                           93.14     391952
MARVA PROVO                                           250.00     391961
KEVIN PAULA SEKALY PC                                 250.00     391968
BRUCE N. SMITH                                        250.00     391974
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           23.55     392015
LUKE NICHOLS                                          250.00     392051
THE PARKER LAW FIRM                                   250.00     392080
                                                                         2,366.69*
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 3
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ART SIGNS & DECALS                                    275.00     391887
MIKE CICHOWSKI                                        250.00     391898
CHARLES ROJAS                                         250.00     392004
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           28.83     392015
ALEX BILL III                                         300.00     392096
MATUSKA LAW FIRM                                      250.00     392126
                                                                         1,353.83*
COURT MASTER

JUDGE LARRY GIST                                    3,134.90     391922
OFFICE DEPOT                                           71.37     391952
CDW COMPUTER CENTERS, INC.                            116.52     392002
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      108.81     392012
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            3.17     392015
RONALD L WALKER                                     2,400.00     392054
                                                                         5,834.77*
MEDIATION CENTER

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           10.75     392015
                                                                            10.75*
SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

GT DISTRIBUTORS, INC.                               6,120.00     391920
HERNANDEZ OFFICE SUPPLY, INC.                         136.50     391929
CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                  242.74     391933
MCNEILL INSURANCE AGENCY                              142.00     391944
OFFICE DEPOT                                        1,011.96     391952
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .80     392005
VERIZON WIRELESS                                    2,849.25     392010
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                        1,307.29     392015
BEAUMONT OCCUPATIONAL SERVICE, INC.                    29.85     392022
FIVE STAR FEED                                      3,540.00     392032
CODE BLUE                                           1,025.00     392039
COPQUEST INC                                          320.25     392046
ROD CARROLL                                            28.12     392073
RITA HURT                                           1,100.00     392104
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                  510.90     392117
AMERICAN TOWING                                       290.00     392127
                                                                        18,654.66*
CRIME LABORATORY

ALLOMETRICS INC.                                    1,910.00     391875
ABACUS DIAGNOSTIC, INC.                               654.00     391882
FISHER SCIENTIFIC                                      32.75     391919
LYNN PEAVEY CO., INC.                                  79.50     391938
OFFICE DEPOT                                          110.99     391952
SANITARY SUPPLY, INC.                                  72.25     391965
AIRGAS SOUTHWEST                                      180.00     392062
CAYMAN CHEMICAL COMPANY                               133.00     392084
SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABORATORIES                      47.00     392093
RDB SERVICES                                          500.00     392105
JULIE HANNON                                          600.00     392118
                                                                         4,319.49*
JAIL - NO. 2

HILO / O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                            322.27     391872
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY                                      106.14     391877
AVIALL                                                183.53     391888
CITY OF BEAUMONT - WATER DEPT.                     14,960.13     391900
COASTAL WELDING SUPPLY                                 33.60     391902
W.W. GRAINGER, INC.                                    72.48     391924
HYGEIA CHEMICAL CO.                                   221.12     391930
JACK BROOKS REGIONAL AIRPORT                        1,505.48     391932
M&D SUPPLY                                            270.39     391939
MCNEILL INSURANCE AGENCY                              142.00     391944
OFFICE DEPOT                                          329.00     391952
PETTY CASH - SHERIFF'S OFFICE                         717.14     391957
RALPH'S INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS                        138.00     391964
SANITARY SUPPLY, INC.                               4,103.12     391965
SCOTT EQUIPMENT, INC.                                 340.83     391966
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS                                       76.98     391972
SOUTHWEST STAINLESS                                   464.00     391975
WASTE MGT. GOLDEN TRIANGLE, INC.                    3,853.91     391995
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MR. ROOTER PLUMBING                                 7,850.00     392013
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS, INC.                              17.04     392025
LONE STAR UNIFORMS, INC.                              795.75     392028
AIRGAS SOUTHWEST                                      359.43     392062
WORLD FUEL SERVICES                                 1,457.81     392077
FIVE STAR CORRECTIONAL SERVICE                     17,158.89     392086
SHOE CORPORATION OF BIRMINGHAM INC                     99.12     392098
A1 FILTER SERVICE COMPANY                             737.60     392103
TROOP INDUSTRIAL                                       31.50     392111
                                                                        56,347.26*
JUVENILE PROBATION DEPT.

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                  270.00     391933
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       66.50     392012
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           11.59     392015
LYNN BIERHALTER                                        48.72     392049
LATONYA DOUCET                                        145.60     392063
                                                                           542.41*
JUVENILE DETENTION HOME

CITY OF BEAUMONT - WATER DEPT.                      2,702.02     391900
MOORE SERVICE CO., INC.                               695.25     391946
OAK FARM DAIRY                                        613.65     391999
FLOWERS FOODS                                         183.87     392036
ATTABOY TERMITE & PEST CONTROL                         80.00     392075
BROTHERS PRODUCE                                      164.75     392102
                                                                         4,439.54*
CONSTABLE PCT 1

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      227.94     392012
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           60.41     392015
                                                                           288.35*
CONSTABLE-PCT 2

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     392012
                                                                           113.97*
CONSTABLE-PCT 4

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .01     392005
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     392012
                                                                           113.98*
CONSTABLE-PCT 6

GT DISTRIBUTORS, INC.                                  34.95     391920
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     392012
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           20.35     392015
                                                                           169.27*
CONSTABLE PCT. 7

AT&T                                                   29.39     391976
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .09     392005
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     392012
                                                                           143.45*
CONSTABLE PCT. 8

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     392012
                                                                           113.97*
AGRICULTURE EXTENSION SVC

OFFICE DEPOT                                          213.19     391952
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           35.14     392015
BARBARA EVANS                                         129.92     392066
                                                                           378.25*
HEALTH AND WELFARE NO. 1

CITY OF BEAUMONT                                       80.00     391884
ENTERGY                                               168.47     391926
AUSTIN CECIL WALKES MD PA                           3,245.08     391994
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           77.46     392015
CENTERPOINT ENERGY RESOURCES CORP                     140.00     392043
                                                                         3,711.01*
HEALTH AND WELFARE NO. 2
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BROUSSARD'S MORTUARY                                1,500.00     391893
GABRIEL FUNERAL HOME, INC.                          3,550.00     391921
PHYSICIAN SALES & SERVICE, INC.                       299.52     391959
AT&T                                                   29.39     391976
AUSTIN CECIL WALKES MD PA                           3,245.08     391994
                                                                         8,623.99*
NURSE PRACTITIONER

GEORGE V. ZUZUKIN, M.D.                             1,000.00     391878
                                                                         1,000.00*
CHILD WELFARE UNIT

BUCKNER CHILDREN'S VILLAGE                            167.76     391894
DISA, INC.                                            504.00     391913
TARGET STORES DIVISION                              1,720.55     392007
BEAUMONT OCCUPATIONAL SERVICE, INC.                   747.00     392022
J.C. PENNEY'S                                       1,094.12     392023
SEARS COMMERICAL CREDIT                                75.00     392024
                                                                         4,308.43*
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                  413.72     391933
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .66     392005
                                                                           414.38*
INDIGENT MEDICAL SERVICES

CARDINAL HEALTH 110 INC                            41,791.57     392120
                                                                        41,791.57*
MAINTENANCE-BEAUMONT

MARK'S PLUMBING PARTS                                 400.68     391870
GUARDIAN FORCE                                         36.00     391873
CITY OF BEAUMONT - WATER DEPT.                      8,588.56     391900
W.W. GRAINGER, INC.                                   183.20     391924
ENTERGY                                             4,974.39     391925
M&D SUPPLY                                             51.60     391939
MANNINGS SCHOOL SUPPLY                                487.20     391941
MCCOWN PAINT & SUPPLY OF TEXAS                        151.81     391942
FRED MILLER STORES                                     81.80     391945
SANITARY SUPPLY, INC.                                 159.00     391965
ACE IMAGEWEAR                                         187.90     391970
AT&T                                                4,740.65     391976
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                 7,230.51     392005
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY                               2,756.00     392034
FIRETROL PROTECTION SYSTEMS, INC.                     291.00     392068
PRO CHEM INC                                          245.80     392108
                                                                        30,566.10*
MAINTENANCE-PORT ARTHUR

JOHNSTONE SUPPLY                                    1,362.00     391877
CITY OF PORT ARTHUR - WATER DEPT.                     444.51     391901
ALL-PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY                             282.50     391905
NOACK LOCKSMITH                                       179.25     391949
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.                                   21.13     391971
AT&T                                                  943.19     391976
TIME WARNER COMMUNICATIONS                             63.85     391981
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                     4.01     392005
PETE & HAROLD'S AUTO CLINIC, INC.                      14.50     392016
PARKER LUMBER                                         566.55     392087
SIGN DOCTOR, INC                                      425.00     392095
DALE'S POOLS                                          179.36     392115
MEMBER'S BUILDING MAINTENANCE LLC                   2,524.60     392121
                                                                         7,010.45*
MAINTENANCE-MID COUNTY

WASTE MGT. GOLDEN TRIANGLE, INC.                      151.62     391995
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .01     392005
                                                                           151.63*
SERVICE CENTER

CLASSIC TINT                                           30.00     391885
CONN'S APPLIANCES & PART                              469.97     391904
KINDRA, DBA J&R SERVICES                              409.64     391934
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KINSEL FORD, INC.                                     448.47     391935
M&D SUPPLY                                             80.77     391939
PHILPOTT MOTORS, INC.                                 243.85     391958
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .01     392005
AUTO TRIM EXPRESS                                     125.00     392008
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       42.00     392012
FIRST CALL                                            537.84     392029
LINDBERGH PAINT & BODY                                450.00     392040
BUMPER TO BUMPER                                      311.05     392041
AIRPORT GULF TOWING LLC                               190.00     392048
ROBERT'S TEXACO XPRESS LUBE                           319.00     392065
AMERICAN TIRE DISTRIBUTORS                          5,194.74     392067
INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER - BMT                   443.50     392074
UNIFIRST HOLDINGS INC                                  72.63     392076
DAVID FONTENOT                                          7.74     392085
MIGHTY OF SOUTHEAST TEXAS                              50.77     392101
ABSOLUTE CONSTRUCTION                                  50.00     392125
                                                                         9,476.98*
VETERANS SERVICE

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            7.55     392015
                                                                             7.55*
                                                                       294,483.75**
MOSQUITO CONTROL FUND

HILO / O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                              5.88     391872
MUNRO'S                                                98.95     391947
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS                                       53.03     391972
TIME WARNER COMMUNICATIONS                             73.66     391979
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .24     392005
                                                                           231.76**
J.C. FAMILY TREATMENT CT.

BEAUMONT OCCUPATIONAL SERVICE, INC.                    79.85     392022
JUDY PAASCH                                            50.00     392042
                                                                           129.85**
LAW LIBRARY FUND

YVONNE COOPER                                         150.00     391906
NATIONAL DIRECTORY OF LAW ENFOR.                    1,008.00     391948
LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW BENDER                           1,844.78     392026
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                               11,535.88     392117
                                                                        14,538.66**
GRT N MENTAL HEALTH SVCS

OFFICE DEPOT                                          656.96     391952
                                                                           656.96**
JUVENILE PROB & DET. FUND

VERIZON WIRELESS                                       32.00     392012
                                                                            32.00**
IV-E FOSTER CARE

VERIZON WIRELESS                                       32.00     392012
                                                                            32.00**
COMMUNITY SUPERVISION FND

DIANNA L. COLUMBUS                                    145.60     391903
OLMSTED-KIRK PAPER                                    676.00     391954
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                     2.73     392005
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      120.54     392012
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          112.33     392015
JCCSC                                                 386.00     392091
                                                                         1,443.20**
JEFF. CO. WOMEN'S CENTER

SUPERIOR TIRE & SERVICE                                18.95     391883
ENTERGY                                             1,683.92     391925
LUBE SHOP                                              82.48     391937
KIM MCKINNEY, LPC, LMFT                               210.00     391943
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES, INC.                           1,759.42     391978
VINS PAINT & BODY, INC.                             1,108.25     391992
BURT WALKER PARTNERS, LTD                           4,500.00     391993
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DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .61     392005
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       32.00     392012
BEN E KEITH FOODS                                   1,429.37     392038
JAMES GREEN                                           100.00     392090
                                                                        10,925.00**
MENTALLY IMPAIRED OFFEND.

TEXAS DEPT OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE CJAD                   100.00     392128
                                                                           100.00**
COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PRG

LOWE'S HOME CENTERS, INC.                             265.00     392025
                                                                           265.00**
LAW OFFICER TRAINING GRT

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                1,660.18     391933
                                                                         1,660.18**
COUNTY CLERK - RECORD MGT

DELL MARKETING L.P.                                 3,743.84     391910
                                                                         3,743.84**
DEPUTY SHERIFF EDUCATION

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                  143.18     391933
                                                                           143.18**
TAX OFFICE AUTO DEALER

HERNANDEZ OFFICE SUPPLY, INC.                       5,725.38     391929
                                                                         5,725.38**
J.P. COURTROOM TECH. FUND

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     392012
                                                                           113.97**
HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

THERMACON SERVICE                                     475.00     391881
ENTERGY                                             1,704.35     391925
MUNRO'S                                                36.75     391947
OFFICE DEPOT                                           51.70     391952
TRI-CITY COFFEE SERVICE                                62.75     391989
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                     6.57     392005
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       37.99     392012
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            5.95     392015
MATERA PAPER COMPANY INC                            1,277.13     392116
                                                                         3,658.19**
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

CARROLL & BLACKMAN, INC.                              288.00     391880
OVERHEAD DOOR CO.                                   1,525.00     391955
TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE                          47,421.43     391984
E. SULLIVAN ADVERTISING & DESIGN                    5,838.75     392009
MARTIN PRODUCT SALES LLC                              662.03     392053
CONSTRUCTION ZONE OF TEXAS LLC                      5,007.80     392123
ABSOLUTE CONSTRUCTION                               3,725.00     392125
                                                                        64,468.01**
AIRPORT FUND

A&B OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT                                  35.91     391871
ALL-PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY                              54.70     391905
OFFICE DEPOT                                          182.34     391952
NEDERLAND HARDWARE SUPPLY                              45.56     391997
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .13     392005
E. SULLIVAN ADVERTISING & DESIGN                    7,930.00     392009
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       75.98     392012
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS, INC.                             121.42     392025
HERRERA'S EMERGENCY LIGHTING                          475.00     392031
AERO SPECIALITIES                                      87.00     392045
DISH NETWORK                                           85.62     392057
ASCENT AVIATION GROUP INC                          63,980.54     392064
LAMAR ADVERTISING                                   2,592.00     392071
INDUSTRIAL DISPOSAL SUPPLY CO                          88.50     392088
MOWERS TRACTORS INC                                   172.62     392099
CRAWFORD ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY                       64.23     392112
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ADVANCE AUTO PARTS                                    108.30     392113
MEMBER'S BUILDING MAINTENANCE LLC                   4,340.22     392121
                                                                        80,440.07**
SETEC FUND

DRAINAGE DISTRICT # 6                              21,510.54     391912
SEABREEZE CULVERT, INC.                               476.20     391967
TRI-CON, INC.                                       8,259.13     391988
KNIFE RIVER                                           355.68     392058
                                                                        30,601.55**
LIABILITY CLAIMS ACCOUNT

DUNHAM HALLMARK PLLC                                  437.50     392097
                                                                           437.50**
SHERIFF'S FORFEITURE FUND

DELL MARKETING L.P.                                 1,200.98     391910
                                                                         1,200.98**
PAYROLL FUND

JEFFERSON CTY. - FLEXIBLE SPENDING                 10,315.00     391843
CLEAT                                                 360.00     391844
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER                           19,991.21     391845
RON STADTMUELLER - CHAPTER 13                       1,717.50     391846
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                              150.00     391847
JEFFERSON CTY. ASSN. OF D.S. & C.O.                 5,160.00     391848
JEFFERSON CTY. COMMUNITY SUP.                       9,538.74     391849
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - HEALTH                 404,720.10     391850
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - GENERAL                     10.00     391851
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - PAYROLL              1,536,440.39     391852
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - PAYROLL                610,375.67     391853
MONY/MLOA                                             267.92     391854
POLICE & FIRE FIGHTERS' ASSOCIATION                 3,408.56     391855
UNITED WAY OF BEAUMONT& N JEFFERSON                    38.92     391856
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - TCDRS                  579,074.93     391857
OPPENHEIMER FUNDS DISTRIBUTOR, INC                  2,178.31     391858
JEFFERSON COUNTY TREASURER                          2,448.06     391859
JEFFERSON COUNTY - TREASURER -                      5,169.09     391860
NECHES FEDERAL CREDIT UNION                        64,989.63     391861
JEFFERSON COUNTY - NATIONWIDE                      48,232.90     391862
TENNESSEE CHILD SUPPORT                               115.38     391863
NCO FINANCIAL SYSTEMS INC                             121.97     391864
SBA - U S DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY                      168.49     391865
CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT                    117.23     391866
U S DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY                            157.99     391867
WILLIAM E HEITKAMP                                    689.00     391868
JOHN TALTON                                           235.38     391869
                                                                     3,306,192.37**
GUARDIANSHIP FEE

J.T. HAYNES                                           300.00     392050
                                                                           300.00**
ORCA - IKE

MK CONSTRUCTORS                                   151,762.50     392109
MK CONSTRUCTORS                                   155,242.35     392110
                                                                       307,004.85**
MARINE DIVISION

COTTON CARGO                                          161.00     391907
HERNANDEZ OFFICE SUPPLY, INC.                         264.56     391929
JACK BROOKS REGIONAL AIRPORT                          653.27     391932
NEDERLAND HARDWARE SUPPLY                              16.67     391997
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                   202.24     392005
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      341.91     392010
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      531.86     392011
                                                                         2,171.51**
SHERIFF-SPINDLETOP HEALTH

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                1,060.95     391933
                                                                         1,060.95**
                                                                     4,137,702.48***
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NOTICE OF EARLY VOTING LOCATIONS  

SPECIAL AND JOINT POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS ELECTION, MAY 10, 2014  

(JEFFERSON COUNTY, WCID10) 

 
(AVISO de LOCALIZACIONES Y de HORAS de VOTACIÓN ADELANTADA 

SUBDIVISIONES POLÍTICAS CONJUNTAS Y ESPECIAL ELECCIONES, 10 DE MAYO DE 2014 

(CONDADO DE JEFFERSON, WCID10) 

 

EARLY VOTING LOCATIONS:  
(Localizaciones de Votacion Adelantada):  

 

Beaumont Courthouse-Main location  1001 Pearl St., Beaumont, Texas 

Theodore Johns Library    4255 Fannett Rd., Beaumont, Texas 

Rogers Park Recreation Center   6540 Gladys, Beaumont, Texas 

Port Arthur Public Library    4615 Ninth Ave, Port Arthur, Texas  

Nederland Recreation Center   2301 Avenue H, Nederland, Texas  

   

DATES AND HOURS FOR ALL ABOVE LOCATIONS:  
(Fechas y Horas para todas las localizaciones): 

 

April 28 – May 2               Monday - Friday  8:00 a.m. -  5:00 p.m. 

(Abril 28 – Mayo 2)               (Lunes - Viernes)  8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

  

  

May 5 – May 6               Monday - Tuesday  7:00 a.m. -  7:00 p.m. 

(Mayo 5 –6)                (Lunes - Martes)  7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
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Special, March 31, 2014

There being no further business to come before the Court at this time,
same is now here adjourned on this date, March 31, 2014
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